
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 

March 25, 2013 
5:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Ron Higey, Birmingham International Church 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports 

a. Board of Education Upcoming Vacancy – John Henley 
8. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 
9. Approval Of Minutes – March 11, 2013 (Regular Meeting)  

March 15, 2013 (Special Called Meeting) 

Old Business 

10. Resolution Number 4421 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute An Agreement With Williams Blackstock Architects For Design Services For A 
Proposed Municipal Facility 

11. Resolution Number 4404 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Enter Into A Guaranteed Energy Cost Savings Contract With Trane US, Inc. 

12. Resolution Number 4422 – A Resolution To Authorize The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute An Agreement With CDG Engineers And Associates, Inc., For Engineering 
Services For ATRIP Project No. 37-03-33 Resurfacing Columbiana, Tyler And Overton 
Roads, Dated March 6, 2013 

13. Resolution Number 4423 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute An Agreement With Hansen Landscape Architects To Provide Design Services 
For The Pedestrian Bridge At McCallum Park 

14. Resolution Number 4424 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute An Agreement With Hansen Landscape Architects To Provide Design Services 
For A Proposed Trail At McCallum Park 

 

1



 

New Business 

15. Resolution Number 4406-A – A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 4406 To 
Authorize The City Manager To Hire Six New Police Officers Effective April 1, 2013 

16. Resolution Number 4426 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Sign An Agreement With Alabama Power To Dedicate A Power Easement To The 
Monument Sign On Healthy Way 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

17. Resolution Number 4427 – A Resolution Authorizing The Funding The Purchase And 
Installation Of Additional RFID Gates And Supplies For The Vestavia Hills Library In 
The Forest 

18. Resolution Number 4428 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase 
Equipment For The Police Department 

19. Citizens Comments  
20. Executive Session 
21. Motion For Adjournment 

2



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2013, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

MARCH 11, 2013 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      George Pierce  
      John Henley 
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Randy Robertson, City Manager 
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Danny Rary, Police Chief 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Tim Holcomb, Deputy Police Chief 
      Fred Baughman, Economic Dev. Director 
      Mark Salter, Fleet Manager 
 
 Invocation was given by Joe Slane, Southminster Presbyterian Church, followed 
by the Pledge of Allegiance led by Max Michel and Jake Swinson, Boy Scout Troop 76. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION 
 

• Mr. Henley announced the winners of the Citizens of the Year awards. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

• Mr. Robertson stated that the Senior Health Fair on Wednesday, February 27, 
2013 at the New Merkle House was a big success.  He indicated it was attended 
by as many as 80 to 100 individuals.  He thanked Julie Harper who did a 
wonderful job at putting the event together. 

3



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2013, 

Page 2 
 

• Mr. Robertson congratulated Chief Dan Rary and the entire Vestavia Hills Police 
Department for their criminal statistics which were released showing Vestavia 
Hills PD had burglary rates down below the rates of 2008 and that the PD had the 
best crime clearance rates in the State.  He also indicated that Chief Rary had 
taken up an initiative to have classes from UNA for midlevel officers in central 
Alabama.  The classes have begun and this can turn into a great event in this part 
of the state. 

• Mr. Robertson presented certificates to the two March “Employees of the Month” 
- Ed Gray, Building Maintenance Manager and Mike Vandergrift from Parks and 
Recreation. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mayor Zaragoza presented a Certificate of Recognition to Mr. Charles Farrell, Jr. 
for his combined 17 years of service on the City’s Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  Mr. Farrell thanked the Mayor for the opportunity to serve and 
stated he’ll be comfortable in his retirement. 

• Mr. Henley announced an upcoming vacancy on the City’s Board of Education.  
Applications will be received in the Office of the City Clerk until April 8, 2013 
with interviews scheduled later.  He encouraged everyone to apply. 

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the February 21, 2013 (Special Meeting and Work Session) and 
February 25, 2013 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the February 21, 

2013 (Special Meeting and Work Session) and February 25, 2013 
(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and 
second by Mr. Henley.  Roll Call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4413 

Resolution Number 4413 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 
Purchase Five (5) Chevrolet Tahoes For The Newly Hired School 
Resource Officers (SRO’s) 

4



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2013, 

Page 3 
 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4413 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Ammons. 

 
 Mr. Robertson explained that this Resolution is to purchase vehicles and 
equipment for the new SRO’s. 
 
 Discussion ensued reiterating that the new vehicles will be used by patrol and the 
older vehicles will be transferred to the SRO’s. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called 
for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4415 

Resolution Number 4415 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Execute An Agreement For Legal Services For The Purchase Of 
Property Development Of A New Municipal Center   

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4415 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Mr. Robertson stated that this Resolution retains Mr. Steve Monk to handle the 
legal documents and negotiations needed in the purchase of the property on Montgomery 
Highway as a possible site for the City’s new municipal center. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else present 
to address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2013, 

Page 4 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2437 

Ordinance Number 2437 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City 
Manager To Execute And Deliver A Purchase Agreement For 
Property Located 1034 Montgomery Highway   

MOTION Motion to adopt Ordinance Number 2437 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Mr. Robertson gave a brief background on this request which has been discussed 
several times at length on the negotiations to purchase property on Montgomery Highway 
for a possible new municipal center. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else present 
to address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4416 

Resolution Number 4416 – A Resolution Approving Additional Inspection Services 
For Construction Of Healthy Way Entrance And Bridge 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4416 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Ammons. 

 
 Mr. Robertson stated that there were delays in the construction of the bridge and 
the improvements along Healthy Way which necessitates additional Inspection Services 
on the project.  This Resolution will cover the cost of those services. 
 
 Discussion ensued detailing the causes of the delays including the removal of rock 
from the construction site and the reasons the City was required to pay for additional 
services. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else present 
to address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 

6



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2013, 

Page 5 
 

Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4417 

Resolution Number 4417 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Take 
All Actions Necessary To Proceed With The Demolition Of The 
Structures Located At 3363 Mountainside Road   

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4417 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Mr. Robertson stated that the City Council voted to abate the nuisance of 
improvements at this location and decided to delay action to allow the property owner to 
demolish the structure.  That time has depleted and the City must now take action.  This 
Resolution will authorize the removal of asbestos and then the subsequent demolition of 
the structure. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else present 
to address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4418 

Resolution Number 4418 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 
Purchase Metal Detectors And Retain Two Security Officers For 
Municipal Court Security     

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4418 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Mr. Robertson stated that the Municipal Court Judge has requested security 
measures for his court which will be expensed to a new revenue fund that was recently 
established by the state legislature to fund “operation of courts.”  This Resolution will 
authorize the City to purchase a metal detector and retain two commercial security guards 
to man the equipment to screen individuals as they enter court. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to what function the security guards will act, the accuracy of 
the equipment, etc. 
 

7



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2013, 

Page 6 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one else present 
to address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4419 

Resolution Number 4419 – A Resolution Accepting A Settlement To Settle All 
Potential Claims Arising Out Of A Billing System Error For 
Collecting And Remitting Certain Line-Based Taxes, Fees Surcharges 
And Assessments On DS-0 And DS-1 Circuits 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4419 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 
 Chief St. John explained that AT&T found a computer error in billing a few years 
ago and instituted a “fix” along with a “bulk” bill of customers which left a few months 
for failure of collection of a portion of the E-9-1-1 fees.  He stated that the Council is the 
Emergency Board and must be the body to approve the settlement offered by AT&T.  He 
explained the method of calculation for the settlement and recommended acceptance. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to the collection, amount and recommendation of whether or 
not to accept the settlement. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one present to 
address the Council concerning this issue, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called 
for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4420 

Resolution Number 4420 - A Resolution Declaring Certain Confiscated Personal 
Property As Surplus And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said 
Confiscated Property 

8



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2013, 

Page 7 
 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4420 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 
 Mr. Robertson explained that the Police Department seized and was later granted 
ownership of an automobile.  This Resolution is to declare the item as surplus to sell and 
utilize the funds for law enforcement. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4425 

Resolution Number 4425 – A Resolution Amending Resolution Number 4232 To 
Adopt Additional Incentives For The City Of Vestavia Hills 

MOTION Motion to adopt Resolution Number 4425 was by Mr. Henley and second 
was by Mr. Sharp. 

 
 Mr. Robertson stated that this Resolution authorizes the City to offer incentives to 
businesses based on information provided to the Council during the most recent work 
session. 
 
 Discussion ensued as to the package that needed to be validated by Jefferson 
County Courts and the process by which it would be administered. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting of March 
25, 2013 at 5 PM. 
 

• Resolution Number 4421 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City 
Manager To Execute An Agreement With Williams Blackstock Architects For 
Design Services For A Proposed Municipal Facility 

9



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2013, 

Page 8 
 

• Resolution Number 4404 - A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City 
Manager To Enter Into A Guaranteed Energy Cost Savings Contract With Trane 
US, Inc. 

• Resolution Number 4422 – A Resolution To Authorize The Mayor And City 
Manager To Execute An Agreement With CDG Engineers And Associates, Inc., 
For Engineering Services For ATRIP Project No. 37-03-33 Resurfacing 
Columbiana, Tyler And Overton Roads, Dated March 6, 2013 

• Resolution Number 4423 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City 
Manager To Execute An Agreement With Hansen Landscape Architects To 
Provide Design Services For The Pedestrian Bridge At McCallum Park 

• Resolution Number 4424 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City 
Manager To Execute An Agreement With Hansen Landscape Architects To 
Provide Design Services For A Proposed Trail At McCallum Park 

 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 

None. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 The Mayor indicated that the Council needed to convene in Executive Session for 
an estimated 30 minutes to discuss the possible sale/purchase of property.  Mr. Boone 
concurred that was a valid reason for Executive Session and the Mayor opened the floor 
for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to move into Executive Session for an estimated 30 minutes for 
the sale/purchase of property was by Mr. Ammons.  Second was by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call 
vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes 
Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion carried. 

 
 The Council exited the Chambers at 5:55 PM and entered into Executive Session.  
At 6:59 PM the Council re-entered the Chambers and the Mayor called the meeting back 
to order. 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Ammons.  Meeting adjourned at 7:00 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 

10



City Council Minutes 
March 11, 2013, 

Page 9 
 

 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

11



City Council Minutes 
March 15, 2013 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETNG 
 

MARCH 15, 2013 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a special called meeting on this date at 
1:30 PM following posting/publication as required by Alabama law.  The Mayor called 
the special meeting to order and the GIS Technician II called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      John Henley 
      Jim Sharp 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   George Pierce 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Randy Robertson, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Wendy Appling, GIS Technician II 
      Conrad Garrison, Deputy City Clerk/Planner 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Fred Baughman, Economic Dev. Director 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Jason Burnett, Parks/Rec. Superintendent 
      Melvin Turner, Treasurer 
      Ryan Farrell, Lieutenant 
      Darrin Estes, Director of IT Services 
      Tommy Spina, City Judge 
      Lynn Bonner, Deputy Fire Chief 
      Greg Gilchrist, Fire Marshall 
      Nancy Chadbourne, Magistrate 
      Jason Hardin, Lieutenant 
      Brian Gilham, Lieutenant 
      Kevin York, Lieutenant 
 
 
 

12



City Council Minutes 
March 15, 2013 

Page 2 
 

UNANIMOUS CONSENT OF ORDINANCE 2438 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for unanimous consent of immediate consideration 
and action of Ordinance 2438. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent of the immediate consideration and action 

of Ordinance 2438 was by Mr. Henley and second was by Mr. Sharp.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes 
        Motion carried. 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2438 
 
Ordinance Number 2438 – An Ordinance Accepting The Resignation Of The City 

Manager Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama And To Authorize 
And Direct The Mayor To Execute And Deliver A Settlement 
Agreement, Cancellation And Termination Of Employment Contract, 
And Full And Final Release  (Public Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2438 was by Mr. Henley.  Second 

was by Mr. Ammons.   
 
 Mayor Zaragoza read the letter of resignation from Randy Robertson. 
 
 The Mayor and Council gave their best wishes to Mr. Robertson and stated that 
family does come first and thanked him for his service. 
 
 The Mayor asked Mr. Boone to explain the contract. 
 
 Mr. Boone gave the provisions of the agreement and stated that the Council can 
terminate the contract.  Mr. Robertson submitted his resignation for family and health 
reasons.  The City accepted his resignation.  The City can, also, legally enter into 
contracts.  He read the Settlement Agreement. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Mr. Donald Harwell, 1357 Willoughby Road, asked why the City is paying for the 
termination of the contract. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that the City agreed to pay the City Manager $14,000 a month.  
He was summoned by the Mayor and Mr. Ammons when the resignation was occurring 
to help them negotiate a deal and that is what they did. 
 
 Linda Allison, 3001 Asbury Lane, stated that she still did not understand why the 
City was paying Randy Robertson. 

13



City Council Minutes 
March 15, 2013 

Page 3 
 

 
 Mayor Zaragoza stated that it is the number of months that he has worked for the 
City and the vacation time. 
 
 Ms. Allison asked for the breakdown and stated that the City paid him for his 
work during the time he has been there and that this would be additional. 
 
 Mayor Zaragoza stated that $13,000 was for vacation time and that the total is 
payment for termination of the contract. 
 
 Lisa Christopher, 2412 Mountain Vista Drive, asked what will happen now. 
 
 Mayor Zaragoza stated that the search for a new City Manager will begin 
immediately. 
 
 Ms. Christopher asked if they were going to use the same consulting company. 
 
 The Mayor explained that he did not know at this time. 
 
 Martha Cook, 1341 Branchwater Lane, stated that Randy Robertson had gotten 
things moving for Vestavia Hills and appreciated his service. 
 
 Karen Odle, 1212 Graylynn Circle, stated that Randy Robertson worked very hard 
with the Chamber of Commerce. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that the working relationship with Randy Robertson has been 
excellent.  He is leaving the City better than it was before he came. 
 
 Mr. Robertson thanked the staff, citizens and Mayor/Council. 
 
 The Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

UNANIMOUS CONSENT OF ORDINANCE 2439 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for unanimous consent of immediate consideration 
and action of Ordinance 2439. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent of the immediate consideration and action 

of Ordinance 2439 was by Mr. Henley and second was by Mr. Ammons.  
Roll call vote as follows: 

14



City Council Minutes 
March 15, 2013 

Page 4 
 

   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes 
        Motion carried. 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2439 
 
Ordinance Number 2439 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Employment Of A City 

Manager On An Interim Basis  (Public Hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2439 was by Mr. Ammons.  

Second was by Mr. Sharp.   
 
 Mayor Zaragoza explained the Ordinance would be appointing the Fire Chief Jim 
St. John as the Interim City Manager. 
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that St. John has a Masters in Public Policy and will do an 
outstanding job as the Interim City Manager. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that the Council is following State law and that he can serve as 
Interim for four months or until the Council appoints a City Manager. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Mr. Robertson stated that four or five months into his hiring, he realized that St. 
John would be the person that anyone is to go to if he is on vacation, etc.  St. John will 
serve well as the interim City Manager. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that this is also consistent with the law; St. John would have 
been Mr. Robertson’s choice. 
 
 Mr. David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, asked if St. John would be paid extra. 
 
 The Mayor said he would not be. 
 
 Chief St. John thanked Mr. Robertson for his help and leadership.  Next month 
will be his 25th year anniversary with the City and he will serve the City in this new 
position until the Council hires a permanent replacement. 
 
 The Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
 
MOTION Question called on a roll call vote: 

Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 

15



City Council Minutes 
March 15, 2013 

Page 5 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for citizens comments.  There being no one present 
to address the Council concerning citizen comments, the Mayor closed citizen comments. 
 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn the meeting at 2:00 PM was by Mr. Ammons.  Mr. 

Pierce seconded the motion.  Roll call vote as follows: 
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes  
     Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Conrad Garrison 
Deputy City Clerk 

16



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4421 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH WILLIAMS BLACKSTOCK 
ARCHITECTS TO PROVIDE ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING 
SERVICES FOR A PROPOSED CITY HALL 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute an agreement with 

Williams Blackstock Architects for architectural and engineering services for a new City 

Hall as detailed in the information labeled as “Exhibit A,” a copy of which is attached to 

and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4421 as though written fully therein; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4421 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of March, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



WI L L I A M S     B L A C K S T O C K  

A R C H I T E C T S  
 

 

 

 

W I L L I A M S  -  B LA CK ST O CK  A RC H I TE CT S      A R CH I TE C T UR E   I N T E R I O RS   P LA N NI N G 

2 204  F I R ST  A VEN UE  SO UT H   SU I T E  200  B I RM I N GHAM ,  A L  3 523 3   205 .2 52 .9 81 1  
 

February 14, 2013 (revised) 
 
 
Mr. Randy Robertson 
City Manager 
City of Vestavia Hills 
513 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 
 
 
Re:  Vestavia Hills – New City Hall – Architectural & Engineering Services Proposal 
  
 
Mr. Robertson, 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to provide you with this proposal for architectural and engineering services for the 
proposed City Hall for Vestavia Hills.  We have enjoyed working with the City on this effort over the past several 
months and are pleased to be selected to help the City realize this unique opportunity to create an economical 
solution that also provides a signature statement that will transform this area and become an iconic New City 
Hall located in the heart of Vestavia Hills. . 
 
SCOPE OF WORK  
We understand that the proposed project will include the new construction and/or potential renovation of an 
existing structure to relocate all City Hall functions currently housed in the existing City Hall facility, with a total 
square footage of approximately 40,000 to 50,000sf. 
 
The site for this facility has not yet been determined and we will work with you to study various sites for the best 
“potential” fit.  Some of the previous potential sites include a renovation/addition to the City Center, or possibly 
the previous Food World site.  We will work with you to identify the best site to make this project a reality. 
 
BUDGET 
We understand the construction cost is not yet set and could range from approximately $6,000,000 to 
$11,000,000 based on our current understanding of the project scope.  The construction cost range will be 
whittled down once the site is selected and it is determined to consist of renovations, new construction, or a 
combination of both. 
 
PROJECT TEAM 
We have selected a team of engineers to address all of the unique design needs for the New City Hall.  We are 
happy to work with you to select the best engineers for your project, but at this time we have identified the 
following engineering team: 
 
Our consultants include:   
 Structural Design Group –    Structural Engineering 
 MJR Senter –     Mechanical Engineering 
 Sajjadieh Engineering Group –   Electrical Engineering  
 LBYD, Inc. –     Civil Engineering 
 Johnson & Co. –    Landscape Architecture 
 Skipper Consulting –   Traffic Consultant 

32



Mr. Randy Robertson 
RE:  Vestavia Hills – New City Hall 
February 14, 2013 (revised); page 2 
 
 

WI L L I A M S  -  B LA CK ST O CK  A RC H I TE CT S      A R CH I TE C T UR E   I N T E R I O RS   P LA N NI N G 

2 204  F I R ST  A VEN UE  SO UT H   SU I T E  200  B I RM I N GHAM ,  A L  3 523 3   205 .2 52 .9 81 1    

BASIC SERVICES 
We propose to provide the basic architectural services in accordance with the American Institute of Architects 
(AIA) Standard Agreement between Owner and Architect.   These basic services include Architectural design, 
Interior design, Structural, Mechanical, and Electrical consultant engineering services.   
 
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
Some additional services will be required to complete the project which are normally not part of the basic 
architectural services outlined above.  These services may include:  
 
 ADEM Permit Fee   
 Detailed Project Cost Estimating 
 Traffic consultant   
 Boundary & Topographic Survey 
 Property Subdivision Survey 
 Geotechnical Subsurface Report 
 Construction Materials Testing 
 Utility extensions to site outside of site boundary 
 Elevator consultant 
 Hazardous Materials consultant 
 Primary power distribution 
 Color Perspective Renderings 
 Furniture Design 
 Artwork and Accessories 
 Security System Coordination 
 Audio Visual 
 LEED Certification & Commissioning 
 
 
 
PHASES OF SERVICE 
Our work will be performed in two phases based on your need to finalize the property acquisition details prior to 
proceeding with complete design services.  The phases of work include: 
  
Phase 1:  Preliminary Design Confirmation/Space Programming*: 

 
A. Space Programming:   

 Meet with representatives from each City Department to identify all current and projected 
future space needs for offices, storage, work areas, and other needs critical to their daily 
operations. 

 Prepare a space summary description for each department documenting their space needs, 
staff needs, office sizes, and adjacencies with other departments. 

 Develop a space program needs list that compiles all departmental needs into a 
comprehensive spreadsheet to identify the overall building square footage needs for both 
current and projected future needs. 

 The final document will be used to determine the necessary square footage of the new City 
Hall by identifying all current and future functions and space needs, including potential 
expansion needs. 

33



Mr. Randy Robertson 
RE:  Vestavia Hills – New City Hall 
February 14, 2013 (revised); page 3 
 
 

WI L L I A M S  -  B LA CK ST O CK  A RC H I TE CT S      A R CH I TE C T UR E   I N T E R I O RS   P LA N NI N G 

2 204  F I R ST  A VEN UE  SO UT H   SU I T E  200  B I RM I N GHAM ,  A L  3 523 3   205 .2 52 .9 81 1    

 Work with the various City departments to confirm the general departmental locations within 
the new facility, as well as the general site layout. 

 Review layout options with the Police Department to resolve primary concerns such as the 
location of the jail and sally port. 

 
B. Property Acquisition Details: 

 Work with both the City and any current land owner to assist in identifying and finalizing the 
details necessary for property acquisition. 

 Determine the overall acreage/square footage amount and property lines to be purchased. 
 Discuss overall construction phasing and schedule needs for both parties. 

 
*Note:  Based on the preliminary nature of these Phase I services, if the City chooses to stop pursuing a new 
and/or renovated City Hall during this phase you can stop our work at that time and we will work with you to 
capture our current cost at the time work was officially stopped so that our costs are covered and the City 
does not continue to incur additional costs if the project does not proceed. 

 
 
 
 
Phase 2:  Schematic Design through Construction Administration:   
Once the Phase 1 work has been completed for the City to finalize the property acquisition details, we will 
proceed into the comprehensive design work as follows: 

A. SCHEMATIC DESIGN (25%) 
 Develop site plan scenarios for optimization of site.  
 Prepare schematic floor plans and exterior elevation schemes. 
 Present schematic plans, elevations and site plans to Owner and revise as required to develop 

the optimum scheme. 
 Work with you to determine the preliminary construction cost and make adjustments in cost as 

required.   
 Meet with Owner at periodic intervals to discuss progress and gain input and approvals at 

each step of the way.  

B. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT (15%) 
 Based on approved Schematic Design Documents and any adjustments authorized by the 

Owner in the program, schedule or construction budget, prepare hard line drawings that fix 
and describe the size and character of the Project as to architectural, structural, mechanical 
and electrical systems, materials and such other elements.  

 Develop exterior elevations to show materials and character of façade in detail.  
 Develop interior elevation design drawings showing plans in more detail including cross 

sections and wall sections.  
 Develop outline drawings of mechanical, electrical, plumbing and fire protection systems.  
 Define structural system.  
 Prepare materials palette of interior selections showing character and design for interior 

components of the project. 
 Prepare a more detailed opinion of probable cost and work with you to make adjustments in 

design as required based on the cost. 
  
 

34



Mr. Randy Robertson 
RE:  Vestavia Hills – New City Hall 
February 14, 2013 (revised); page 4 
 
 

WI L L I A M S  -  B LA CK ST O CK  A RC H I TE CT S      A R CH I TE C T UR E   I N T E R I O RS   P LA N NI N G 

2 204  F I R ST  A VEN UE  SO UT H   SU I T E  200  B I RM I N GHAM ,  A L  3 523 3   205 .2 52 .9 81 1    

C. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS (35%) 

 Prepare final construction documents including drawings and specifications. 
 Provide interior design services consisting of the selection of finishes throughout the facility, 

including preparation of palette boards and necessary meetings and modifications as required. 
 Final review of probable construction cost before final pricing. 

 

D. BID / NEGOTIATION (5%) 

 Issue drawings, answer contractor questions, issue addendum or clarifications during bidding.  
 Identify cost reduction options as part of negotiation or as alternates as project is being bid.  
 Assist Owner in preparing an Owner/Contractor Agreement.   

 

E. CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION (20%) 

 Observe construction on regular basis for compliance with contract documents.  
 Meet at site regularly to review construction progress with meeting at least one month relative 

to the Contractor’s Application for Payment.   
 Coordinate with Contractor throughout construction on field questions and clarifications. 
 Review and approve contractor submittals including shop drawings and material submittals.  
 Review and approve pay requests to confirm percentage complete is commensurate with work 

completed on site.  
 Process any change orders to contract required or desired for changes in the work or 

schedule.  
 Review completed project by conducting final review and punch list of work to be completed 

for final payment and release of retainage.  
 Oversee submittal of project close out documents and record copies. 

 
 
 
FEE  
Phase 1:   We propose a lump sum fee of $41,000 for the space programming and conceptual planning, and 

property acquisition as outlined above.  
 
Phase 2:        For basic services for the design of the building including Schematic Design through Construction 

Administration Phases outlined above we propose a percentage fee of 5.6% of the cost of the 
Work.   Note that this percentage fee is over 2% less than what the State Building Commission Fee 
schedule dictates for this project and is a significant discount for the City of Vestavia Hills.  In 
addition, interior design is typically an additional service but we are providing in our basic services 
an additional value to the City. 

 
 
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
Additional Services is for scope outside the limits of the typical Basic Services, changes in the scope of work that 
were unanticipated or additional work not originally contemplated under this agreement.  We propose to invoice 
for these services, if required and authorized by the Owner, at the lump sum fees proposed below or at an hourly 
rate (per attached hourly rates) if the scope is not clearly defined.  Additional Services of our consultants will be 
invoiced at 1.2 times direct cost. The following additional services are required and are outlined below.   

35



Mr. Randy Robertson 
RE:  Vestavia Hills – New City Hall 
February 14, 2013 (revised); page 5 
 
 

WI L L I A M S  -  B LA CK ST O CK  A RC H I TE CT S      A R CH I TE C T UR E   I N T E R I O RS   P LA N NI N G 

2 204  F I R ST  A VEN UE  SO UT H   SU I T E  200  B I RM I N GHAM ,  A L  3 523 3   205 .2 52 .9 81 1    

 
 Programming       $41,000 (included in Ph. 1 Services above) 
 Civil Engineering      $39,000 
 Landscape Architect     $60,000 
 ADEM Permit Fee    $4,000     
 Detailed Project Cost Estimating   $15,600 (professional cost estimator) 
 Traffic consultant      $12,000 (elective service if needed) 
 Boundary & Topographic Survey   $14,000 to $18,000 range (or by Owner) 
 Property Subdivision Survey   TBD (determine need as project develops) 
 Geotechnical Subsurface Report   TBD or by Owner 
 Construction Materials Testing   by Owner 
 Utility extensions to site outside of site boundary Not anticipated 
 Elevator consultant    Not anticipated 
 Hazardous Materials consultant   Not anticipated 
 Primary power distribution    TBD if necessary 
 Color Perspective Renderings   $7,500 
 Furniture Design     $50,000 
 Artwork and Accessories    $10,000 (elective service) 
 Security System Coordination   $18,000 
 Audio Visual     $10,000 
 LEED – USGBC Submittal Fees   $35,000 (elective service if LEED is pursued) 
 LEED – Certification Submittals & Energy Studies $88,000 (elective service if LEED is pursued) 
 LEED – Commissioning    $28,000 (elective service if LEED is pursued) 

 
 
 
SUMMARY DESCRIPTION 
 
Programming 
See description above. 
 
Color Perspective Renderings 
Watercolor and/or digital renderings will be produced of the final design to be used for public presentations and 
public awareness. 
 
Furniture Design 
Our team will review new goals for furniture and equipment, offer alternatives available and develop bidding 
packages to competitively price the final selection. We will coordinate delivery and installation of new furniture 
requirement. 
 
Artwork and Accessories 
Our team will coordinate all new and/or relocated artwork and displays necessary to fully furnish the new City 
Hall. 
 
Security System Coordination 
Our team will coordinate special layout and requirements such as power for security equipment, special design, 
and coordination for seamless integration of systems into architectural solution. 
 

36



Mr. Randy Robertson 
RE:  Vestavia Hills – New City Hall 
February 14, 2013 (revised); page 6 
 
 

WI L L I A M S  -  B LA CK ST O CK  A RC H I TE CT S      A R CH I TE C T UR E   I N T E R I O RS   P LA N NI N G 

2 204  F I R ST  A VEN UE  SO UT H   SU I T E  200  B I RM I N GHAM ,  A L  3 523 3   205 .2 52 .9 81 1    

 
Audio Visual 
Our team will coordinate locations, details, power requirements and special detailing required for integration of 
AV system. 
 
LEED and Commissioning 
As part of our Basic Services we approach each project seeking to incorporate sustainable and energy efficient 
features regardless of pursuing LEED Certification.  We can also pursue LEED certification as an additional 
service, which would include a comprehensive development of the LEED checklist and cost options for each 
LEED feature for you to decide what sustainable features to include.  Our additional services would include the 
extensive paperwork, substantiation and submittals necessary to register your project with the USGBC (US 
Green Building Council) and achieve LEED certification.  In addition, the LEED process would require building 
commissioning and energy studies by the mechanical engineering engineer.  These studies evaluate the energy 
savings for LEED features relative to the mechanical systems and the exterior envelope of the building so that 
the energy savings are substantiated to be submitted to USGBC for LEED certification.   
 
 
 
 
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES    
Reimbursable expenses are in addition to the fee and are for project-related expenses incurred in the City’s 
behalf such as postage, printing and reproductions during the course of the project.  We propose to invoice for 
reimbursable expenses at 1.15 times the direct cost of plotting and printing associated with the project. 
 
If you find this proposal acceptable we propose to formalize our agreement on an American Institute of 
Architects AIA Standard Form of Agreement between Owner and Architect.   We enjoyed working with you 
during this summer and fall to assist in dreaming what your New City Hall can be, and we appreciate the 
opportunity to provide you with this proposal and look forward to an opportunity to work with you and the City of 
Vestavia Hills.  If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to call 
 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely,  

 
Stephen Allen, AIA 
 
 
Enclosures:   Architect’s Hourly Rates  
  
 

 
 
 
 

37



Mr. Randy Robertson 
RE:  Vestavia Hills – New City Hall 
February 14, 2013 (revised); page 7 
 
 

WI L L I A M S  -  B LA CK ST O CK  A RC H I TE CT S      A R CH I TE C T UR E   I N T E R I O RS   P LA N NI N G 

2 204  F I R ST  A VEN UE  SO UT H   SU I T E  200  B I RM I N GHAM ,  A L  3 523 3   205 .2 52 .9 81 1    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2013 TYPICAL HOURLY RATES SCHEDULE 
Williams  Blackstock Architects, P.C. 

 
 

Principal …     $250.00 / hour 
Director of Technical Resources …  $150.00 / hour 
Senior Project Manager …   $140.00 / hour 
Project Manager …    $ 130.00 / hour 
Assistant Project Manager…   $ 100.00 / hour 
Staff Architect / Interior Designer – Level 1 … $ 90.00 / hour 
Staff Architect / Interior Designer – Level 2 … $ 65.00 / hour 
Administrative - Staff…    $ 60.00 / hour 
Intern / Draftsmen…    $ 45.00 / hour 

 
  
 

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4404 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY 
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A GUARANTEED ENERGY COST 
SAVINGS CONTRACT 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to enter into a Guaranteed 

Energy Cost Savings Contract (“Contract”) with Trane US, Inc. (“Trane”); 

and 

2. A copy of said contract is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4404 as though written fully therein; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution Number 4404 shall only 

become effective upon the adoption and approval of an instrument securing a Qualified 

Energy Conservation Bond or other funding deemed appropriate solely to the discretion 

and approval of the City Council; and 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of March, 

2013. 

 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



PACTTM Agreement
between

The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama

and

Trane U.S. Inc.

February 25, 2013

Trane Contract No. J480612

82



©2009 Trane All rights reserved PACT Agreement 12-09-09, Trane Project No.: J480612
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. ™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.

Page 2 of 11

This PACT™ Agreement (hereinafter the "Agreement") is made and entered into as of February 25, 2013 by and
between Trane U.S. Inc. (hereinafter "Trane") and The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (hereinafter "Customer") for
the purpose of furnishing services designed to reduce energy consumption and operational costs at the premises, to
guarantee a specified minimum level of energy savings, and furnish specified maintenance.

ARTICLE 1 - THE SERVICES AND COMPENSATION

Section 1.01. Articles and Exhibits. This Agreement consists of Articles 1 through 8 and the following Exhibits,
which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference:

Exhibit A: Payment Schedule
Exhibit B: Scope of Services
Exhibit B, Attachment 1 – Musco 25 Year Product Assurance & Warranty
Exhibit B, Attachment 2 – Musco 10 Year Warranty
Exhibit B, Attachment 3 – Musco Lighting Level Guarantee
Exhibit B.1: Certificate of Substantial Completion and Acceptance
Exhibit B.2: Certificate of Final Completion and Acceptance
Exhibit C: Description of the Premises
Exhibit D: Notice to Proceed
Exhibit E: Guarantee
Exhibit E.1 Energy Savings Guarantee
Exhibit E.2 Lighting Maintenance Operational Savings
Exhibit E.3 Miscellaneous Operational Savings
Exhibit E.4 Electrical Rate Change Operational Savings
Exhibit E.5 Capital Cost Avoidance Operational Savings
Exhibit F: Hazardous Materials
Exhibit G: Measurement and Verification

Section 1.02. Contract Price. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, as payment for Trane’s performance
and furnishing of the Services, Customer shall pay or cause to be paid to Trane, pursuant to Section 1.05, the sum
of FOUR MILLION ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND 00/100 ($4,100,000.00) DOLLARS, which Contract Price
includes all applicable sales, consumer, use and similar taxes (excluding income taxes) for the Services required to
be paid by Trane and legally enacted as of the date of this Agreement.  The Contract Price does not include the cost
to Customer of maintenance (the “Maintenance Price”) to be furnished by Trane pursuant to Exhibit G.

Section 1.03. Services and Maintenance.

(a) Services. Within 270 days from Trane’s receipt of the Notice to Proceed issued pursuant to
Section 1.04, Trane shall have substantially completed performance of the Services defined in Exhibit B (hereinafter
“Substantial Completion”) at the Premises identified in Exhibit C.  Trane’s obligation hereunder is limited to
performing the Services as defined herein.  Excluded from the Services are any modifications or alterations to the
Premises (not expressly included within the Services as defined) that may be required by operation of the Americans
with Disabilities Act or any other law or building code(s).

(b) Measurement and Verification. During the Term hereof, Trane shall furnish, and Customer shall
pay for, the measurement and verification services (the “Measurement and Verification”) as and when described on
Exhibit G.  The Measurement and Verification Price is set forth on Exhibit G.

Section 1.04. Notice to Proceed; Financing.

If this box is checked, Customer will not be financing payment of the Services with funds other than its own
and will use its own funds to pay for the Services.  Accordingly, upon execution of this Agreement by Trane,
Customer’s execution of this Agreement shall constitute the Notice to Proceed to Trane.

If this box is checked, Customer will be financing payment of the Services, but until financing is complete,
Customer will use its own funds to pay for the Services.  Accordingly, upon execution of this Agreement by Trane,
Customer’s execution of this Agreement shall constitute the Notice to Proceed to Trane. Within five (5) calendar
days of Customer closing on its financing, Customer shall provide written notice of such closing to Trane.

83



©2009 Trane All rights reserved PACT Agreement 12-09-09, Trane Project No.: J480612
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. ™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.

Page 3 of 11

If this box is checked, Customer intends to finance payment of the Services with funds other than its own.
Accordingly, Trane shall not perform, nor be required to perform, any of the Services until and unless Customer has
closed on its financing of this Agreement (the “Financing Closing”), as evidenced by fully executed contract
documents for financing of the Contract Price and funding of any escrow account provided for by the f inancing
documents.  Customer will achieve Financing Closing on or before March 15, 2013, or such later date agreed to in
writing by Trane.  Within five (5) calendar days of the Financing Closing, Customer shall execute and issue a written
Notice to Proceed (substantially in the form of Exhibit D hereto) to Trane, upon which event Trane will commence
performance of the Services hereunder.  In the event Customer does not achieve Financing Closing on or before the
date specified in the preceding sentence, or such later date agreed to in writing by Trane, Trane may terminate this
Agreement upon fourteen (14) calendar days prior written notice to Customer.  Upon such termination of this
Agreement, Trane shall have no further obligations to Customer hereunder; provided, however, that, notwithstanding
such termination, Customer shall be obligated to immediately compensate Trane for the amount set forth in any
Letter of Commitment, project development agreement, or comparable agreement between Customer and Trane.

Section 1.05.  Services Payment Terms. Customer shall pay Trane or cause Trane to be paid for the Services as
follows:

Initial Payment: Upon execution hereof, twenty percent (20%) of the Contract Price (for engineering,
drafting, mobilization, and other costs) shall be due; and

Monthly Payments and Final Payment: In accordance with the dates and amounts on Exhibit A hereto,
Trane will invoice for Contract Price on a monthly basis for all materials and equipment delivered to the Premises (or,
as applicable, to an off-site storage facility) and for all installation, labor and services performed during the billing
period; Customer shall pay all amounts due upon receipt of the invoice and any invoice not paid within thirty (30)
calendar days of its date shall be past due.  All amounts outstanding thirty (30) calendar days beyond the due date
shall bear interest payable to Trane at the rate or 7 ½ % per annum, retroactive to the due date.  Customer shall pay
all costs (including attorneys’ fees) incurred by Trane in successfully collecting amounts due from Customer.

Section 1.06.  Notices and Changes of Address. All notices to be given by either party to the other shall be in
writing and may be delivered in person, or may be sent by receipted courier, facsimile transmission, express mail, e-
mail, or postage prepaid certified or registered mail, addressed to the party for whom it is intended, at the addresses as
follows:

If to Trane: Trane If to Customer: The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama
4833 White Bear Parkway 513 Montgomery Highway
St. Paul, Minnesota  55110 Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216
Attention: Comprehensive Solutions Leader Attention: Mr. Alberto C. Zaragoza  Jr.

or such other addresses as either party may hereinafter designate by notice to the other.  Notices are deemed
delivered or given and become effective upon mailing if mailed as aforesaid and upon actual receipt if otherwise
delivered. All notices or other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and may be delivered in person,
or may be sent by receipted courier, facsimile transmission, express mail, e-mail, or postage prepaid certified or
registered mail, addressed to the party for whom it is intended, at the addresses set forth in this Agreement. Either party
may change its address for notice by giving written notice to the other party of the change. Any notice or other
communication shall be deemed given no later than the date actually received.  Notice by courier, express mail, certified
mail, or registered mail shall be deemed given on the date it is officially recorded as delivered by return receipt or
equivalent and, in the absence of such record of delivery, it shall be rebuttably presumed to have been delivered on the
third business day after it was deposited, first-class postage prepaid, in the mails.  Notices sent by fax or e-mail shall
require tangible confirmation of receipt from the person to whom addressed.

Section 1.07.  Energy Savings Guarantee. The energy savings guaranteed under this Agreement are set forth in
Exhibit E and in the sub-exhibits thereto.

Section 1.08.  Term. The term (“Term”) of this Agreement shall commence as of the date first written above and
shall end upon expiration of the 14 year Guarantee Term pursuant to Exhibit E, unless earlier terminated pursuant to
the provisions hereof.

Section 1.09.  Customer’s Authorized Representative(s). Customer designates the following individual(s), and
any successors to the positions noted, as the representative(s) of Customer with authority to sign on behalf of the
Customer (the “Authorized Representative”) the Certificate of Substantial Completion and Acceptance, Certificate of
Final Completion and Acceptance, and Guarantee reconciliation reports:

84



©2009 Trane All rights reserved PACT Agreement 12-09-09, Trane Project No.: J480612
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. ™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.

Page 4 of 11

Authorized Representative Position/Title

Alberto C. Zaragoza Jr. Mayor

Customer may change any Authorized Representative by providing written notice to Trane (in accordance with
Section 1.06) at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the effective date of the change. Such change shal l only
be effective with respect to acts occurring after the required notice.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized representatives of the parties have each executed this
Agreement, effective as of the date first above written.

Trane U.S. Inc.

By:
Mr. Steve Miclette – Georgia/Ala. Trane

Its: District Manager

Date:

The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama
(Customer)

By:
Alberto C. Zaragoza Jr.

Its: Mayor

Date:

Trane’s state contractor’s license number: 20760

85



©2009 Trane All rights reserved PACT Agreement 12-09-09, Trane Project No.: J480612
Confidential andProprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. ™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.

Page 5 of 11

ARTICLE 2 - PERFORMANCE

Section 2.01. Construction Procedures and Changes To
Services. Trane shall supervise and direct the Services
using its best skill and attention.  Trane shall have exclusive
control over construction means, methods, techniques,
sequences and procedures.  Trane shall at all times have the
right to replace, delete or substantially alter any item of
equipment or part of the Services, correct any work, revise
any procedures included in this Agreement, or take any other
energy saving actions, provided, however, that Trane shall
obtain Customer’s prior consent to substantial deviations from
the original scope of Services, said consent not to be
unreasonably withheld or delayed.

Section 2.02.  Substantial Completion. Prior to final
completion, Trane may provide written notice to Customer
that all or substantial portions of the Services are
substantially complete and request that Customer issue a
Certificate of Substantial Completion and Acceptance,
substantially in the form of Exhibit B.1.  Substantial
Completion is the date when the specified Services have
been performed or installed and are operating as required by
this Agreement, with only minor work remaining as may be
specified on a punch list agreed to by Customer and Trane.
Within a reasonable time thereafter, Customer and Trane will
inspect the specified Services to determine the status of
completion.  If Customer does not consider the specified
Services substantially complete, it will notify Trane in writing,
giving the reasons therefor.  If Customer considers any or all
of the specified Services substantially complete, a Certificate
of Substantial Completion and Acceptance will be issued as
to such specified Services, executed by the Authorized
Representative of Customer.  Trane’s request for a Certificate
of Substantial Completion and Acceptance shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed by Customer.  Exhibit B.1
shall fix the date(s) of Substantial Completion and the date(s)
for commencement of warranties for the accepted specified
Services; Exhibit B.1 may specify the responsibilities between
Customer and Trane for Maintenance (pursuant to Exhibit G)
and any adjustment of compensation therefor.  There may be
attached to the certificate a tentative list of items to be
completed or corrected.

Section 2.03.  Final Completion. Trane shall comply with
Title 39-1-1(f), Code of Alabama (1975).  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, upon Customer’s receipt of written notice from
Trane that the Services are ready for final inspection and
acceptance, Customer and Trane shall inspect the Services
and determine whether the same have been performed in
accordance with this Agreement.  If Customer considers the
Services complete and performed in accordance with this
Agreement, Customer shall issue a Certificate of Final
Completion and Acceptance, substantially in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit B.2, to be executed by the
Authorized Representative of Customer.  In the event Trane
presents a Certificate of Final Completion and Acceptance to
Customer for execution and, within fourteen (14) calendar
days from the date noted in the Certificate as the date of such
presentation, Customer fails to deliver an executed original of
the Certificate to Trane and does not provide to Trane written
objections to issuance of the Certificate, identifying the
specific parts of the Services the Customer believes have not
been completed and providing specific facts in support of
Customer’s belief that the Services have not been finally
completed, the Date of Final Completion shall be the date

noted in the Certificate as the date the Certificate was
submitted to Customer.

Section 2.04.  Delays. If Trane is delayed in the
commencement or completion of any part of the Services due
to an Event of Force Majeure, or due to Customer’s action(s)
or failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement or to
cooperate with Trane in the timely performance of the
Services, then Trane will notify Customer in writing of the
existence, extent of, and reason(s) for such delay(s).  Trane
and Customer shall extend the contract time for such
reasonable time as they shall agree and, if Trane’s cost for
furnishing the Services is increased as a result, the Contract
Price shall be increased by Change Order by the amount of
Trane’s additional costs.

Section 2.05.  Equipment Location and Access. Customer
shall provide, without charge, a mutually satisfactory location
or locations for the installation and operation of the equipment
and the performance of the installation work, including
sufficient areas for staging, mobilization, and storage.
Customer shall provide access to the Premises for Trane and
its contractors or subcontractors during regular business
hours, or such other hours as may be requested by Trane
and acceptable to Customer, to install, adjust, inspect, and
correct the installation work.  Trane’s access to correct any
emergency condition shall not be restricted by Customer.

Section 2.06.  Permits and Governmental Fees. Trane
shall secure (with Customer’s assistance) and pay for building
and other permits and governmental fees, licenses, and
inspections necessary for proper performance and
completion of the Services and which are legally required
when bids from Trane’s subcontractors are received,
negotiations thereon concluded, or the effective date of a
relevant Change Order, whichever is later.  Customer is
responsible for necessary private and governmental
approvals, easements, assessments and charges for
construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for
permanent changes to existing facilities.

Section 2.07.  Utilities During Construction. At no cost to
Trane, Customer shall provide and pay for water, heat, and
utilities consumed by Trane during performance of the
Services hereunder.  Trane shall install and pay the cost of
any temporary facilities not already in existence that will be
required during construction for accessing such water, heat,
and utilities.

Section 2.08.  Concealed or Unknown Conditions. Trane
shall promptly notify Customer if it encounters the following
conditions at the Premises, prior to significantly disturbing the
same: (i) subsurface or otherwise concealed physical
conditions or (ii) unknown physical conditions of an unusual
nature that differ materially from those conditions ordinarily
found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in
construction activities of the type and character as the
Services herein..  If such conditions cause an increase in
Trane’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part
of the Services: (a) Trane and Customer shall agree, by
Change Order, on how to proceed and the extent of any
adjustment to the time required for performance of the
Services and to the Contract Price, in light of the differing
conditions and any adjustments that may be required to the
Guarantee; or (b) either party may terminate this Agreement

86



©2009 Trane All rights reserved PACT Agreement 12-09-09, Trane Project No.: J480612
Confidential andProprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. ™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.

Page 6 of 11

by delivery of written notice declaring termination, effective
immediately pursuant to Section 3.05.

Section 2.09.  Damage to Equipment; Casualty or
Condemnation of Premises. Any fire, flood, other casualty
or condemnation affecting any portion of the Premises shall
be a Material Change to the Baseline and Customer shall
furnish notice thereof to Trane upon occurrence of the
Material Change.  Trane may modify any Baseline applicable
to the Guarantee to account for the Material Change.  If any
fire, flood, other casualty, or condemnation renders a majority
of the Premises incapable of being occupied or destroys a
substantial part of the area(s) within which the Services is/are
to be performed, Trane may terminate this Agreement,
effective immediately, by delivery of a written notice to
Customer pursuant to Section 3.05.  If any significant item of
the equipment furnished hereunder is irreparably damaged by
the negligence or willful misconduct of an employee, agent or
invitee of Customer, or is destroyed or stolen, and if
Customer fails to repair or replace said item within a
reasonable period of time agreed to by Trane, Trane may
terminate this Agreement, effective immediately, pursuant to
Section 3.05.

ARTICLE 3 - CUSTOMER’S OBLIGATIONS

Section 3.01.  Access to Premises. Customer shall provide
Trane with access to the Premises, with or without prior notice
to Customer, to inspect for Trane’s benefit the component
parts of the Services installed on the Premises and/or to
validate Customer’s performance of its responsibilities.

Section 3.02.  Representations and Warranties of
Customer. Customer hereby warrants and represents to
Trane that:

(a) Customer has furnished, or caused others to furnish,
and, for the Term hereof, will continue to furnish to Trane,
promptly as information becomes available, accurate and
complete data concerning energy usage for and other
information pertaining to the Premises, including but not
limited to the following:

• utility records for the 36-month period preceding the date
hereof and throughout the Term;

• occupancy and usage information, including current
representative tenant leases, for the 36-month period
preceding the date hereof and throughout the Term;

• written surveys or descriptions of heating, cooling,
lighting or other systems or energy requirements and any
changes thereto;

• descriptions of all energy consuming or saving
equipment used on or affecting the Premises;

• any energy or environmental audits relating to all or any
part of the Premises;

• any service or maintenance agreement(s) regarding any
heating, cooling, lighting or other building systems, or
part thereof;

• construction drawings (“as-builts”) in existence as of the
date hereof or developed during the Term hereof; and

• a description of energy management procedures
presently utilized by Customer for the Premises and any
revisions thereto.

(b) Customer has provided Trane with all records
heretofore requested by Trane and the information set forth
therein is, and all information in other records to be
subsequently provided pursuant to this Agreement will be,
true and accurate in all material respects except as may be
disclosed to Trane by Customer in writing; and

(c) Customer has not entered into any contracts or
agreements with other persons or entities regarding the
provision of energy management services or with regard to
any servicing of any of the energy related equipment located
on the Premises, except as heretofore disclosed to Trane in
writing by Customer; and

(d) During the term of this Agreement, Customer will not
enter into any agreements with other persons or entities
regarding the provision of energy management services or
with regard to any servicing of any of the energy related
equipment furnished by Trane hereunder, without prior written
consent of Trane; and

(e) Customer presently intends to continue to use the
Premises in a manner similar to its present use, except as
may have been disclosed to Trane by Customer in writing;
and

(f) Anything contained in this PACT Agreement to the
contrary notwithstanding, the Board of Education of the City
of Vestavia Hills, Alabama during the term of this Agreement
or any extension thereof, shall have the right to manually
operate the lights on and off at:

(1) The athletic fields at Vestavia Hills Elementary
School East; and

(2) The athletic fields at Vestavia Hills Elementary
School Central; and

(3) The tennis courts at Vestavia Hills High School,
(4) Anything contained in this PACT Agreement to the

contrary notwithstanding, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama
during the term of this Agreement or any extension thereof,
shall have the right to manually operate the lights on and off
at all other affected sites;
and

(g) Customer has disclosed in writing to Trane the
existence and location of all known or suspected asbestos
and other Hazardous Materials on the Premises; and

(h) Customer will provide Trane with copies of any
successor or additional contracts for management or
servicing of preexisting equipment that may be executed from
time to time hereafter within ten (10) days after execution
thereof and information or services under Customer’s control
shall be furnished promptly by Customer; and

(i) the execution, delivery and performance by
Customer of this Agreement does not violate any provision of
law and does not conflict with or result in a breach of any
order, writ, injunction or decree of any court or governmental
instrumentality, domestic or foreign, or Customer’s respective
charter or by-laws or create a default under any agreement,
bond, note or indenture to which Customer is a party or by
which Customer is bound or to which any of Customer’s
property is subject; and Customer has no knowledge of any
facts or circumstances that, but for the passage of time,
would materially, adversely affect either party’s ability to
perform its respective obligations hereunder and, if Customer

87



©2009 Trane All rights reserved PACT Agreement 12-09-09, Trane Project No.: J480612
Confidential andProprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. ™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.

Page 7 of 11

is a governmental entity or instrumentality thereof, Customer
has complied with all laws and regulations relative to
procurement of the Services hereunder; and

(j) the Agreement has been duly authorized, executed
and delivered by Customer, and constitutes the valid and
legally binding obligation of Customer, enforceable in
accordance with its terms, except as may be limited by
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws or
equitable principles of general application relating to or
affecting the enforcement of creditor’s rights and remedies;

(k) Customer shall notify Trane within twenty-four (24)
hours of Customer’s receipt of actual or constructive notice of
(1) any material malfunction in the operation of the equipment
installed or equipment affected by the Services provided
pursuant to this Agreement and/or (2) any interruption or
alteration of the energy supply to the Premises; and

(l) Customer acknowledges and agrees that the
Measurement and Verification will be performed by Trane or
on behalf of Trane by a Trane authorized service provider;
and

(m) Customer is the fee owner of the Premises and the
real estate upon which the Premises are located, with the
exception of the East Elementary School, Central Elementary
School and Vestavia Hills High School, all of which are owned
by the Vestavia Hills Board of Education (the “Board”).
Customer has obtained the written consent of the Board for
the improvements to East Elementary School, Central
Elementary School and Vestavia Hills High School and this
Agreement with respect to such schools.

Section 3.03.  Customer Default. Each of the following
events or conditions shall constitute a default by Customer
and shall give Trane the right to, without an election of
remedies, immediately terminate this Agreement pursuant to
section 3.05.

(1) Any failure by Customer to pay or cause to be paid
amounts due Trane.

(2) Any representation or warranty furnished by
Customer in this Agreement is false or misleading in any
material respect when made;

(3) Any default by Customer under any instrument or
agreement (i) related to the financing or leasing of all or any
part of the Services or equipment hereunder and/or (ii)
granting to any person or entity a security interest in and to
the equipment to be installed or furnished hereunder;

(4) Any failure by Customer to perform or comply with
any material term or condition of this Agreement, including
breach of any covenant contained herein, provided that such
failure continues for forty-five (45) days after written notice to
Customer demanding that such failure be cured or, if cure
cannot be effected in such forty-five (45) days, Customer fails
to promptly begin to cure and diligently proceed to completion
thereof;

(5) Any failure by Customer to pay as and when due the
Measurement and Verification Price and/or any failure by
Customer to perform or comply with any material term or
condition of Exhibit G; or

(6) The commencement of any voluntary or involuntary
proceedings in bankruptcy or receivership by or against
Customer, Customer shall become insolvent, make a general
assignment for the benefit of creditors, or Customer shall fail
to pay its debts as and when they become due.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, in the event of
a default by Customer in its payment obligations hereunder,
upon prior notice to Customer, Trane may enter upon the
Premises where the equipment comprising a part of the
Services is located and disconnect and/or remove the same
without being liable to any suit, action or other proceeding by
the Customer.

Section 3.04.  Trane Default. Each of the following events
or conditions shall constitute a default by Trane and shall give
Customer the right, upon thirty (30) calendar days prior
written notice to Trane, to terminate this Agreement by
delivery of written notice declaring termination, after which, if
Trane has not cured the default within such thirty (30) day
period, Customer may take possession of the site together
with all materials thereon, and move to complete the Services
itself expediently.  If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price
exceeds the expense of finishing the Services, the excess
shall be paid to Trane, but if the expense exceeds the unpaid
balance, Trane shall pay the difference to Customer upon
demand by Customer:

(1) Any representation or warranty furnished by
Trane in this Agreement is false or misleading in any material
respect when made;

(2) Any failure by Trane to perform or comply
with any material term or condition of this Agreement,
including breach of any covenant contained herein, provided
that such failure continues for thirty (30) days after written
notice to Trane demanding that such failure be cured or, if
cure cannot be effected in such thirty (30) days, Trane fails to
promptly begin to cure and diligently proceed to completion
thereof; or

(3) The commencement of any voluntary or
involuntary proceedings in bankruptcy or receivership by or
against Trane, Trane becomes insolvent, or Trane makes a
general assignment for the benefit of creditors.

Trane’s liability to Customer under the Guarantee shall be
limited to energy savings guaranteed in connection with
energy conservation measures that are completely installed
by Trane (or by Customer in accordance with the
specifications and requirements hereof, and/or prepared on
behalf of Trane for the same, and Trane reasonably accepts
the work) and such savings shall be determined in
accordance with the appropriate Guarantee exhibit and
generally accepted engineering principles.  In the event
Customer proceeds to complete the Services, it shall
complete the same on or before the expiration of sixty (60)
calendar days after the effective date of the termination of this
Agreement by Customer.

Section 3.05.  Termination.  Termination of this Agreement
will be effectuated by delivery of written notice by the party
seeking termination declaring termination, upon which event
a) Customer shall be liable to Trane for all Services furnished
to date and any damages sustained by Trane, including lost

88



©2009 Trane All rights reserved PACT Agreement 12-09-09, Trane Project No.: J480612
Confidential andProprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. ™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.

Page 8 of 11

profits and the price of any specially manufactured items,
whether in production or delivered; and b) Trane shall have
no further obligation to Customer under this Agreement.  Any
termination under this Agreement not based on a default
provision shall be deemed a termination for convenience.

ARTICLE 4 - INSURANCE

Section 4.01.  Trane’s Liability Insurance. Trane shall
purchase from and maintain, without interruption from the
commencement of the Services throughout the Term, a
Commercial General Liability policy, Worker’s Compensation
and Employer’s Liability policy and Commercial Automobile
Liability policy, through a company or companies rated A VIII
or better by A.M. Best Company, with the following limits:
Commercial General Liability       $2,000,000 per occurrence
Automobile Liability                      $2,000,000 CSL
Workers Compensation               Statutory Limits
Trane will name Customer as an additional insured under
Trane’s insurance policy subject to Trane’s manuscript
additional insured endorsement under its primary Commercial
General Liability policies.
Section 4.02.  Customer’s Liability and Property
Insurance. (a) Customer shall be responsible for purchasing
and maintaining Commercial General Liability Insurance of
the type and amount Customer deems necessary and
appropriate.

(b) Customer shall purchase and maintain (until the later
of the date of issuance of the Certificate of Final Completion
and the date of Customer’s Final Payment) property
insurance for the installation work in progress at least in an
amount equal to the Contract Price, as the same may be
adjusted from time to time, for the installation work (including
the equipment) on a replacement cost basis from an insurer
reasonably acceptable to Trane.  Such property insurance
shall include the interests of Customer, Trane, and its
subcontractors (at whatever tier) as additional insureds as
their interests may appear. The property insurance purchased
by Customer shall be on an all-risk policy form

(c) A loss insured under Customer’s property insurance
shall be adjusted by Customer’s Insurer as a fiduciary and
made payable to Customer as a fiduciary for the insureds, as
their respective interests may appear, subject to requirements
of any applicable mortgagee clause.  Trane shall pay its
subcontractors their just shares of insurance proceeds
received by Customer and remitted to Trane, and, by
appropriate agreements, written where legally required for
validity, shall require said subcontractors to make payments
to their subcontractors in a similar manner.  In its fiduciary
role, Customer shall have the power to negotiate and settle a
loss with insurers; provided, however, that at least ten (10)
days prior to agreeing to the proposed settlement, Customer
shall advise the parties in interest in writing of the terms of the
same and the parties in interest shall have seven (7) days
thereafter to object in writing to the proposed adjustment or
settlement; if such objection is made, Customer shall not
enter into or agree to the proposed adjustment or settlement
and the parties shall proceed to resolve the disagreement.

Section 4.03.  Customer’s Loss of Use/Business
Interruption Insurance. Customer may purchase and

maintain insurance to protect against loss of use of
Customer’s property or business interruption due to fire or
other commonly insured hazards, however such fire or
hazards may be caused.  Customer acknowledges that Trane
is not required to purchase or maintain such insurance
against the loss of use of Customer’s property or business
interruption. CUSTOMER HEREBY WAIVES ALL CLAIMS
AND CAUSES OF ACTION IT MAY HAVE AGAINST TRANE
AND ANY OF ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, AGENTS,
EMPLOYEES, AND OFFICERS FOR LOSS OF USE OF
CUSTOMER’S PROPERTY OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION,
WHETHER INSURED OR NOT, INCLUDING
CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, OR OTHER
DAMAGES DUE TO SUCH HAZARDS, REGARDLESS OF
CAUSE.

Section 4.04.  Evidence of Insurance. Customer and Trane
shall furnish to the other certificate(s) of insurance prior to
commencement of performance of any Services, evidencing
the coverages and limits required to be maintained under this
Agreement.  Such certificate(s) shall contain a provision that
coverages afforded under the policies will not be canceled or
allowed to expire until at least thirty (30) days prior written
notice has been given to the other party.  The certificate(s)
shall name the other party as an “additional insured" to the
extent of the indemnity obligation assumed by the insured
party under this Agreement.  Neither the procurement nor
maintenance of any type of insurance by Customer shall in
any way be construed or deemed to limit, waive, or release
Customer from any of the obligations and risks of Customer
under this Agreement, or to be a limitation on the nature and
extent of such obligations and risks.

ARTICLE 5 - HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Section 5.01.  Asbestos And Hazardous Materials. Except
as expressly stated in Exhibit B, Trane’s Services expressly
exclude any work connected or associated with Hazardous
Materials. Hazardous Material means any pollutant,
contaminant, toxic or hazardous substance, material or
waste, any dangerous, potentially dangerous, noxious,
flammable, explosive, reactive or radioactive substance,
material or waste, urea formaldehyde, asbestos, asbestos-
containing materials (“ACM’s”), polychlorinated biphenyl
(“PCB”), and any other substance, the manufacture,
preparation, production, generation, use, maintenance,
treatment, storage, transport, disposal, handling, or
ownership of which is regulated, restricted, or prohibited,  by
any federal, state, or local statute, law, ordinance, code, rule
or regulation now or at any time hereafter in effect, and as
may be amended from time to time, including but not limited
to, the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation, and Liability Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 et seq.),
the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act (49 U.S.C. §§
1801 et seq.), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
(42 U.S.C. §§ 6901 et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act (33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 et seq.),  the Clean Air Act
(42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq.), the Toxic Substances Control
Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. §§ 2601 et seq.), and the
Occupational Safety and Health Act (29 U.S.C. §§ 651 et
seq.).

Trane shall not perform any identification, abatement,
cleanup, removal, transport, treatment, storage or disposal of
Hazardous Materials on Customer’s premises.  Customer
warrants and represents that, except as expressly, and by

89



©2009 Trane All rights reserved PACT Agreement 12-09-09, Trane Project No.: J480612
Confidential andProprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. ™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.

Page 9 of 11

reference to this Section, set forth in Exhibit C (Description of
Premises) or Exhibit F (Hazardous Materials), there are no
Hazardous Materials on the Premises in areas within which
Trane will be performing any part of the Services or Customer
has disclosed to Trane the existence and location of any
Hazardous Materials in all areas within which Trane will be
performing any part of the Services.  Trane’s responsibility, if
any, for any Hazardous Materials, shall be limited to and as
expressly set forth in Exhibit F and Customer shall, at all
times, be and remain the owner and generator of any and all
Hazardous Materials on the Customer’s premises and
responsible for compliance with all laws and regulations
applicable to such Hazardous Materials.

Should Trane become aware of or suspect the presence
of Hazardous Materials in the course of performing the
Services that are not disclosed in Exhibits B, C or F, or which
present or may present a hazard to or endanger health
welfare or safety, Trane shall have the right to immediately
stop work in the affected area and shall notify Customer.
Customer will be responsible for taking any and all action
necessary to remove or render harmless the Hazardous
Materials in accordance with all applicable laws and
regulations.  Trane shall be required to resume performance
of the Services in the affected area only in the absence of
Hazardous Materials or when the affected area has been
rendered harmless; if the area has not been or cannot be
rendered harmless within thirty (30) days of discovery of the
Hazardous Material, Trane may terminate this Agreement
pursuant to Section 3.05. Customer shall compensate Trane
for any additional costs incurred by Trane as a result of work
stoppage, including demobilization and remobilization.  In
addition to any other indemnity obligation of Customer to
Trane, to the maximum extent permitted by law, Customer
shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Trane, its officers,
directors, beneficiaries, shareholders, partners, agents,
representatives, and employees (collectively referred to as
“Trane” for purposes of this Article 5) and Trane’s
subcontractors from all fines, suits, actions, claims, penalties,
and proceedings of every kind, and all costs associated
therewith (including attorneys’ and consultants’ fees) arising
out of or in any way connected with or related to: (1) any leak,
deposit, spill, discharge, or release or disposal of Hazardous
Materials in connection with the performance of this
Agreement, except to the extent such Hazardous Materials
were brought onto the Premises by Trane; and/or (2)
Customer’s failure to identify and disclose Hazardous
Materials and to fully comply with all federal, state, and local
statutes, laws ordinances, codes, rules and regulation now or
at any time hereafter in effect regarding Hazardous Materials.

ARTICLE 6 - INDEMNIFICATION AND
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

Section 6.01.  Indemnification. To the maximum extent
permitted by law, Trane and Customer shall indemnify and
hold each other and all respective officers, directors, affiliates,
shareholders, and employees harmless from any and all
actions, costs, expenses, damages and liabilities, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees, resulting from death or bodily
injury or damage to property of the other or other persons, to
the extent arising out of or resulting from the negligence of
their respective employees or other authorized agents in
connection with the Premises.  Neither party shall be required
to indemnify the other against actions, costs, expenses,
damages and liabilities to the extent attributable to the acts or

omissions of the other party.  If the parties are both at fault
hereunder, then any obligation to indemnify shall be
proportional to their relative fault.  The duty to indemnify will
continue in full force and effect, notwithstanding the expiration
or early termination of this Agreement, with respect to any
claims based on facts or conditions that occurred prior to
expiration or termination. In the event one party hereto knows
or has reason to believe that the other party will be required,
in connection with this Agreement, by any court or
governmental administrative agency to respond to any legal
action or other directive by such authorities, such party shall
immediately notify the other in writing of the same.

Section  6.02. Limitation of Liability.
NOTWITHSTANDING ANY PROVISION TO THE
CONTRARY, NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE
OTHER FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION
LOST REVENUE OR PROFITS) OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES
REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH LIABILITY ARISES
FROM BREACH OF CONTRACT, TORT OR ANY OTHER
THEORY. IN NO EVENT SHALL TRANE BE LIABLE FOR
ANY DAMAGES (WHETHER DIRECT OR INDIRECT)
RESULTING FROM MOLD, FUNGUS, BACTERIA,
MICROBIAL GROWTH, OR OTHER CONTAMINATES OR
AIRBORNE BIOLOGICAL AGENTS.

ARTICLE 7 - WARRANTY

Section 7.01.  Workmanship and Equipment Warranty.
Trane warrants that, for a period of one year from the date of
Final Completion (the “Warranty Period”), Trane-
manufactured equipment installed hereunder and the
installation work included within the Services (i) shall be free
from defects in material, manufacture, and workmanship and
(ii) shall have the capacities and ratings set forth in Trane’s
catalogs and bulletins.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, with
respect to selected equipment to be identified in Exhibit B.1
(Certificate of Substantial Completion and Acceptance),
Trane shall have the option of commencing the warranty
period upon the later of (a) the date of initial startup of such
selected equipment and (b) the date of Substantial
Completion set forth in Section 2.02. Trane obligations of
equipment start-up, if any are stated in the Proposal, are
coterminous with the Warranty period. For Trane-
manufactured equipment not installed by Trane the Warranty
Period is the lesser of 12 months from initial start-up or 18
months from the date of shipment.  Equipment and/or parts
that are not manufactured by Trane are not warranted by
Trane and have such warranties as may be extended by the
respective manufacturer.  If such defect in Trane-
manufactured equipment or the installation work is discovered
within the Warranty Period, Trane will correct the defect or
furnish replacement equipment (or, at its option, parts
therefor) and, if said Trane-manufactured equipment was
installed pursuant hereto, labor associated with the
replacement of parts or equipment not conforming to this
warranty.  No liability whatsoever shall attach to Trane until
said equipment and Services have been paid for in full and
then said liability shall be limited to Trane’s cost to correct the
defective equipment or work and/or the purchase price of the
equipment shown to be defective.  Trane’s warranties
expressly exclude any remedy for damage or defect caused
by corrosion, erosion, or deterioration, abuse, modifications
or repairs not performed by Trane, improper operation, or

90



©2009 Trane All rights reserved PACT Agreement 12-09-09, Trane Project No.: J480612
Confidential andProprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. ™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.

Page 10 of 11

normal wear and tear under normal usage.  Trane shall not
be obligated to pay for the cost of lost refrigerant.

The foregoing does not apply to Maintenance and the
warranties for Maintenance (if any) are separately stated on
Exhibit G of this Agreement.

THE WARRANTY AND LIABILITY SET FORTH IN THIS
SECTION ARE IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES
AND LIABILITIES, WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR IN
NEGLIGENCE, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, IN LAW OR IN
FACT, INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
USE OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. IN NO
EVENT SHALL TRANE BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL,
INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL (INCLUDING WITHOUT
LIMITATION LOST PROFITS), OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES.
NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS OF PURPOSE IS MADE
REGARDING PREVENTION BY THE SCOPE OF
SERVICES, OR ANY COMPONENT THEREOF, OF MOLD,
FUNGUS, BACTERIA, MICROBIAL GROWTH, OR ANY
OTHER CONTAMINATES. TRANE SPECIFICALLY
DISCLAIMS ANY LIABILITY IF THE SCOPE OF SERVICES
OR ANY COMPONENT THEREOF IS USED TO PREVENT
OR INHIBIT THE GROWTH OF SUCH MATERIALS.

ARTICLE 8 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 8.01. Assignment. Customer may not assign,
transfer, or convey this Agreement, or any part hereof, or its
right, title or interest herein, without the written consent of
Trane, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or
delayed. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties’ respective
successors and assigns.

Section 8.02.  Applicable Law and Jurisdiction. This
Agreement is made and shall be interpreted and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the state in which the project is
located. Customer hereby consents and submits to the
personal jurisdiction of the courts of the state where the
project is located and of the United States District Court in
such state and to being sued, whether in the state where the
project is located or elsewhere.

Section 8.03.  Complete Agreement. This Agreement and
the Exhibits attached hereto, together with any documents
expressly incorporated herein by reference, shall constitute
the entire Agreement between both parties regarding the
subject matter hereof. There are no agreements,
understandings, or covenants between the parties of any
kind, expressed or implied, oral or otherwise pertaining to the
Services that have not been set forth in this Agreement. Any
Proposals furnished by Trane prior to execution of this
Agreement were for negotiation purposes only and shall not
constitute legally binding commitments. This Agreement may
not be amended, modified or terminated except by a writing
signed by the parties hereto. The energy audit authored by
Trane and/or its consultant(s), including any summaries,
excerpts, and abstracts thereof (collectively, the “Energy
Audit”), are used to show operational and consumption data
and calculations and projections regarding savings, but do
not reflect the savings guaranteed by Trane; in the event of

any conflict or contradiction between the Energy Audit and
the provisions of this Agreement and its Exhibits, the
provisions of this Agreement and its Exhibits shall govern.

Section 8.04.  Force Majeure. Neither party shall be
considered to be in default hereunder when a failure of
performance (other than Customer’s obligation to make
payment to Trane) is due to an Event of Force Majeure.  An
"Event of Force Majeure" shall mean any cause or event
beyond the control of the party.  Without limiting the
foregoing, “Event of Force Majeure” includes: acts of God;
acts of terrorism, war or the public enemy; flood; earthquake;
tornado; storm; fire; civil disobedience; pandemic
insurrections; riots; labor disputes; labor or material
shortages; sabotage; restraint by court order or public
authority (whether valid or invalid), and action or non-action
by or inability to obtain or keep in force the necessary
governmental authorizations, permits, licenses, certificates or
approvals if not caused by the fault of the party.  If either party
is rendered unable to fulfill any of its obligations under this
Agreement by reason of an Event of Force Majeure it shall
give prompt written notice of such fact to the other and the
obligated party obligations shall be suspended until removal
of the Event of Force Majeure. If either party shall be unable
to carry out any material obligation under this Agreement due
to Event of Force Majeure, this Agreement shall, at the
election of either party: (i) remain in effect but the parties’
obligations shall be suspended until the uncontrollable event
terminates; or (ii) be terminated upon ten (10) calendar days
notice to the other party, pursuant Section 3.05.

Section 8.05.  Further Documents. The parties shall timely
execute and deliver all documents and perform all further acts
that may be reasonably necessary to effectuate the
provisions of this Agreement.

Section 8.06.  Severability. If any term or conditions of this
Agreement is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced by
any rule of law, all other terms and conditions of this
Agreement will nevertheless remain in full force and effect so
long as the economic or legal substance of the transaction
contemplated hereby is not affected in a manner adverse to
any party hereto. Upon any such determination of invalidity,
illegality or unenforceability, the parties hereto shall negotiate
in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to affect the
original intent of the parties as closely as possible in an
acceptable manner, to the end that the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement are consummated to the
extent possible.

Section 8.07.  Signatures in Counterpart. This Agreement
may be executed in several counterparts, each of which when
executed shall be deemed to be an original, but all together
shall constitute but one and the same Agreement.  A
facsimile copy hereof shall suffice as an original.

Section 8.08. Neutral Interpretation. The form of this
Agreement has been prepared initially by Trane.  However,
the parties acknowledge that this is a negotiated Agreement
and, in the event of any dispute over its meaning or
application, this Agreement shall be interpreted fairly and
reasonably and neither more strongly for, nor more strongly
against, either party.

Section 8.09.  Bonds. Trane shall furnish payment and
performance bonds equal to 100% of the Contract Price.

91



©2009 Trane All rights reserved PACT Agreement 12-09-09, Trane Project No.: J480612
Confidential andProprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. ™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.

Page 11 of 11

Such bonds shall not cover any warranties beyond one year
from completion of the installation. Trane will provide a
Guaranteed Energy Savings ("GES Bond") for one year
beginning on the date of Final Completion, in an amount
equal to the annual Guaranteed Energy Savings calculated
pursuant to Exhibit E of this Agreement. Customer shall pay
Trane for the actual cost of the GES Bond annually in
advance, which cost is not included in and is in addition to the
Contract Price. The GES Bond shall be renewed annually
during the term of this Agreement and at the Customer’s
expense, subject to the following limitation. The GES Bond is
a surety product currently made available to energy savings
performance contractors. Therefore, Trane’s ability to provide
the initial GES Bond, and annual renewals thereto, is subject
to availability of this surety product in the commercial
marketplace through Trane’s usual bonding company
relationship. In the event Trane is unable to obtain the GES
bond in any given year, Trane shall provide written notice of
that fact to Customer. The parties acknowledge that
availability of the GES Bond surety product is a circumstance
beyond Trane’s control.

Section 8.10 Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. Should either
party employ an attorney to institute suit or demand
arbitration to enforce any of the provisions hereof to protect
its interests in any manner arising under this Agreement, or to
recover on a surety bond furnished by a party to this
Agreement

92



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit A , Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Page 1 of 1

Customer will make payments to Trane at the times and in the amounts set forth in the following
schedule:

Milestone Payment Due

Initial Payment Upon Execution of Notice to
Proceed (NTP) by Customer $820,000.00

30 days after NTP - Monthly Payment $615,000.00

60 days after NTP - Monthly Payment $615,000.00

90 days after NTP - Monthly Payment $410,000.00

120 days after NTP - Monthly Payment $410,000.00

150 days after NTP - Final Payment $410,000.00

180 days after NTP - Final Payment $410,000.00

210 days after NTP - Final Payment $205,000.00

240 days after NTP - Final Payment $205,000.00

Total Payments $4,100,000.00

EXHIBIT A
Payment Schedule

93



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 1 of 13

The Services are defined as the following:

Trane will furnish and install the sports lighting as defined in this scope of work
.
The lighting materials are as manufactured by Musco Lighting and will include the systems described

below:

Light Structure Green™ System delivered to your site in Five Easy Pieces™
• Pre-cast concrete bases (where applicable)
• Galvanized steel poles (where applicable)
• UL Listed remote electrical component enclosures
• Pole length wire harness
• Factory-aimed and assembled luminaries

Sports Cluster Green™
• Factory aimed and assembled pole top luminaire assemblies
• 1500-watt metal halide fixtures
• UL Listed remote electrical component enclosures
• Mounting hardware for the pole top units and electrical component enclosures
• Pole length wire harness
• Disconnects

Control Link® Control & Monitoring System for flexible control and solid management of your lighting
system on facilities with new LightStructure Green installations. Controls will be installed on all other
facilities.
Lighting Contactors sized for the voltages available at the site.

The sports lighting will be installed at the following facilities:

EXHIBIT B
Scope of Services

• Wald Park Sports Lighting
o - Baseball Fields (5)
o - Pool
o - Tennis Courts

• Cahaba Heights Sports Lighting
• Liberty Park Sports Lighting
• Central Elementary School

Sports Lighting
• East Elementary School Sports

Lighting
• Vestavia Hills High School

Tennis Lights (6 courts)

94



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 2 of 13

The detailed scope of work for each facility is as follows:

Wald Park Baseball Fields
• Remove 219 existing fixtures
• Replace existing fixtures with 128 new Musco SCG fixtures
• Utilize 17 existing concrete poles
• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 3, manufacturer’s guaranteed Light levels of 50 foot

candles on the infields and 30 foot candles on the outfields of all  5 fields
• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 2, manufacturer’s 10 year warranty on all equipment

and two year warranty on all lamps.   Year one of lamp warranty will include all lamps and labor
cost.    Year two of lamp warranty will only include lamps.

• Provide Controls for scheduling and on/off of the lighting system.

Additional details of the scope of work to be provided are as follows:
• Provide Project Management and assistance as needed.
• Provide required Musco Sports Cluster Green equipment.
• Provide Stamped Electrical plans from Licensed EE in the State of Alabama
• Remove fence as necessary to access fields.
• Remove and dispose of existing lighting fixtures, lamps, electrical enclosures, platforms, and

cross arms on (17) concrete poles.  This will include the recycling of lamps, aluminum reflectors,
ballast and steel as necessary.

• Leave the existing grounding wires and power feed in place for reattachment to the new SCG
product.

• Locate source of loop feed for track lighting and install disconnect, time clock and contactor for
control.

• Provide storage containers for materials (including ballast boxes) as needed and waste disposal.
• Provide adequate security to protect Musco delivered products from theft, vandalism or damage

during the installation.
• Provide equipment and materials to off load equipment at jobsite per scheduled delivery.
• Ground the new product on poles per the NFPA 780 code.  This will include grounding of the

electrical enclosures and remote light fixture cross arms.
• Install Musco electrical enclosures and (128) SCG fixtures on (17) existing poles. This will be for

field lighting, track, and parking lighting and pool lighting on C2 pole (Remove steps if required to
mount ballast boxes.)

• Install wiring from secondary of each pole mounted transformer to new electrical enclosures
Segregate secondary wiring  from the primary wiring inside of pole for SB and track lighting  on 4
wagon wheel  SB fields,.  (note: track lighting on outfield poles on wagon wheel is loop fed from
separate 240V source and have panel at base of poles.

• At single SB field, install wiring from existing 240V panel box on each pole, to new electrical
enclosures. Terminate all wiring.

• Provide materials and equipment to wire and terminate ballasts to SCG fixtures, segregating
fixture wires from primary wiring inside of pole.

• Provide equipment and materials to install and wire (2) new Control Link Retrofit units to control
OCB switching  as required (1 in concession building of wagon wheel , and 1 in press box on
single field.) These will not control tracking lighting.

• Provide materials and equipment to mount the (2) Musco Supplied Surge Protection Devices to
the distribution panel and terminate necessary wiring.

• Provide dedicated 2P30A   breaker in distribution panel (Voltage to be determined) for surge
protection device.

95



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 3 of 13

• Commission Control Link by contacting control-Link Central (877-347-3319) and going through
the following steps:

o -Check all zones to make sure they work in both auto and manual mode.
o -1 hour comprehensive burn of the lights on each zone.

• Keep all heavy equipment off of playing fields.  Repair damage to grounds, Ruts and sod
damage caused by equipment traveling over wet grounds would be an example of damage
requiring repair.

• Jobsite to be returned to condition substantially existing prior to construction of lighting system.
• Obtain any required building or electrical permitting

Customer Responsibilities:
• Reasonable access to the site for construction, including closing of the roads and moving cars out

of parking areas to allow subcontractor to work on poles as needed.
• Locate existing underground utilities, irrigation lines, sprinkler heads as requested by Trane
• All necessary environmental permitting
• Structural inspection and signed drawings if required.
• Remove vegetation as needed to access poles.
• Trane will have to access fields to change lighting.
• Turnoff sprinklers 48 hours prior to the start of re installation to prevent ruts on soft field.
• Owner responsible for any utility company fees and requirements.

Wald Park Swimming Pool
• Remove 9 existing fixtures and 2 existing poles
• Replace existing fixtures with 14 Musco SCG fixtures
• Install 2 new concrete poles for the new fixtures
• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 3, manufacturer’s guaranteed Light levels of 40 foot

candles
• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 1, manufacturer’s 25 year maintenance free warranty

Additional details of the scope of work to be provided are as follows:
• Provide required poles, fixtures, and foundations.
• Provide layout of pole locations and aiming diagram.
• Provide Project Management as required.
• Provide stamped foundation designs based on 2500psf soils.
• Provide Stamped Electrical plans from Licensed EE in the State of Alabama
• Remove Fencing as needed to access pool area.
• Provide plywood to protect pool deck from damage from heavy equipment if access to that area is

required.
• Remove and dispose of the existing lighting fixtures, and electrical enclosures as required. (2)

Fixtures are on (1) existing 30’ pole which needs to be removed. And 2 fixtures are on tennis
court wooden pole. This will include the recycling of lamps, aluminum reflectors, ballast and steel
as necessary.

• Provide equipment and materials to off load equipment at jobsite per scheduled delivery.
• Provide storage containers for material, (including ballast boxes), as necessary and waste

disposal.
• Provide stamped electrical plans for Musco to review prior to fabrication.
• Provide materials and equipment to install new panel if needed and LCC cabinet in Pump room.

Feed 2 new poles and pole fixtures on existing C pole.
• Provide materials and equipment to mount the Musco Supplied Surge Protection Device to the

distribution panel and terminate necessary wiring

96



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 4 of 13

• Provide dedicated breaker in distribution panel for surge protection device Provide materials and
equipment to install all underground conduit, wiring, pull boxes etc. and terminate wiring as
required per electrical design.  This will be to 2 new poles and existing C2 pole.

• Provide materials and equipment to install (2) LSS foundations as specified on Layout.
• Provide and install ground rods for lightning protection per NFPA 780 Code, NEC Section 250,

and local building codes.  Poles 75’or shorter should use a #2 bare copper conductor to the
ground rod.  Poles taller than 75’ should use a #2/0 bare copper conductor.  For standard clay
soil, the ground rod must not be less than 5/8”x 8’ long, driven vertically into the soil until point is
10’ below grade.  Ground rods must be installed in soil, not in the concrete backfill.  Measure
resistance per NEC 250.56.  If greater than 25 ohms, then install 2nd ground rod.  Ground
conductor to be attached by exothermic fusion welding.

• Remove spoils to owner designated location at jobsite.
• Provide materials and equipment to assemble (13) LSG fixtures and terminate all necessary

wiring. (9) Fixtures on new poles, (Steps may need to be removed to install ballast boxes on C
pole.)

• Provide equipment and materials to assemble and erect (2) LSS Poles with steps and cables if
required for access.

• Provide step down transformer for 120v control circuit if not available.
• Commission Control Link by contacting Control Link Central at (877-347-3319) and going through

the following steps:
o -Check all Zones to make sure they work in both auto and manual mode.
o -1 hour comprehensive burn of all lights on each zone.
o -Set base line for the DAS (Diagnostic Acquisition System)

• Keep all heavy equipment off of playing fields.  Repair damage to grounds, Ruts and sod
damage caused by equipment traveling over wet grounds would be an example of damage
requiring repair.

• Jobsite to be returned to condition substantially existing prior to construction of lighting system.
• Provide startup and aiming as required to provide complete and operating sports lighting system.
• Provide as built drawings on completion of installation.
• Obtain any required building or electrical permitting

Customer Responsibilities:
• Complete access to the site for construction using standard 2 wheel drive rubber tire equipment.
• Locate existing underground utilities, irrigation lines, sprinkler heads as requested by Trane.
• Locate and mark field reference points per Musco supplied layout.
• Pay for extra costs associated with foundation excavation in non-standard soils (rock,
• caliche, high water table, collapsing holes, etc.).  Standard soils are defined as soils that
• can be excavated using standard earth auguring equipment.
• Foundation designs are based on level areas. Bases adjacent to slopes may require enhanced

foundations and additional costs.
• Owner responsible for any utility company fees and requirements.
• All necessary environmental permitting
• Provide area on site for disposal of spoils from foundation excavation.

Wald Park Tennis Courts (8 courts)
• Remove 46 existing fixtures and 12 existing poles
• Replace existing fixtures with 24 new Musco SCG fixtures
• Install 8 new poles for the new fixtures
• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 3, manufacturer’s guaranteed light levels of 40 foot

candles
• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 1, manufacturer’s 25 year maintenance free warranty

97



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 5 of 13

Additional details of the scope of work to be provided are as follows:
• Provide required poles, fixtures, and foundations.
• Provide layout of pole locations and aiming diagram.
• Provide Project Management as required.
• Provide stamped foundation designs based on 2500psf soils.
• Provide Stamped Electrical plans from Licensed EE in the State of Alabama
• Remove Fencing as need to access courts.
• Provide plywood to protect courts from damage from heavy equipment.
• Remove and dispose of the existing (46) lighting fixtures, electrical enclosures and transformers

on (12) existing poles.  This will include the recycling of lamps, aluminum reflectors, ballast and
steel as necessary.

• Remove and dispose of 12 existing wooden poles.
• Provide equipment and materials to off load equipment at jobsite per scheduled delivery.
• Provide storage containers for material, (including ballast boxes), as necessary and waste

disposal.
• Provide materials and equipment to install (2) new electrical services and panels as required.
• Provide stamped electrical plans for Musco to review prior to fabrication.
• Provide materials and equipment to mount the (2) Musco Supplied Surge Protection Devices to

the distribution panel and terminate necessary wiring.
• Provide dedicated breaker in distribution panel for each surge protection device.
• Provide materials and equipment to install all underground conduit, wiring, pull boxes etc. and

terminate wiring as required per electrical design.
• Provide materials and equipment to install (8) LSS foundations as specified on Layout.
• Provide and install ground rods for lightning protection per NFPA 780 Code, NEC Section 250,

and local building codes. Poles 75’or shorter should use a #2 bare copper conductor to the
ground rod.  Poles taller than 75’ should use a #2/0 bare copper conductor.  For standard clay
soil, the ground rod must not be less than 5/8”x 8’ long, driven vertically into the soil until point is
10’ below grade.  Ground rods must be installed in soil, not in the concrete backfill.  Measure
resistance per NEC 250.56.  If greater than 25 ohms, then install 2nd ground rod.  Ground
conductor to be attached by exothermic fusion welding.

• Remove spoils to owner designated location at jobsite.
• Provide materials and equipment to assemble (24) LSG fixtures and terminate all necessary

wiring.
• Provide control wiring for (2) Player activated Push Button with Strobe.
• Provide equipment and materials to assemble and erect (8) LSS Poles with steps and cables.
• Provide equipment and materials to install (2) Lighting Contactor Cabinets and terminate all

necessary wiring.
• Provide step down transformer for 120v control circuit if not available.
• Commission Control Link by contacting Control Link Central at (877-347-3319) and going through

the following steps:
o -Check all Zones to make sure they work in both auto and manual mode.
o -1 hour comprehensive burn of all lights on each zone.
o -Set base line for the DAS (Diagnostic Acquisition System)

• Provide startup and aiming as required to provide complete and operating sports lighting system.
• Provide as built drawings on completion of installation.
• Keep all heavy equipment off of playing fields.  Repair damage to grounds, Ruts and sod

damage caused by equipment traveling over wet grounds would be an example of damage
requiring repair.

• Jobsite to be returned to condition substantially existing prior to construction of lighting system.
• Obtain any required building or electrical permitting

Customer Responsibilities:

98



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 6 of 13

• Complete access to the site for construction using standard 2 wheel drive rubber tire equipment.
• Locate existing underground utilities, irrigation lines, sprinkler heads as requested by Trane.
• Locate and mark field reference points per Musco supplied layout.
• Pay for extra costs associated with foundation excavation in non-standard soils (rock,
• caliche, high water table, collapsing holes, etc.).  Standard soils are defined as soils that
• can be excavated using standard earth auguring equipment.
• Foundation designs are based on level areas. Bases adjacent to slopes may require enhanced

foundations and additional costs.
• All necessary environmental permitting
• Owner responsible for any utility company fees and requirements.
• Provide area on site for disposal of spoils from foundation excavation.

Cahaba Heights Athletic Field lighting
• Remove 118 existing fixtures and 24 wood poles
• Replace existing fixtures with 74 new Musco LSG fixtures
• Install 20 new concrete poles for the new fixtures
• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 3, manufacturer’s guaranteed Light levels of 50 foot

candles on the infield and 30 foot candles on the outfield on Kelly, Reese and Fox field.  On Moss
Field  30 foot candles will be guaranteed.

• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 1, manufacturer’s 25 year maintenance free warranty

Additional details of the scope of work to be provided are as follows:
• Provide required poles, fixtures, and foundations.
• Provide layout of pole locations and aiming diagram.
• Provide Project Management as required.
• Provide stamped foundation designs based on 2500psf soils.
• Provide Stamped Electrical plans from Licensed EE in the State of Alabama.
• Remove and dispose of the existing (118) lighting fixtures, electrical enclosures and transformers

on (24) existing poles.  This will include the recycling of lamps, aluminum reflectors, ballast and
steel as necessary.

• Provide equipment and materials to off load equipment at jobsite per scheduled delivery.
• Provide storage containers for material, (including ballast boxes),  as necessary and waste

disposal.
• Provide adequate security to protect Musco delivered products from theft, vandalism or damage

during the installation.
• Provide materials and equipment to install new services where required for new ball fields. Demo

or revamping of existing services may be required.
• Provide materials and equipment to mount the Musco Supplied Surge Protection Device to the

distribution panel and terminate necessary wiring.
• Provide dedicated 3P 30A breaker in distribution panel for surge protection device.
• Provide materials and equipment to install all underground conduit, wiring, pull boxes etc. and

terminate wiring as required per electrical design.
• Provide materials and equipment to install (20) LSS foundations as specified on Layout.
• Provide and install ground rods for lightning protection per NFPA 780 Code, NEC Section 250,

and local building codes.  Poles 75’or shorter should use a #2 bare copper conductor to the
ground rod.  Poles taller than 75’ should use a #2/0 bare copper conductor.  For standard clay
soil, the ground rod must not be less than 5/8”x 8’ long, driven vertically into the soil until point is
10’ below grade.  Ground rods must be installed in soil, not in the concrete backfill.  Measure
resistance per NEC 250.56.  If greater than 25 ohms, then install 2nd ground rod.  Ground
conductor to be attached by exothermic fusion welding.

• Remove spoils to owner designated location at jobsite.

99



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 7 of 13

• Provide materials and equipment to assemble (76) LSG fixtures and terminate all necessary
wiring.

• Provide equipment and materials to assemble and erect (20) LSS Poles.
• Provide equipment and materials to install (2) Lighting Contactor Cabinets and terminate all

necessary wiring.
• Provide step down transformer for 120v control circuit if not available.
• Commission Control Link by contacting Control Link Central at (877-347-3319) and going through

the following steps:
o -Check all Zones to make sure they work in both auto and manual mode.
o -1 hour comprehensive burn of all lights on each zone.
o -Set base line for the DAS (Diagnostic Acquisition System)

• Provide startup and aiming as required to provide complete and operating sports lighting system.
• Provide as built drawings on completion of installation.
• Keep all heavy equipment off of playing fields.  Repair damage to grounds, Ruts and sod

damage caused by equipment traveling over wet grounds would be an example of damage
requiring repair.

• Jobsite to be returned to condition substantially existing prior to construction of lighting system.
• Obtain any required building or electrical permitting

Customer Responsibilities:
• Complete access to the site for construction using standard 2 wheel drive rubber tire equipment.
• Locate existing underground utilities, irrigation lines, sprinkler heads as requested by Trane.
• Locate and mark field reference points per Musco supplied layout.
• Pay for extra costs associated with foundation excavation in non-standard soils (rock,
• caliche, high water table, collapsing holes, etc.).  Standard soils are defined as soils that
• can be excavated using standard earth auguring equipment.
• Foundation designs are based on level areas. Bases adjacent to slopes may require enhanced

foundations and additional costs.
• Owner responsible for any utility company fees and requirements.
• All necessary environmental permitting
• Provide area on site for disposal of spoils from foundation excavation.

Liberty Park Sports Lighting  (ball fields and soccer fields)
• Remove 752 existing fixtures from the existing 50 concrete poles
• Replace existing fixtures with 395 new Musco SCG fixtures
• Utilize existing 50 concrete poles
• Manufacturer’s guaranteed light levels of 50 foot candles on the infield and 30 foot candles on the

outfield for all baseball /softball field.
• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 3, manufacturer’s guaranteed light levels of 30 foot

candles on the soccer fields.
• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 2, manufacturer’s 10 year warranty on all equipment

and two year warranty on all lamps; year one of lamp warranty will include all lamps and labor
cost; year two will only include lamp cost.

• Provide controls for scheduling and controlling on/off of the lighting system.

Additional details of the scope of work to be provided are as follows:
• Provide Project Management and assistance as needed.
• Provide required Musco Sports Cluster Green equipment.
• Provide Stamped Electrical plans from Licensed EE in the State of Alabama
• Remove fence as necessary to access fields.
• Straighten 2 leaning poles on soccer field.

100



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 8 of 13

• Remove and dispose of (752) existing lighting fixtures, lamps, electrical enclosures, platforms and
cross arms on (50) concrete poles.  This will include the recycling of lamps, aluminum reflectors,
ballast and steel as necessary.

• Leave the existing grounding wires and power feed in place for reattachment to the new SCG
product.

• Provide storage containers for materials (including ballast boxes) as needed and waste disposal.
• Provide adequate security to protect Musco delivered products from theft, vandalism or damage

during the installation.
• Provide equipment and materials to off load equipment at jobsite per scheduled delivery.
• Ground the new product on poles per the NFPA 780 code.  This will include grounding of the

electrical enclosures and remote light fixture cross arms.
• Install Musco electrical enclosures and (391) SCG fixtures on (50) existing poles.
• Terminate existing secondary power feed from transformer to new electrical enclosures,

segregating it from the primary wiring inside of pole. Secondary disconnect may need to be
supplied.

• Provide materials and equipment to wire and terminate ballasts to SCG fixtures, segregating
fixture wires from primary wiring inside of pole.

• Provide equipment and materials to install and wire (3) new Control Link Retrofit units. and refeed
OCB’s.(1 in concession building of 4 plex, and 1 in 5 plex concession building, and 1 at soccer
building.)

• Provide materials and equipment to mount the (3) Musco Supplied Surge Protection Devices to
the distribution panel and terminate necessary wiring.

• Provide (3) dedicated 2P30A   breaker in distribution panel (Voltage to be determined) for surge
protection device.

• Commission Control Link by contacting control-Link Central (877-347-3319) and going through
the following steps:

o -Check all zones to make sure they work in both auto and manual mode.
o -1 hour comprehensive burn of the lights on each zone.  .

• Keep all heavy equipment off of playing fields.  Repair damage to grounds, Ruts and sod
damage caused by equipment traveling over wet grounds would be an example of damage
requiring repair.

• Jobsite to be returned to condition substantially existing prior to construction of lighting system.
• Obtain any required building or electrical permitting

Customer Responsibilities:
• Reasonable access to the site for construction, including closing of the roads and moving cars out

of parking areas to allow subcontractor to work on poles as needed.
• Locate existing underground utilities, irrigation lines, sprinkler heads as requested by Trane
• All necessary environmental permitting
• Structural inspection and signed drawings if required.
• Remove vegetation as needed to access poles.
• Trane will have to access fields to change lighting.
• Turnoff sprinklers 48 hours prior to the start of re installation to prevent ruts on soft field.
• Owner responsible for any utility company fees and requirements.

�������	
���������	
����� Sports Lighting
Remove 48 existing fixtures from the existing 4 concrete poles
Replace existing fixtures with 28  new Musco SCG fixtures
Utilize existing 4 concrete poles
In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 3, manufacturer’s guaranteed Light Levels  of 30 foot candles

101



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 9 of 13

In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 2, manufacturer’s 10 year warranty on all equipment and two
year warranty on all lamps; year one of lamp warranty will include all lamps and labor cost; year two will
only include lamp cost.
Provide Controls for scheduling and controlling on/off of the lighting system.

Additional details of the scope of work to be provided are as follows:
• Provide Project Management and assistance as needed.
• Provide required Musco Sports Cluster Green equipment.
• Provide Stamped Electrical plans from Licensed EE in the State of Alabama
• Remove and dispose of 48 existing lighting fixtures, lamps, electrical enclosures, and cross arms

on (4) concrete poles.  This will include the recycling of lamps, aluminum reflectors, ballast and
steel as necessary.

• Leave the existing grounding wires and power feed in place for reattachment to the new SCG
product.

• Provide storage containers for materials (including ballast boxes) as needed and waste disposal.
• Provide adequate security to protect Musco delivered products from theft, vandalism or damage

during the installation.
• Provide equipment and materials to off load equipment at jobsite per scheduled delivery.
• Ground the new product on poles per the NFPA 780 code.  This will include grounding of the

electrical enclosures and remote light fixture cross arms.
• Install Musco electrical enclosures and (28) SCG fixtures on (4) existing poles.
• Terminate existing secondary power feed from transformer to new electrical enclosures,

segregating it from the Primary wiring inside of pole. New secondary disconnect may need to be
supplied.

• Provide materials and equipment to wire and terminate ballast to SCG fixtures, segregating
fixture wires from Primary wiring inside of pole.

• Provide service as required in NE corner of field adjacent to service pole to refeed OCB and
provide control circuit for Control Link retrofit unit.

• Provide equipment and materials to install (1) new Control Link Retrofit unit in NE corner of field.
This will control OCB on utility service pole.

• Provide materials and equipment to mount the Musco Supplied Surge Protection Device to the
distribution panel and terminate necessary wiring.

• Provide dedicated 2P30A   breaker in distribution panel (Voltage to be determined) for surge
protection device.

• Commission Control Link by contacting control-Link Central (877-347-3319) and going through
the following steps:

o -Check all zones to make sure they work in both auto and manual mode.
o -1 hour comprehensive burn of the lights on each zone.

• Keep all heavy equipment off of playing fields.  Repair damage to grounds, Ruts and sod
damage caused by equipment traveling over wet grounds would be an example of damage
requiring repair.

• Jobsite to be returned to condition substantially existing prior to construction of lighting system.
• Obtain any required building or electrical permitting

Customer Responsibilities:
• Reasonable access to the site for construction, including closing of the roads and moving cars out

of parking areas to allow subcontractor to work on poles as needed.
• Locate existing underground utilities, irrigation lines, sprinkler heads as requested by Trane
• All necessary environmental permitting
• Structural inspection and signed drawings if required.
• Remove vegetation as needed to access poles.
• Trane will have to access fields to change lighting.

102



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 10 of 13

• Turnoff sprinklers 48 hours prior to the start of re installation to prevent ruts on soft field.
• Owner responsible for any utility company fees and requirements

East Elementary School Sports Lighting
• Remove 72 existing fixtures from the existing 6 concrete poles
• Replace existing fixtures with 30 new Musco SCG fixtures
• Utilize existing 6 concrete poles
• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 3, manufacturer’s guaranteed Light Levels of 30 foot

candles
• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 2, manufacturer’s 10 year warranty on all equipment

and 2 year warranty on all lamps. Year one of lamp warranty will include all lamps and labor cost.
Year two will only include lamps.

• Provide controls for scheduling and controlling on /off of the lighting system.

Additional details of the scope of work to be provided are as follows:
• Provide Project Management and assistance as needed.
• Provide required Musco Sports Cluster Green equipment.
• Provide Stamped Electrical plans from Licensed EE in the State of Alabama.
• Remove and dispose of (72) existing lighting fixtures, lamps, electrical enclosures, platforms, and

cross arms on (6) concrete poles.  This will include the recycling of lamps, aluminum reflectors,
ballast and steel as necessary.

• Leave the existing grounding wires and power feed in place for reattachment to the new SCG
product.

• Provide storage containers for materials (including ballast boxes) as needed and waste disposal.
• Provide adequate security to protect Musco delivered products from theft, vandalism or damage

during the installation.
• Provide equipment and materials to off load equipment at jobsite per scheduled delivery.
• Ground the new product on poles per the NFPA 780 code.  This will include grounding of the

electrical enclosures and remote light fixture cross arms.
• Install Musco electrical enclosures and (30) SCG fixtures on (6) existing poles.
• Terminate existing secondary power feed from transformer to new electrical enclosures,

segregating it from the primary wiring inside of pole. New secondary disconnect may need to be
supplied.

• Provide materials and equipment to wire and terminate ballast to SCG fixtures, segregating
fixture wires from primary wiring inside of pole.

• Provide service as required at manual HV switch location. To feed new OCB and provide control
circuit for Control Link retrofit unit.

• Provide equipment and materials to install (1) new Control Link Retrofit unit near new service.
Install wiring as needed to control new utility installed OCB.

• Provide materials and equipment to mount the Musco Supplied Surge Protection Device to the
distribution panel and terminate necessary wiring.

• Provide dedicated 2P30A   breaker in distribution panel (Voltage to be determined) for surge
protection device.

• Commission Control Link by contacting control-Link Central (877-347-3319) and going through
the following steps:

o -Check all zones to make sure they work in both auto and manual mode.
o - 1 hour comprehensive burn of the lights on each zone.

• Keep all heavy equipment off of playing fields.  Repair damage to grounds,  Ruts and sod
damage caused by equipment traveling over wet grounds would be an example of damage
requiring repair

103



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 11 of 13

• Jobsite to be returned to substantially same condition existing prior to construction of lighting
system.

• Obtain any required building or electrical permitting

Customer Responsibilities:
• Reasonable access to the site for construction, including closing of the roads and moving cars out

of parking areas to allow subcontractor to work on poles as needed.
• Locate existing underground utilities, irrigation lines, sprinkler heads as requested by Trane
• All necessary environmental permitting
• Structural inspection and signed drawings if required.
• Remove vegetation as needed to access poles.
• Trane will have to access fields to change lighting.
• Turnoff sprinklers 48 hours prior to the start of re installation to prevent ruts on soft field.
• Owner responsible for any utility company fees and requirements.

Vestavia Hills Tennis Courts (6 courts)
• Remove 32 existing fixtures and all existing poles
• Replace existing fixtures with 24 new Musco LCG fixtures
• Install 9 new concrete poles for the new fixtures
• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 3, manufacturer’s guaranteed Light Levels of 40 foot

candles
• In accordance with Exhibit B, Attachment 1, manufacturer’s 25 year maintenance free warranty.

Additional details of the scope of work to be provided are as follows:
• Provide required poles, fixtures, and foundations.
• Provide layout of pole locations and aiming diagram.
• Provide Project Management as required.
• Provide stamped foundation designs based on 2500psf soils.
• Provide Stamped Electrical plans from Licensed EE in the State of Alabama
• Remove Fencing as need to access courts.
• Provide plywood to protect courts from damage from heavy equipment.
• Remove and dispose of the existing lighting fixtures and poles on lower courts.  This will include

the recycling of lamps, aluminum reflectors, ballast and steel as necessary.
• Provide equipment and materials to off load equipment at jobsite per scheduled delivery.
• Provide storage containers for material, (including ballast boxes), as necessary and waste

disposal..
• Provide materials and equipment to install (1) new electrical service and panel as required.
• Provide materials and equipment to mount the (1) Musco Supplied Surge Protection Devices to

the distribution panel and terminate necessary wiring.
• Provide dedicated breaker in distribution panel for each surge protection device.
• Provide materials and equipment to install all underground conduit, wiring, pull boxes etc. and

terminate wiring as required per electrical design.
• Provide materials and equipment to install (9) LSS foundations as specified on Layout.
• Provide and install ground rods for lightning protection per NFPA 780 Code, NEC Section 250,

and local building codes.  Poles 75’or shorter should use a #2 bare copper conductor to the
ground rod.  Poles taller than 75’ should use a #2/0 bare copper conductor.  For standard clay
soil, the ground rod must not be less than 5/8”x 8’ long, driven vertically into the soil until point is
10’ below grade.  Ground rods must be installed in soil, not in the concrete backfill.  Measure
resistance per NEC 250.56.  If greater than 25 ohms, then install 2nd ground rod.  Ground
conductor to be attached by exothermic fusion welding.

• Remove spoils to owner designated location at jobsite.

104



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 12 of 13

• Provide materials and equipment to assemble (24) LSG fixtures and terminate all necessary
wiring.

• Provide control wiring for (2) Player activated Push Button with Strobe.
• Provide equipment and materials to assemble and erect (9) LSS Poles with steps and cables.
• Provide equipment and materials to install (1) Lighting Contactor Cabinets and terminate all

necessary wiring.
• Provide step down transformer for 120v control circuit if not available.
• Commission Control Link by contacting Control Link Central at (877-347-3319) and going through

the following steps:
• -Check all Zones to make sure they work in both auto and manual mode.
• -1 hour comprehensive burn of all lights on each zone.
• -Set base line for the DAS (Diagnostic Acquisition System)
• Provide startup and aiming as required to provide complete and operating sports lighting system.
• Provide as built drawings on completion of installation.
• Keep all heavy equipment off of playing fields.  Repair damage to grounds, Ruts and sod

damage caused by equipment traveling over wet grounds would be an example of damage
requiring repair.

• Jobsite to be returned to condition substantially existing prior to construction of lighting system.
• Obtain any required building or electrical permitting

Customer Responsibilities:
• Complete access to the site for construction using standard 2 wheel drive rubber tire equipment.
• Locate existing underground utilities, irrigation lines, sprinkler heads as requested by Trane.
• Locate and mark field reference points per Musco supplied layout.
• Pay for extra costs associated with foundation excavation in non-standard soils (rock,
• caliche, high water table, collapsing holes, etc.).  Standard soils are defined as soils that
• can be excavated using standard earth auguring equipment.
• Foundation designs are based on level areas. Bases adjacent to slopes may require enhanced

foundations and additional costs.
• Owner responsible for any utility company fees and requirements.
• All necessary environmental permitting
• Provide area on site for disposal of spoils from foundation excavation.

Warranties
In accordance with Article 7 of the PACT Agreement, equipment and/or parts that are not manufactured
by Trane are not warranted by Trane and have such warranties as may be extended by the respective
manufacturer.  Thus, the following warranties are extended by the lighting subcontractor, Musco Lighting,
and are between the City of Vestavia Hills and Musco.

• Musco Constant 25™ product assurance and warranty program will be provided for the new Light
Structure Green poles and fixtures equipment.

• Musco 10/2 product assurance and warranty program will be provided for the SportsCluster
Green equipment that will be mounted on existing structures.

Additional details of the above Musco extended warranties are as shown on Attachment 1 (“Musco 25
Year Product Assurance & Warranty“) and Attachment 2 (“Musco 10 Year Warranty”) to this Exhibit B.

Lighting Level Guarantees
All lighting level guarantees stated herein are provided solely by the manufacturer, Musco Lighting, and
are between the City of Vestavia Hills and Musco Lighting. Additional details of the lighting level
guarantees are as shown on Attachment 3 (“Musco Light Level Guarantee”) to this Exhibit B.

Additional Clarifications

105



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 13 of 13

• Shipment of entire project to each of the different park locations
• Voltage and phasing as available at the individual sites – each park built to available voltage
• Structural code and wind speed = 2006 IBC, 90 MPH Exposure C.
• Responsible for structural integrity of Musco poles only – not of poles supplied by others
• Confirmation of pole locations prior to production
• City of Vestavia Hills must provide access to all pole locations for maintenance and warranty

inspection for the entire length of the Trane Contract.
• Permitting fees are not included We request that the fees be waived for work with the City of

Vestavia Hills
• The proposal is based on Customer providing access to the facilities to allow a continuous installation

period.  Should the project require installation in two phases, Trane would reserve the right to request
a price change for additional costs resulting from a two phase installation approach.

106



 25-Year Product Assurance & Warranty Program

Musco Constant 25 ™

©2005, 2012 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC M-1291-enUS-8

Musco Sports Lighting, LLC will provide all materials and labor to maintain operation of your lighting system to original design 
���������	
�����
������
�����������������
����
	��
������������������������������������
��������������
���
����������
�������������������������
����	
���
��

�����
��������������������������
�������

Light
Average Constant Light™ illumination levels are guaranteed through Musco’s Smart Lamp® power regulator and service technology.

Musco will electronically monitor lamp operation and operating hours, and will group re-lamp as described in the Project Details on the 
following page.

���������	
	���

������
����

����
������
���
	���
��������
���
�����������
����
�
���
��������
����
���
�����

�
���
��	�
��
�������		�

impacted. If actual usage exceeds the maximum hours of coverage, the customer will be required to purchase lamp replacements in order 
to maintain the warranty to the end of 25 years. 

Energy Consumption
Average and maximum energy consumptions for your lighting system are guaranteed. Exhibit A provides a 25-year energy cost 
model based upon the customer provided utility rate and anticipated hours of usage. Changes in rates or usage will proportionately 
change the costs.

Monitoring, Maintenance and Control Services
����

���		
�
���
�
���
����
������

�
�
��
	�������
�������
���	�����

��
��
�������
�
���

�
�����
���
	���

�������
��
������

������

that affect playability are detected, Musco will contact you and proactively dispatch technicians. 

On-off control of your lighting system is provided via an easy-to-use web site scheduling system, phone, fax, or email.  Our trained  
Control-Link Central™ service center staff is available toll-free 24/7. Regular usage reports are always available on Control-Link Central’s 
web site.

Spill Light Control
���		
	����
��������
��
���������
	
����
��
���
����������
�

��
�
���
		��
�

���
��	���
��
�����
��
����
!�
������
�
�������
�
�
�
��

project, shown in Exhibit B. 

Structural Integrity
Your project has been designed to  ________________________________________ . 
Structural integrity of equipment manufactured by Musco is guaranteed.

����
������������
	���
�����
��������	����������
	�
�����
�������������������������
��!���"���#$������������������������
��������������������
�����
���
���	����������
	�������������
���%������'����������
����������

�����������
��������������������
�
��������������������	
���������
��������
��

- Page 1 of 3 -

                                                                 Exhibit B
                                                                 Attachment 1
    Musco 25-Year Product Assurance & Warranty 

107



 25-Year Product Assurance & Warranty Program

Musco Constant 25 ™

©2005, 2012 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC M-1291-enUS-8

%�
�����(������
%�
�����)���*� %�
�����)��"��*��

+����*� #��
*� .����*

%�
������$�#
�����*�

(����/�����*�

!�������
�* __________________________________________ 
�����������
����
	��
��������
����"��
�������������
����������

0
����1�������'3������
��*44444444�0
������������'3������
��*44444444

����
���
�����������������������������������
����	
���
��

�����
��������	
��
��*��

- Page 2 of 3 -

Field/Zone
Fixture 

Quantity
Lamp Type/ 
Lamp Hours

Average 
Target 

Constant 
Light Level

Uniformity 
Max/Min

Total 
Relamps 
Included

Estimated 
Annual/25-

Year Estimated 
Usage Hours

Maximum 
Hours of 
Coverage

108



 25-Year Product Assurance & Warranty Program

Musco Constant 25 ™

©2005, 2012 Musco Sports Lighting, LLC M-1291-enUS-8

Service under this Contract is provided by Musco Sports Lighting, LLC (“Musco”) 
or an authorized servicer approved by Musco. Services performed under this 
Contract shall consist of furnishing labor and parts necessary to restore the 
operation of the Covered Product(s) to original design criteria provided such 
service is necessitated by failure of the Covered Product(s) during normal usage. 
This Contract covers Product(s) consisting of Musco’s Green Generation Lighting® 
with Control-Link® and any additional Musco manufactured product as listed on 
page 2.

“We”, “us” and “our” mean Musco. “You” and “your” mean the purchaser of the 
Covered Product(s). No one has the authority to change this Contract without the 
prior written approval of Musco. Musco shall not assume responsibility for their 
agents or assignees other than as described below. If there is a conflict between 
the terms of this Contract and information communicated either orally or in writing 
by one or more of our employees or agents, this Contract shall control.

1�����
����%�
����
��

 1.  1�����"����
�
	�.������*  Control-Link Central operators shall be available 
24/7 via web site, phone, fax, or email. Maintenance service specialists 
shall be available 8AM to 5PM Central Time, and services shall be rendered 
during these same hours in your local time zone, Monday through Friday 
(with the exception of national holidays). Hours of operation are subject to 
change without notice to you. Musco will exercise all reasonable efforts to 
perform service under this Contract, but will not be responsible for delays or 
failure in performing such services caused by adverse weather conditions, 
acts of any government, failure of transportation, accidents, riots, war, labor 
actions or strikes or other causes beyond its control.

 2.  (����������
��
	�7������*  Musco will utilize the field monitoring system 
and any information provided by the customer to determine when the 
usage of the field is materially impacted. From this information, Musco will 
determine needed repair and/or replacement of Covered Product(s) and 
parts. Repair will be with product(s) of like kind and quality.

 3.  8
��� 7�9���������� :����� ����� #
������*  You must meet all electrical 
and installation requirements as specified by the manufacturer. In addition, 
you promise and assure: full cooperation with Musco, Musco’s technicians 
and authorized servicers during telephone diagnosis and repair of the 
Covered Product(s); reasonable accessibility of the Covered Product(s); a 
non-threatening and safe environment for service. 

    You agree to check fuses and to replace fuses as needed. Musco provides 
spare fuses in the lowest alpha-numeric numbered enclosure. Musco will 
replenish spare fuses used.

   You agree to keep your Green Generation Lighting system online. This 
means keeping the required control voltage to the control system at all 
times.  Any deviation from this practice must be discussed with Musco’s 
Warranty Department.

 4.  .������� ;�������
��� <� 0���� #
������� �
��� �
�� �
���*�  Maintenance, 
repair or replacement necessitated by loss or damage resulting from any 
external causes such as, but not limited to, theft, environmental conditions, 
negligence, misuse, abuse, improper electrical/power supply, unauthorized 
repairs by third parties, attachments, damage to cabinetry, equipment 
modifications, vandalism, animal or insect infestation, physical damage 
to Covered Products parts or components, failure of existing structures, 
supporting electrical systems or any non-Musco equipment, or acts of God/
nature (including, but not limited to: earthquake, flood, tornadoes, typhoons, 
hurricanes or lightning).

 5. #
�������;�������
��*

  a.  EXCLUSIONS FROM COVERAGE: IN NO EVENT WILL MUSCO 
BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES WHICH INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT 
LIMITED TO, ANY DELAY IN RENDERING SERVICE OR LOSS OF 
USE DURING THE REPAIR PERIOD OF THE COVERED PRODUCT(S) 
OR WHILE OTHERWISE AWAITING PARTS.

  b.   Limitation of Liability: To the extent permitted by applicable law, the 
liability of Musco, if any, for any allegedly defective Covered Product(s) 
or components shall be limited to repair or replacement of the Covered 
Product(s) or components at Musco’s option. THIS CONTRACT IS YOUR 
SOLE EXPRESS WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO THE COVERED 
PRODUCT(S). ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO 
THE COVERED PRODUCT(S) INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, 
IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR 
A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ARE HEREBY EXPRESSLY EXCLUDED.

  c.  For the purposes of and by your acceptance of this Contract you 
acknowledge and agree that if a surety bond (“Bond”) is provided the 
warranty and/or maintenance guarantee provided for in this Contract 
and any corresponding liability on behalf of the issuing surety under the 
Bond is limited to the first twelve (12) months of said warranty and/or 
maintenance guarantee coverage period.  Any warranty and/or guarantee 
coverage period in excess of said initial 12 month period does not fall 
within the scope of the Bond and shall be the sole responsibility of Musco.  

  d.   Musco requires reasonable access for a crane or man lift equipment to 
service the lighting system. Musco will not be responsible for damage 
from operating the vehicle on the property when the equipment is 
operated in the prescribed manner over the designated access route.

 6. �0����	��� ���� 1���������*� Except to owners, you shall not have the 
right to assign or otherwise transfer your rights and obligations under 
this Contract except with the prior written consent of Musco; however, a 
successor in interest by merger, operation of law, assignment or purchase 
or otherwise of your entire business shall acquire all of your interests under 
this Contract.

 7.  =
�������� ;��* Unless otherwise governed by applicable state law, the 
Contract shall be interpreted and enforced according to the laws of the State 
of Iowa.

 8.  .�"�
����
�* In the event Musco repairs or replaces any Covered 
Product(s), parts or components due to any defect for which the manufacturer 
or its agents or suppliers may be legally responsible, you agree to assign 
your rights of recovery to Musco. You will be reimbursed for any reasonable 
costs and expenses you may incur in connection with the assignment of 
your rights. You will be made whole before Musco retains any amounts it 
may recover.

 

.��������* ___________________________________________

      >����%���������
	�.����

- Page 3 of 3 -

Terms and Conditions

109



©2005, 2009 Musco Lighting · W-7065-2-S

10 Year Warranty

Equipment
Musco warrants your lighting system (excluding fuses and lamps) to be free from defects in materials and
workmanship for a period of ten years starting from the date of shipment.

Two Years Labor — Musco agrees to provide labor and materials for a period of two years to replace defective
parts or repair defects in workmanship or, at its election, to pay the reasonable cost of labor for such repairs.
For the remainder of the warranty period, replacement materials will be provided at no charge. Labor costs
will be the owner’s expense.

Lamps
Lamps are warranted not to fail for two years from the date of shipment. Lamps which fail during the first year
of the warranty period will be replaced and installed at no cost to the owner.

Lamps which fail during the second year of the warranty period will be replaced by the manufacturer, but
installation will be the owner’s responsibility. Lamps damaged by physical trauma or electrical surges are not
covered by this warranty.

Alignment
Musco warrants accurate alignment of the luminaires on the luminaire assembly for a period of ten years
starting from the date of shipment.

Limitations
The following are not covered by this warranty:

• Fuses

• Weather condition events such as lightning or hail damage

• Improper installation, vandalism or abuse

• Unauthorized repairs or alterations

Repair and/or replacement are the complete warranty and constitute the exclusive remedy.

Warranty

                                                           Exhibit B
                                                           Attachment 2
                                       Musco 10 Year Warranty

110



   

Musco hereby guarantees compliance with the following specifications for your 
project.

Field
Constant Average 

Illumination Uniformity 
Infield Outfield Infield Outfield 

Liberty Park 
Fields 1-9 

50fc 30fc 2.0:1.0 2.5:1.0 

Field Constant Average 
Illumination

Uniformity 

Liberty Park 
Soccer 10-14 

30fc 2.0:1.0 

Central
Elementary
Soccer

30fc 2.5:1.0 

East
Elementary
Entire Area 

30fc 2.5:1.0 

This guarantee is dependent upon the following: 

� All test stations matched exactly to the number and location of points 
supplied with the Musco computer generated light scan for constant light 
levels.

� Pole placement must be within 3 feet of Musco recommendation. 
� Voltage supply to the ballast of all fixtures must be no less than 97% of 

the designed secondary voltage. 

In the unlikely event that these performance specifications are not met, Musco shall 
provide necessary corrective action at no expense to the owner.

We trust this meets with your approval. 

Musco Sports Lighting, LLC 

Luann Ferreira 
Vice-President Sales 

Project Submittal: Performance Guarantee - 10/2 Year Warranty 

                                              Exhibit B, Attachment 3
                                     Musco Light Level Guarantee

111



   

Musco hereby guarantees compliance with the following specifications for your 
project.  Furthermore, Musco guarantees the constant light levels for 25 years.

Field
Constant Average 

Illumination Uniformity 
Infield Outfield Infield Outfield 

Cahaba Heights – Reese, 
Moss, Kelly and Fox Fields 

50fc 30fc 2.0:1.0 2.5:1.0 

Field Constant Average 
Illumination

Uniformity 

Vestavia Hills – Tennis 1-2, 3-6 50fc 2.0:1.0 
Wald Park - Pool 40fc 2.0:1.0 

Wald Park - Tennis 40fc 2.0:1.0 

This guarantee is dependent upon the following: 

� All test stations matched exactly to the number and location of points 
supplied with the Musco computer generated light scan for constant light 
levels.

� Pole placement must be within 3 feet of Musco recommendation. 
� Voltage supply to the ballast of all fixtures must be no less than 97% of 

the designed secondary voltage. 

In the unlikely event that these performance specifications are not met, Musco shall 
provide necessary corrective action at no expense to the owner.

We trust this meets with your approval. 

Musco Sports Lighting, LLC 

Luann Ferreira 
Vice-President Sales 

Project Submittal: Performance Guarantee – Constant 25 Year Warranty 

Project Submittal: Inspection Requirement 

112



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B-1 (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J480612

™PACT is a trademark of TraneU.S. Inc.
Page 1 of 1

Certificate of Substantial Completion and Acceptance

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama
Trane Project No.: J480612

Date Certificate Submitted to Customer:

The Services performed pursuant to the PACTTM Agreement, by and between The City of Vestavia
Hills, Alabama(“Customer”) and Trane U.S. Inc., dated as of February 25, 2013, have been
inspected by the undersigned Customer, have been determined to be substantially complete, and
Customer accepts the same.

The Date(s) of Substantial Completion for the Services noted below is/are hereby established as the
earlier of (i) the date Customer executes this Certificate, as noted below, or (ii) fourteen (14)
calendar days after the date noted above as the date this Certificate is submitted to Customer.

The Warranty Period, pursuant to Article 7 of the Agreement, commences as of the Warranty
Commencement Date stated below with respect to the following corresponding equipment or work:

Services: Description of Equipment or Work Warranty Commencement Date

Customer, by and through the undersigned duly authorized representative, accepts the above listed
Services as substantially complete and assumes full possession thereof as of the Date of Substantial
Completion.

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama
(Customer)

By: _______________________________

Its: _______________________________

Date of Customer’s Signature: _______________________

EXHIBIT B.1
Certificate of Substantial Completion

113



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit B-2 (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane Inc.
Page 1 of 1

Certificate of Final Completion and Acceptance

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama
Trane Project No.: J480612

Date Certificate Submitted to Customer:

The Services performed pursuant to the PACTTM Agreement, by and between The City of Vestavia
Hills, Alabama (“Customer”) and Trane U.S. Inc., dated as of February 25, 2013, have been
inspected by the undersigned Customer and have been determined to be finally complete.

The Date of Final Completion is hereby established as the earlier of (i) the date Customer executes
this Certificate, as noted below, or (ii) fourteen (14) calendar days after the date noted above as the
date this Certificate is submitted to Customer.

The Warranty Period, pursuant to Article 7 of the Agreement, commences as of the Date of Final
Completion, except as noted below with respect to the following equipment or work:

Description of Equipment or Work Warranty Commencement Date

Customer, by and through the undersigned duly authorized representative, accepts the Services as
finally complete and assumes full possession thereof as of the Date of Final Completion.

The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama
(Customer)

By: _______________________________

Its: _______________________________

Date of Customer’s Signature: _______________________

EXHIBIT B.2
Certificate of Final Completion

114



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of TraneU.S. Inc. Exhibit C (11-28-07), Trane Project No.:J80612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.
Page 1 of 1

The Premises are described as follows:

Civic Center / Wald Park Athletic Complex
1973 Merryvale Road
Vestavia Hills, Alabama

Cahaba Heights Athletic Complex
4405 Dolly Ridge Road –
Vestavia Hills, Alabama

Liberty Park Athletic Complex
4700 Sicard Hollow Road
Vestavia Hills, Alabama

Central Elementary School Athletic Field
Mary Fox Lane & Willoughby Rd.
Vestavia Hills, Alabama

East Elementary School
2109 Tyson Drive
Vestavia Hills, Alabama

Vestavia Hills High School
2235 Lime Rock Rd
Vestavia Hills, Alabama

EXHIBIT C
Description of the Premises

115



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit D (9-25-08), Trane Project No.:J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.
Page 1 of 1

The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama
Trane Project No.: J480612

Customer has closed on its financing (the “Financing Closing”) of the PACT™ Agreement, dated
February 25, 2013 as evidenced by the attached fully executed contract documents for financing of the
Contract Price and funding of any escrow account provided for by the financing documents.

The entity providing funding to Customer:

Company Name:

Address:

Contact Name:

Telephone No.:

Email:

Pursuant to Section 1.04 of the Agreement, Customer hereby executes and issues this written Notice
to Proceed authorizing Trane to immediately commence performance of the Services in accordance
with the Agreement.

The City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama

By:

Title:

Dated:

EXHIBIT D
Notice to Proceed

116



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 1 of 12

EXHIBIT E
Energy Savings Guarantee & Operational Savings

Section 1. Energy Savings Guarantee. Trane guarantees that, as a result of the Services Trane
will furnish hereunder, Customer will realize Total Energy Savings of 1,025,281 kWh defined in Table 1, in
each of the consecutive twelve-month periods following the Commencement Date (each such twelve-
month period being hereafter referred to as a "Guarantee Year") for the Guarantee Term (collectively, the
“Guarantee”). The 1,025,281 kWh Guarantee equates to the sum of $102,528 in Total Energy Savings
each Guarantee Year calculated using the value of $0.10 per kWh as stipulated by the parties in Exhibit
E.1.

Table 1 – Annual Total Energy Savings Per Building or ECM

Building or ECM Option A: Partially Measured Retrofit Isolation

KWH Saved KW
Saved

Therms
Saved

Gallons
Saved

(fuel oil)

Gallons
Saved
(water)

Central Elementary 26,319 34.0 NA NA NA

East Elementary 27,212 69.7 NA NA NA

Liberty Park 683,471 600.5 NA NA NA

Wald Park Baseball Fields 155,701 154.6 NA NA NA

Wald Park Pool -9,398 -7.3 NA NA NA

Wald Park Tennis Courts 57,661 37.0 NA NA NA

Cahaba Heights 78,857 75.4 NA NA NA
Vestavia High School Tennis
Courts 5,458 -3.3 NA NA NA

Option B: Retrofit Isolation

KWH Saved KW Saved Therms
Saved

Gallons
Saved

(fuel oil)

Gallons Saved
(water)

NA NA NA NA NA

Option C: Whole Facility

KWH Saved KW Saved Therms
Saved

Gallons
Saved

(fuel oil)

Gallons Saved
(water)

NA NA NA NA NA

Option D: Calibrated Simulation

KWH Saved KW Saved Therms
Saved

Gallons
Saved

(fuel oil)

Gallons Saved
(water)

NA NA NA NA NA

117



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 2 of 12

Grand Total Energy Savings
(annual) 1,025,281 735.1 NA NA NA

Due to rounding of numbers, some numbers in the table above may vary slightly from similar
energy references within this Agreement.

Section 2. Calculated Monetary Value of Total Energy Savings. Table 2 sets forth the annual
calculated monetary value of Total Energy Savings per building or ECM for each method using the Base
Utility Rates defined in Section 14.

Table 2 – Calculated Monetary Value of Annual Total Energy Savings Per Building or ECM

Building or ECM (Exhibit
ID#)

Guarantee Options

Total Energy
Savings

Option A Option B Option C Option D
Partially

Measured
Retrofit
Isolation

Retrofit
Isolation

Building
or ECM
(Exhibit

ID#)

Guarantee
Options

Central Elementary $2,632 NA NA NA $2,632
East Elementary $2,721 NA NA NA $2,721
Liberty Park $68,347 NA NA NA $68,347
Wald Park Baseball
Fields $15,570 NA NA NA $15,570

Wald Park Pool -$940 NA NA NA -$940
Wald Park Tennis Courts $5,766 NA NA NA $5,766
Cahaba Heights $7,886 NA NA NA $7,886
Vestavia High School
Tennis Courts $546 NA NA NA $546

Total $102,528 NA NA NA $102,528

* Some of the dollar amounts in the table above may vary slightly from similar dollar amounts within
this Agreement due to rounding.

Section 3. Calculated Monetary Value of Energy and Operational Savings With Escalation.
Table 3 sets forth the calculated monetary value of Total Energy Savings (calculated using the Base
Utility Rates defined in Section 14) and Operational Savings for each year of the Guarantee Term,
escalated each year by the stipulated percentage shown, which is a reasonable projection of inflation (for
utility costs and otherwise) based on past inflation experience and the parties’ expectations.  Operational
Savings are stipulated by the parties and are not included within the Guarantee.

Table 3 – Calculated Monetary Value of Annual Total Energy
Savings and Operational Savings With 4.4% Annual Utility Escalation

Total Savings ($)

Year Total Energy
Savings

Operational
Savings

(stipulated)

Total Savings

1 102,528 187,277 289,805

118



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 3 of 12

2 107,039 193,631 300,671
3 111,749 200,266 312,015
4 116,666 207,192 323,857
5 121,799 214,422 336,221
6 127,158 221,971 349,130
7 132,753 229,852 362,605
8 138,594 238,080 376,674
9 144,693 246,670 391,362

10 151,059 255,638 406,697
11 157,706 265,000 422,706
12 164,645 274,774 439,419
13 171,889 284,978 456,868
14 179,452 295,632 475,084
15 187,348 263,897 451,245
16 195,591 275,508 471,100
17 204,198 287,631 491,828
18 213,182 300,267 513,469
19 222,562 313,499 536,061
20 232,355 327,293 559,648

Section 4. IPMVP Methodology. Four (4) different methods may be utilized to measure and
calculate the Total Energy Savings: Option A – Partially Measured Retrofit Isolation and/or Stipulated;
Option B – Retrofit Isolation; Option C – Whole Facility; and Option D – Calibrated Simulation.  Each
method is in accordance with the International Performance Measurement and Verification Protocol
(IPMVP).  The four methods are generally described in Sections 5 through 8. The type and location of
energy conservation measures (ECM) installed determine which measurement and calculation method to
utilize.

Section 5. Option A. Partially Measured Retrofit Isolation. The verification techniques for
Option A determine energy savings by measuring the capacity or efficiency of a system before and after a
retrofit, and multiplying the difference by an agreed-upon or “stipulated” factor, such as hours of operation
or load on the system. Careful review of ECM design and installation ensure that stipulated values fairly
represent the probable actual value. Specific M&V methodologies and stipulations are identified for each
savings strategy are detailed in sub Exhibit E.1.

Section 6. Option B. Retrofit Isolation. Verification techniques for Option B are designed for
projects where long-term continuous measurement of performance is desired.  Under Option B, individual
loads are continuously monitored to determine performance, and this measured performance is
compared with a baseline to determine savings.  Option B M&V techniques provide long-term persistence

119



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 4 of 12

data on ECM operation and performance.  This data can be used to improve or optimize the operation of
the equipment on a real-time basis, thereby improving the benefit of the retrofit.  Option B also relies on
the direct measurement of affected end uses. Option B is not proposed for this project.

Section 7. Option C. Whole Facility. Verification techniques for Option C determine savings by
studying overall energy use in a facility and identifying the effects of energy projects from changes in
overall energy use patterns. This approach is intended for measurements of the whole-facility or specific
meter baseline energy use, and measurements of whole-facility or specific meter post-implementation
(Post) energy use can be measured.  The methodology to establish baseline and Post parameter
identification, modeling approach and baseline or model adjustments will be defined in the Section 18 of
this Exhibit.  Periodic inspections of baseline energy usage, operating practices, and facility and
equipment, and meter measurements of the will be necessary to verify the on-going efficient operation of
the equipment, systems, practices and facility, and saving attainment.

Except as otherwise provided, actual Total Energy Savings will be calculated for each month of each
Guarantee Year as the product of (a) “units of energy saved” (kWh, Therms, GJ, etc.) multiplied by (b)
applicable Base Utility Rates.

Units of energy saved are computed by the “Metrix” software application.  “Metrix” is an accounting
software application copyrighted by Abraxas Energy Services, Inc.  Units of energy saved are calculated
by subtracting current period measured units of energy consumed from the adjusted Base Facility Utility
Consumption units of energy defined in Section 16, Table 8. Adjustments to the Base Facility Utility
Consumption units of energy are based on factors such as weather, occupancy, operating hours, etc.,
and changes to the Base Conditions and operating practices as defined in Section 18. Option C is not
proposed for this project.

Section 8. Option D. Calibrated Simulation. Option D is intended for energy retrofits where
calibrated simulation of  baseline energy use and calibrated simulations of  post-installation energy
consumption are used to measure savings from the retrofit.  Option D can involve measurements of
energy use both before and after the retrofit for specific equipment/systems or whole-building data for
calibrating the simulation(s). Simulation routines must be demonstrated to adequately model actual
energy performance measured in the facility. This option usually requires considerable skill in calibrated
simulation. Option D is not proposed for this project.

Section 9. Operational Savings. Customer and Trane agree that, as a direct result of the
Services, as of the Commencement Date, Customer shall have achieved no less than $ 187,277 in
annual operational cost savings (“Operational Savings”) for each Guarantee Year during the Guarantee
Term.  Customer and Trane worked together to identify and quantify the Operational Savings based upon
past and projected expenditure data provided by the Customer.  Throughout the Guarantee Term,
Operational Savings for each Guarantee Year after the First Guarantee Year will be deemed by Customer
and Trane to escalate at a rate of four point four percent (4.4%) per year; accordingly, the Operational
Savings for each Guarantee Year after the first Guarantee Year will be calculated by multiplying the
immediately preceding Guarantee Year’s Operational Savings by one hundred and four point four percent
(104.4%).  The parties agree that the 4.4% escalation rate is a reasonable projection of inflation based on
past inflation experience and the parties’ expectations.  Customer and Trane worked together to identify
and quantify Operational Savings based upon past and projected expenditure data provided by the
Customer.  Operational Savings specified herein are stipulated as fact, will not be measured, monitored
or verified by Trane, and are considered satisfied effective on the Commencement Date.  Operational
Savings include the following categories (as applicable):

a. Direct Cost Avoidance.  Reduction or elimination of existing or planned service contracts, and
material, supply, and labor expenditures;

b Indirect Cost Avoidance.  Customer valuation – including such items as re-deployed labor
resources and reduction in overhead; and

120



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 5 of 12

c. Future Capital Cost Avoidance.  Future replacement expenditures avoided as a result of new
equipment installed;

The Operational Savings are detailed in the table below. Table 4 identifies the source of Operational
Savings defined by Customer.

Table 4 – Detailed Operational Savings

Description Direct Cost
Avoidance

Indirect
Cost

Avoidance

Future
Capital
Cost

Avoidance
Item 1 Sports Lights Maint Ops (Exh E.2) $36,311
Item 2 ARRA Lighting Energy (Exh E.3) $21,454
Item 3 ARRA Lighting Maint Ops (Exh E.3) $4,377
Item 4 Reduced Storm Damage (Exh E.3) $19,408
Item 5 Reduced Labor & Vehicle (Exh E.3) $15,000
Item 6 Capital Cost Avoidance (Exh E.5) $42,857

Section 10. Total Energy Savings. Total Energy Savings shall be computed as specified in this
Exhibit, including the sub-Exhibits.  Two different types of energy savings may be achieved under this
Agreement: Energy Use Savings and Energy Rate Savings (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Total
Energy Savings").  Total Energy Savings will be determined by adding the Energy Use Savings and
Energy Rate Savings for each Billing Period (as hereinafter defined), together with any Installation Period
Savings.  Utilizing energy related bills furnished by Customer pursuant hereto, Trane shall then determine
Total Energy Savings for each Billing Period and for each Guarantee Year when completed.  Subject to
Section 12 hereof, Trane will begin recording annual savings from and after the Commencement Date.

(a) Energy Use Savings are those energy savings achieved through reduction or shift in energy
or demand use.  Trane will calculate Energy Use Savings achieved at the Premises by subtracting energy
consumption and demand for the current Billing Period from Baseline energy consumption and demand
for the corresponding month as shown in Section 16, Table 8 and multiplying those savings by the current
utility rate unit cost or the Base Utility Rates as described herein, whichever is higher.  The Energy Use
Savings will be adjusted for weather, occupancy, utilization, and facility changes as described herein.

(b) Energy Rate Savings are those savings achieved through a reduction in fuel and/or
electricity rates by one or more of the following means:

(i) Improved rate from local electric utility company, natural gas company, or fuel company;

(ii) Direct purchase of natural gas or electricity; and/or

(iii) Bulk purchase of fuel.

Trane will calculate the Energy Rate Savings obtained for each Billing Period by multiplying
energy consumption and demand for the current Billing Period by the energy rate reduction, as shown in
the Total Energy Savings Table 5, which is the amount by which the Base Utility Rate defined in Section
14, exceeds the improved rate.  There will be no Energy Rate Savings calculation unless an energy rate
reduction has been achieved either directly or indirectly by Trane through one or more of the means listed
above in clauses (i) through (iii).

121



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 6 of 12

Table 5 – Total Energy Savings (Use if Energy Rate Savings are applicable)

Total Energy Savings ($)

Year Energy Use
Savings

Energy Rate
Savings

Total Energy
Savings

1 102,528 47,873 150,401
2 107,039 49,979 157,018
3 111,749 52,179 163,928
4 116,666 54,474 171,140
5 121,799 56,871 178,670
6 127,158 59,374 186,532
7 132,753 61,986 194,739
8 138,594 64,713 203,307
9 144,693 67,561 212,254

10 151,059 70,533 221,592
11 157,706 73,637 231,343
12 164,645 76,877 241,522
13 171,889 80,260 252,149
14 179,452 83,791 263,243
15 187,348 87,478 274,826
16 195,591 91,327 286,918
17 204,198 95,345 299,543
18 213,182 99,540 312,722
19 222,562 103,920 326,482
20 232,355 108,493 340,848

Section 11. Installation Period Savings. Energy Use Savings, as calculated in accordance with
the sub-Exhibits, will accrue as the Services progress during the installation period until the
Commencement Date.  As applicable, Trane will calculate and document these savings as they accrue in
accordance with the sub-Exhibit(s) (such savings hereinafter referred to as “Installation Period Savings”).

Section 12. Billing Period. The Billing Period is based on the time period between when
readings are taken either electronically or manually by the utility or other designated agency. Utility bills
will be prorated based on the number of days in the Billing Period month.

122



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 7 of 12

Section 13. Commencement Date and Guarantee Term. The "Commencement Date” shall be
the first calendar day of the month following the month in which the Date of Final Completion occurs,
unless the Date of Final Completion falls on the first calendar day of a month, in which event the
Commencement Date shall be the Date of Final Completion, but in no event later than ninety (90) days
after the date noted in the Certificate of Final Completion and Acceptance.  The Guarantee shall begin as
of the Commencement Date and, unless this Agreement shall terminate earlier, shall expire on the day
immediately preceding the 14 year anniversary of the Commencement Date (hereinafter the “Guarantee
Term”).

Section 14.  Base Utility Rates. Trane will use the greater of the then current applicable utility
rate unit cost or the Base Utility Rates described herein to calculate the monetary value of Actual
Savings; however, in the event Actual Savings are less than the Guarantee, the lesser of the then current
applicable utility rate unit cost or the Base Utility Rates will be used to determine the monetary value of
the shortfall in Actual Savings.

The following are the Base Utility Rates:

Cost of Electricity

Table 6.0 – Electric Rate Structure

Utility Company: Alabama Power Company
Rate Schedule: LAF
Effective Date: January 2006
Base Charge = $1.00 /month

Energy Cost Recovery = $0.02681 /kWh
Natural Disaster Reserve = $0.37 $

Tax = 4%

Billing Months January - December
All kWh = $0.153471 /kWh (Secondary)
All kWh = $0.143652 /kWh (Primary)

Utility Company: Alabama Power Company
Rate Schedule: LTU
Effective Date: January 2006
Base Charge = $20.00 /month

Energy Cost Recovery = $0.02681 /kWh
Natural Disaster Reserve = $0.37 $

Tax = 4%

Billing Months June 1 – September 30
kWh Energy Charge = $0.194831 /kWh Peak (noon – 7pm) M - F
kWh Energy Charge = $0.066931 /kWh Intermediate (10am – noon) M - F
kWh Energy Charge = $0.038431 /kWh Off-Peak (all other hrs & Sat/Sun)

Billing Months October 1 – May 31
kWh Energy Charge = $0.066931 /kWh Intermediate (7am – 9pm) M - F
kWh Energy Charge = $0.038431 /kWh Off-Peak (all other hrs & Sat/Sun)

Off-Peak Holidays = New Year’s Day Independence Day
Labor Day Thanksgiving Day

Christmas Day

123



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 8 of 12

Minimum Bill = $20.00 Base Charge
$2.00 /kW billing capacity

Cost of Fuel(s)

Table 6.1 – Gas Rate Structure

Utility Company: Alagasco
Rate Schedule: SCSI
Effective Date: July 1, 2012

Service Charge = $15.03 /month
First 150 ccf = $1.3977 /ccf
Next 600 ccf = $1.2639 /ccf
Over 750 ccf = $1.2031 /ccf

State Utility Tax = 4.0%

Table 6.2 – Fuel Rates

Facility Fuel

Facilities
Charge

(per month)
Winter Rate
(per therm)

Summer
Rate

(per therm)
NA NA N/A NA NA

Cost of Water/Sewer

Table 6.3 – Water & Sewer Rates

Utility Company: Talladega Water & Sewer
Rate Schedule: Commercial
Effective Date: September 5, 2012

Minimum Water Charge = $23.14 /month
Water Consumption Charge = $0.31 /cgal

Minimum Sewer Charge = $24.14 /month
Sewer Consumption Charge = $0.31 /cgal

State Utility Tax = 4.0%

Section 15. Metering Information. Option C verification requires specific energy or water usage
data to be collected.  The data collected will be based on the Meter information in Section 15 Table 7.

Table 7. For Option C Measurement & Verification

Facility Utility Type Serves Account # Meter # Rate Schedule
NA NA NA NA NA NA

124



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 9 of 12

Section 16. Base Conditions. Total Energy Savings will be calculated using the Base Facility
Utility Consumptions defined in Table 8. The savings and forecast shown below are for facilities and
energy conservation measures using Option C M&V method and do not include any adjustments that may
be necessary at the time of reconciliation as defined in Section 18. This Base Facility Utility Consumption
will be used as the reference against which future years utility usage will be compared to determine the
Actual Savings.

Table 8. Base Facility Utility Consumption for Option C Measurement & Verification

Baseline Adjusted Baseline
(If Applicable)

Forecast Savings

Date kWh kW CCF kWh kW CCF kWh kW CCF kWh kW CCF
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

Facility Lighting Operation

The following operational parameters were collaboratively agreed upon by Customer and Trane and are
stipulated as fact for the purposes of this Agreement. The parameters were used in the Detailed Energy
Analysis process to determine Energy Use Savings and Customer bears the risk of decreased energy
savings if the facilities are operated outside of these parameters. Variation from these parameters will
permit Trane to make an adjustment to the Baseline as indicated in Section 18.

Table 9 – Athletic Field Lighting Operational Parameters

Facility Annual Lighting Burn Hours
Central Elementary 180

East Elementary 540
Liberty Park 720

Wald Park Baseball Field 720
Wald Park Pool 360

Wald Park Tennis 1080
Cahaba Heights 540

Vestavia 1080

Customer is responsible to perform the updates to the control system to conform to the above table.
The Customer should limit access to lighting controls to prevent unwarranted lighting operations.

Section 17. Guarantee Reconciliation. Subject to Customer’s obligations to furnish the data
and information required hereunder, within forty-five (45) days after the final month of each Guarantee
Year, Trane will determine the actual Total Energy Savings (the “Actual Savings”) as described in this
Exhibit and the sub-Exhibits and report the same to Customer in a Reconciliation Report.  Customer shall
be deemed to have accepted the determinations contained in the Reconciliation Report in the event
Customer fails to object to the same within forty five (45) calendar days after delivery of the
Reconciliation Report to Customer.  In the event the Actual Savings, together with any Installation Period
Savings that have not been previously applied against any shortfall in Total Energy Savings, are less than
the Guarantee, within thirty (30) days after delivery of the Reconciliation Report Trane will pay Customer
the difference between the Guarantee and the Actual Savings (credited by unapplied Installation Period
Savings) for that Guarantee Year. Trane shall reimburse Customer for any such shortfall of guaranteed
energy cost savings on an annual basis.

Section 18. Adjustments to Baseline. Trane may, at its sole discretion, make adjustments to
the Baseline using standard and sound engineering principles as follows:

125



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 10 of 12

a. Building Utilization:  The total number of building occupants is a variable that may be adjusted for
if the number of occupants differs from the Baseline quantity;

b. Building Occupancy Hours:  The hours the building(s) is/are occupied and/or equipment and/or
lighting is utilized is a variable which may be adjusted for if the hours (quantity or time-of-day)
differs from the hours identified in this Exhibit E and its sub-Exhibits.  Buildings that have Trane
energy management equipment will be monitored by Trane to verify hours of equipment
operation.  Buildings without energy management systems will have to have equipment operation
logged by Customer’s building staff as specified in Section 19, Customer Responsibilities, of this
Exhibit E;

c. Weather:  Utility bills will be adjusted for weather;

d. Building Changes:  The Baseline may be adjusted to account for any building square footage
changes, remodeling, and addition of equipment or change in usage.  Customer agrees to
contact Trane within seven (7) calendar days of commencement of any changes or additions of
equipment or environments; and

e. Trane’s discretion, based on data or other information newly discovered or otherwise not readily
available at the time the Baseline was prepared; and/or

f. Failure of Customer to perform its obligations under Section 19 of this Exhibit E.

g. Baseline Adjustment: Any adjustment in the baseline model of the building created as part of the
engineering study appropriate to represent operation of the building if it had been designed,
constructed, and/or operated in accordance with local and national codes in place as of the date
of the Agreement.  Such adjustments can include, but are not limited to, increased ventilation
rates for code compliance and the addition of heating and/or air-conditioning to areas that
previously had no environment conditioning. No Baseline Adjustments were made.

Section 19. Customer Responsibilities: Customer acknowledges that it has an integral role in
achieving savings and agrees to perform the following responsibilities:

a. Properly maintain, repair, and replace all energy consuming equipment with equipment of equal
or better energy and operational efficiencies and promptly notify Trane of the repair and /or
replacement, but no later than within fourteen (14) calendar days from the commencement
thereof;

b. Make available to Trane upon its request copies of maintenance records and procedures
regarding maintenance of the Premises;

c. Promptly provide Trane with notice of system and building alterations at the Premises that impact
energy consumption, including but not limited to: energy management systems, automatic door
operation, structural, occupancy sensors, photocell/timer control of exterior lighting and heat
recovery systems;

d. Log any utility meters and the operation of any energy consuming devices or equipment as
directed by Trane and furnish copies of such logs to Trane within thirty (30) calendar days after
preparation of the logs;

e. Provide to Trane true, accurate and complete copies of all energy related bills within ten (10)
days after Customer’s receipt of such bills.  The parties stipulate that, in each event that
Customer fails to provide an energy related bill within thirty (30) days after the end of the Billing
Period to which the bill relates, Customer shall be deemed to have realized that portion of the

126



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 11 of 12

Total Energy Savings prorated for the utility billing period to which said energy related bill relates
and for such subsequent utility billing periods as are affected by an increase in energy and/or
demand use that could have been avoided had Trane been provided with the energy related bill
in a timely manner.  In the event Trane subsequently receives or obtains the untimely energy
related bill and such bill discloses that savings were achieved in an amount greater than had
been stipulated hereunder, such greater savings will be used in calculating Actual Savings;

f. Provide to Trane true, accurate and complete descriptions of all energy consuming devices within
seven (7) days after installation and startup of such equipment.  This equipment includes, but is
not limited to heating, cooling or ventilating equipment, computers and other electronics, water
heaters, kitchen equipment, laundry equipment, mobile trailer units, portable hospital equipment.
The parties stipulate that, in each event that Customer fails to provide this information within thirty
(30) days after the startup of such equipment, Customer shall be deemed to have realized that
portion of the Total Energy Savings prorated for the utility billing period to which said energy
related bill relates and for such subsequent utility billing periods as are affected by an increase in
energy and/or demand use that could have been avoided had Trane been provided with the
energy related information in a timely manner.  In the event Trane subsequently receives or
obtains the untimely energy related bill and such bill discloses that savings were achieved in an
amount greater than had been stipulated hereunder, such greater savings will be used in
calculating Actual Savings;

g. Furnish to Trane true, accurate and complete copies of any utility rate schedules or tariffs
promptly upon Trane’s request for the same and, in any event, within thirty (30) calendar days
after Customer’s receipt of notice of a utility rate change;

h. Maintain in effect and fully perform its obligations under the Maintenance Agreement throughout
the duration of the Guarantee; and

i. During the Term of the Agreement, permit only Trane and/or Customer approved personnel to
repair, adjust or program equipment, systems, and/or controls covered by this Agreement or
affecting equipment, systems, and/or controls covered by this Agreement, except in the event of
an emergency, in which event Customer shall immediately notify Trane of the existence of the
emergency no later than within twenty-four (24) hours of the commencement of the emergency
condition.

Section 20. Exclusions from Trane’s Responsibilities:  Trane shall not be responsible for any of
the following:

a. Any shortfalls in Total Energy Savings, failure to satisfy the Guarantee, or for loss, damage or
malfunction to equipment, systems, controls or building(s) structures resulting from non-Trane
personnel examining, adjusting or repairing equipment, systems, or controls, except that
personnel of MUSCO Sports Lighting LLC may examine, adjust or repair equipment, systems or
controls in its provision of warranty services pursuant to Exhibit B, Attachment 1;

b. Any failure of Customer to achieve or realize Operational Savings;

c. Any damage or malfunction resulting from freezing, corrosion or erosion on the water side of the
equipment or caused by scale or sludge on equipment;

d. Problems or damages caused by utility service or damage sustained by equipment or systems;

e. Furnishing any items of equipment, material, or labor, or performing tests recommended or
required by insurance companies or federal, state, or local governments; and

127



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 12 of 12

f. Failure or inadequacy of any structure or foundation supporting or surrounding equipment or work
or any portion thereof.

Section 21. Independent Audit. Within forty-five (45) days after each anniversary of the
Commencement Date, Customer may provide written notice to Trane that Customer intends to have
performed an audit of the savings calculations and billings for the immediately preceding Guarantee Year.
Customer and Trane shall thereupon select agreed upon experienced and qualified energy engineering
auditors to complete and submit to the parties an audit of the savings calculations and billings for the
immediately preceding Guarantee Year.  Customer shall pay for the entire cost of the audit.  The audit
shall be completed within forty-five (45) days of selection of the auditor.  Exercise of the right to request
an audit shall in no way relieve Customer of its continuing obligation to make current payments pursuant
to this Agreement.  Any payments between the parties necessary to resolve any agreed upon
irregularities identified in the audit will be made within sixty (60) days after submission of the audit to the
parties.  Any dispute arising from or related to the audit shall be resolved by recourse to the procedures
set forth in Article 8 of this Agreement.

Section 22. Agreed Upon Parameters. Customer agrees that the parameters set forth in the
sub-Exhibits (used for Options A, B, C & D) are mutually agreed upon and form the basis of the
Guarantee. These parameters are hereby recognized, for the purposes of this Agreement, as fact and
will not be measured, monitored or adjusted. These parameters apply to Total Energy Savings that shall
be computed as specified in this Exhibit and sub-Exhibits.

Section 23. Detailed Energy Analysis. The “Detailed Energy Analysis,” presented by Trane
and MUSCO Sports Lighting, is incorporated herein for the limited purposes of presenting a description of
existing conditions and the methodologies used for calculating projected energy savings with respect to
the energy conservation measures comprising the Scope of Services in Exhibit B. Statements of savings
contained in the Detailed Energy Analysis are projections only and do not constitute, and shall not in any
way modify, the statements of Trane’s Guarantee contained in this Exhibit E and sub-Exhibits referenced
herein.

128



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 1 of 5

EXHIBIT E.1
Energy Savings Guarantee

Sports Lighting Retrofit

Applicability:

This performance guarantee applies to the high efficiency sports lighting retrofit energy conservation
measures installed by Trane in the following Vestavia Hills facilities:

The following are mutually agreed upon parameters that form the basis of this performance guarantee.
These parameters are hereby stipulated for the purposes of this Agreement as fact and will not be
measured, monitored or adjusted.

Existing Fixture Watt Usage
Two types of fixtures are currently installed.  All sites, except the lighting at the Vestavia Hills High School
tennis courts utilize 1500 watt metal halide fixtures.  The Vestavia Hills High School tennis courts use a
1000 watt metal halide fixture.  These are standard fixtures. Manufacturer’s catalog data indicates that the
existing 1500 watt MH Lamps are rated for 1500 watts and the associated ballast power adds another
8%.  Including the ballast power, the established usage of the 1500 watt fixtures is 1,620 watts per fixture.
Similarly, the 1000 watt MH Lamps are rated for 1000 watts and the associated ballast power adds
another 7%.  Using the ballast power, the established usage of the 1000 watt fixture becomes 1,070 watts
per fixture.  Actual field measurement would yield different results due to the loss of lighting, and resulting
lower power usage that occurs with age and use.  Thus, to provide a fair comparison, the established
values below represent the watt usage of existing fixtures in a new condition.  These initial watt per fixture
usage values (Table 1) are stipulated and it is agreed that they will be used in the calculations for the
Guarantee.

Table 1 – Existing Watt Usage per Fixture

Existing Fixtures
Watt Usage
per Fixture

1500 Watt Metal Halide 1620 Watts
1000 Watt Metal Halide 1070 Watts

• Central Elementary School
Sports Lighting

• East Elementary School Sports
Lighting

• Liberty Park Sports Lighting
• Wald Park Sports Lighting

o - Baseball Fields (5)
o - Pool
o - Tennis Courts

• Cahaba Heights Sports Lighting
• Vestavia Hills High School

Tennis Lights (6 courts)

129



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 2 of 5

Hours of Operation

The current hours of operation were provided by Vestavia Hills. The new lighting controls provide the
means to remotely turn on and off the sports lighting.  This control has the capability of reducing operating
hours since it will no longer require trips to the site for turning lighting on and off and lighting can be set to
turn on and off to effectively reduce hours of operation. Musco had indicated that sites can achieve up to
a thirty percent reduction in operating hours when the new controls are installed and utilized.  For
conservatism, a twenty percent reduction on operation hours has been used in the energy savings
calculations.  These current hours of operation and planned hours of operation values (Table 2) are
stipulated and it is agreed that they will be used in the calculations for the energy savings Guarantee.

Table 2 – Hours of Operation

Site
Current
Hours of

Use
Planned Hours

of Use
Central Elementary School Sports Lighting 616 492.8
East Elementary School Sports Lighting 344 275.2
Liberty Park Sports Lighting 944 755.2
Wald Park Sports Lighting
- Baseball Fields (5) 800 640
- Pool 3200 2560
- Tennis Courts 1296 1036.8
Cahaba Heights Sports Lighting 800 640
Vestavia Hills High School Tennis Lights (6
courts) 1296 1036.8

Post-Retrofit Measurements:

The following describes the methodology for proving per-fixture wattage reductions as a result of the
installation of energy efficient lighting equipment.  Actual wattage measurements are taken to validate the
post-retrofit, per-fixture wattage as represented
in the energy savings calculations contained in Table 3.

Measurement Methodology:

Trane will install new fixtures.  The detailed survey/scope of work contained in Table 3 illustrates the
types of retrofits installed, and estimates the wattage of the retrofits.  The purpose of this section is to
validate these estimates through actual wattage measurement.

In order to validate the wattage estimates of the lighting retrofits, Trane will measure a sampling of the
actual wattage consumed at each facility. This measurement will occur at the end of the first year of
operation.  Appropriate representatives of Vestavia Hills should be present to witness the measurement.
The measurements will be taken utilizing an accurate, properly calibrated wattmeter.  A qualified
electrician will take the measurements, witnessed by Vestavia Hills (at its option) and Trane, and will
record the results.  Readings will be taken on one pole at each of the following sites:

• Central Elementary School
Sports Lighting

• East Elementary School Sports
Lighting

130



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 3 of 5

• Liberty Park Sports Lighting
• Wald Park Sports Lighting
• Cahaba Heights Sports Lighting
• Vestavia Hills High School

Tennis Lights (6 courts)

Watts used per fixture will be calculated by dividing the reading from the pole by the number of fixtures on
the pole.

The cost of this measurement and the responsibility for the provision of a qualified electrician will be
borne entirely by Trane.

Calculation of Guaranteed Energy Savings
Table 3, Item I shows the calculation of the KW hours used in the Pre-Retrofit conditions, using the fixture
watt usage and hours of use defined above.  Similarly, Table 3, Item II shows the calculation of  the KW
Hours used in the Post-Retrofit conditions using again using the fixture watt usage and hours of operation
defined above.  Table 3, Item III. Shows the reduction in Kw Hours used (1, 025, 281 Kw Hours) and
applies $0.10 per Kw hr to produce Total Energy Savings in dollars of $102,528.  The $0.10 per Kw Hour
represents a conservative value of the cost of electricity based on the Vestavia Hills utility bills over the
last 12 months.  This value is stipulated and it is agreed that it will be used on the conversion of Kw Hours
to dollars.

Calculation of Actual Savings
At the end of the first year of operation, Trane will measure the watts used by the methods defined above
(Post-Retrofit Measurements).  The measured actual Watts per fixture will be used to calculate the actual
conditions after retrofit.  Table 3, Item II calculations will be redone using the measured watts per fixture.
As shown in Table 3, Item III., the difference between the Pre-Retrofit Conditions and the Post-Retrofit
Conditions will be established in Kw Hours and converted to dollars using the stipulated $0.10 per Kw
Hour.

131



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 4 of 5

I. PRE RETROFIT CONDITIONS

SITE
Quantity

of
Fxtures

Fixture Type Watts per
Fixture

Hours
of Use

Total Kw
Hrs

Central Elementary School Sports Lighting 48
1500 watt metal

halide 1620 616 47,900

East Elementary School Sports Lighting 72
1500 watt metal

halide 1620 344 40,124

Liberty Park Sports Lighting 752
1500 watt metal

halide 1620 944 1,150,019
Wald Park

- Baseball Fields (5) 219
1500 watt metal

halide 1620 800 283,824

- Pool 9
1500 watt metal

halide 1620 3200 46,656

- Tennis Courts 46
1500 watt metal

halide 1620 1296 96,578

Cahaba Heights Sports Lighting 118
1500 watt metal

halide 1620 800 152,928
Vestavia Hills High School Tennis Lights (6
courts) 32

1000 watt metal
halide 1070 1296 44,375

Total Kw Hours Used Per Year 1,862,404

II. POST RETROFIT CONDITIONS

SITE
Quantity

of
Fxtures

Fixture Type Watts per
Fixture Hours Total Kw

Hrs

Central Elementary School Sports Lighting 28
MUSCO LSG

1500 1564 492.8 21,581

East Elementary School Sports Lighting 30
MUSCO LSG

1500 1564 275.2 12,912
Liberty Park Sports Lighting 395 1564 755.2 466,547

Wald Park
MUSCO LSG

1500 0

- Baseball Fields (5) 128
MUSCO LSG

1500 1564 640 128,123

- Pool 14
MUSCO LSG

1500 1564 2560 56,054

- Tennis Courts 24
MUSCO LSG

1500 1564 1036.8 38,917

Cahaba Heights Sports Lighting 74
MUSCO LSG

1500 1564 640 74,071
Vestavia Hills High School Tennis Lights (6
courts) 24

MUSCO LSG
1500 1564 1036.8 38,917

Total Kw Hours Used Per Year 837,123

Table 3 – Energy Savings Calculations

132



© 2011 Trane       All rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane. Exhibit E, Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane
Revised 11-11-2011

Page 5 of 5

III. SAVINGS CALCULATION
Total Kw

Hours
Saved

Average Annual
$ / Kw Hours

Total
Savings, $

Central Elementary School Sports Lighting 26,319 $0.1000 $2,632
East Elementary School Sports Lighting 27,212 $0.1000 $2,721
Liberty Park Sports Lighting 683,471 $0.1000 $68,347
Wald Park $0.1000 $0
- Baseball Fields (5) 155,701 $0.1000 $15,570
- Pool -9,398 $0.1000 ($940)
- Tennis Courts 57,661 $0.1000 $5,766
Cahaba Heights Sports Lighting 78,857 $0.1000 $7,886
Vestavia Hills High School Tennis Lights (6
courts) 5,458 $0.1000 $546

1,025,281 $102,528

133



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit E.2 Trane Project No.: # J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.
Page 1 of 4

1.0 Agreed Upon Parameters:

The following are mutually agreed upon parameters that describe the basis for the Operational Savings.  These
parameters are hereby stipulated for the purposes of this Agreement, as fact and will not be measured, monitored
or adjusted.

a) Applicability

By implementing this project at the various athletic complexes as described in this Agreement, the City of
Vestavia Hills will realize labor and materials savings associated with common maintenance activities of
athletic field lighting.

Base Utility Rates are set forth in Exhibit E Section 14.0

b) Annual Operating Characteristics

The annual operating characteristics are based on the detailed audit of the sports lighting systems at the
various complexes, customer interviews, customer maintenance invoices, and industry standard percentages
of average failure rates for new lamps and ballasts. These values are mutually agreed to by Customer and
Trane.

2.0 Computation of Savings:

The following describes the stipulated methodology for computing Operational Savings based on the agreed to
lamp and ballast failure rates.

a) Presentation of Data

The following data is presented for use in the Operational Savings calculation and has been established and
collaboratively agreed to by the Customer and Trane.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the data is
considered fact and will not be measured, monitored or adjusted.

EXHIBIT - E.2
Lighting Maintenance Operational Savings

134



©
20

07
 T

ra
ne

Al
lr

igh
ts

re
se

rv
ed

IN
IT

IA
LE

D
 B

Y
: _

__
_C

us
to

m
er

  _
__

_T
ra

ne
Co

nf
ide

nt
ial

 a
nd

 P
ro

pr
iet

ar
y I

nf
or

m
at

ion
 o

fT
ra

ne
 U

.S
. I

nc
.

Ex
hi

bi
tE

.2
Tr

an
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o.
: #

J4
80

61
2

™
PA

CT
 is

 a
 tr

ad
em

ar
k o

fT
ra

ne
 U

.S
.

In
c.

P
ag

e
2

of
4

A
vg

A
vg

Es
tim

at
ed

Es
tim

at
ed

Es
tim

at
ed

To
ta

l
A

nn
ua

l
R

at
ed

La
m

p
A

nn
ua

l
La

m
p

# 
of

L 
&

 M
M

ai
nt

L 
&

 M
M

ai
nt

C
on

tra
ct

#
re

la
m

ps
R

el
am

p
R

el
am

p

Fa
ci

lit
y

Li
fe

, h
rs

U
se

,
hr

s
Li

fe
, y

rs
Fi

xt
ur

es
C

os
t/F

ix
$/

re
la

m
p

Te
rm

,
yr

s
pe

r t
er

m
$/

te
rm

C
os

t, 
$

C
en

tr
al

 P
ar

k
Ex

is
tin

g
30

00
61

6
4.

87
48

12
5

$6
,0

00
15

3.
08

$1
8,

48
0

$1
,2

32
Pr

op
os

ed
50

00
49

3
10

.1
4

28
12

5
$3

,5
00

15
1.

47
9

$5
,1

77
$3

45
.1

0
Sa

vi
ng

s
$1

3,
30

4
$8

87

E
as

t E
le

m
en

ta
ry

Ex
is

tin
g

30
00

34
4

8.
72

72
12

5
$9

,0
00

15
1.

72
$1

5,
48

0
$1

,0
32

Pr
op

os
ed

50
00

27
5

18
.1

8
30

12
5

$3
,7

50
15

0
$0

$0
.0

0
Sa

vi
ng

s
$1

5,
48

0
$1

,0
32

L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k
Ex

is
tin

g
30

00
94

4
3.

18
75

2
12

5
$9

4,
00

0
15

4.
72

$4
43

,6
80

$2
9,

57
9

Pr
op

os
ed

50
00

75
5

6.
62

39
5

12
5

$4
9,

37
5

15
2.

26
5

$1
11

,8
34

$7
,4

55
.6

3
Sa

vi
ng

s
$3

31
,8

46
$2

2,
12

3

W
al

d 
Pa

rk
 B

as
eb

al
l F

ie
ld

s
Ex

is
tin

g
30

00
80

0
3.

75
21

9
12

5
$2

7,
37

5
15

4
$1

09
,5

00
$7

,3
00

Pr
op

os
ed

50
00

64
0

7.
81

12
8

12
5

$1
6,

00
0

15
1.

92
$3

0,
72

0
$2

,0
48

.0
0

Sa
vi

ng
s

$7
8,

78
0

$5
,2

52

W
al

d 
Pa

rk
 P

oo
l

Ex
is

tin
g

30
00

16
00

1.
88

9
12

5
$1

,1
25

15
8

$9
,0

00
$6

00
Pr

op
os

ed
50

00
16

00
3.

13
9

12
5

$1
,1

25
15

0
$0

$0
.0

0
Sa

vi
ng

s
$9

,0
00

$6
00

135



©
20

07
 T

ra
ne

Al
lr

igh
ts

re
se

rv
ed

IN
IT

IA
LE

D
 B

Y
: _

__
_C

us
to

m
er

  _
__

_T
ra

ne
Co

nf
ide

nt
ial

 a
nd

 P
ro

pr
iet

ar
y I

nf
or

m
at

ion
 o

fT
ra

ne
 U

.S
. I

nc
.

Ex
hi

bi
tE

.2
Tr

an
e 

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o.
: #

J4
80

61
2

™
PA

CT
 is

 a
 tr

ad
em

ar
k o

fT
ra

ne
 U

.S
.

In
c.

P
ag

e
3

of
4

W
al

d 
Pa

rk
 T

en
ni

s
Ex

is
tin

g
30

00
12

96
2.

31
46

12
5

$5
,7

50
15

6.
48

$3
7,

26
0

$2
,4

84
Pr

op
os

ed
50

00
12

96
3.

86
46

12
5

$5
,7

50
15

0
$0

$0
.0

0
Sa

vi
ng

s
$3

7,
26

0
$2

,4
84

C
ah

ab
a 

H
ei

gh
ts

Ex
is

tin
g

30
00

80
0

3.
75

11
8

12
5

$1
4,

75
0

15
4

$5
9,

00
0

$3
,9

33
Pr

op
os

ed
50

00
80

0
6.

25
11

8
12

5
$1

4,
75

0
15

0
$0

$0
.0

0
Sa

vi
ng

s
$5

9,
00

0
$3

,9
33

V
es

ta
vi

a 
H

ill
s H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
T

en
ni

s C
ou

rt
s

Ex
is

tin
g

30
00

1
30

00
.0

0
0

12
5

$0
15

0.
00

5
$0

$0
Pr

op
os

ed
50

00
1

50
00

.0
0

0
12

5
$0

15
0.

00
3

$0
$0

.0
0

Sa
vi

ng
s

$0
$0

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

 S
av

in
gs

 fo
r 

15
 y

rs
$5

44
,6

69

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

 A
nn

ua
liz

ed
Sa

vi
ng

s
$3

6,
31

1.
28

$3
6,

31
1

136



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit E.2 Trane Project No.: # J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.
Page 4 of 4

3.0 Presentation of Savings:

The following values are the stipulated lighting maintenance savings the City of Vestavia Hills will realize by
retrofitting the existing lights as presented in the proposal.

Total Annual Stipulated Lighting Materials Deferment Savings = $36,311

The above Operational Savings are mutually agreed to by Customer and Trane, will not be measured or
recalculated during the life of the Agreement, and are hereby stipulated for the purposes of this Agreement.

137



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit E.3 Trane Project No.: # J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.
Page 1 of 2

1.0 Agreed Upon Parameters:

The following are mutually agreed upon parameters that describe the basis for the Operational Savings set forth
herein.  These parameters are hereby stipulated for the purposes of this Agreement, as fact and will not be
measured, monitored or adjusted.

a) Applicability

Associated with the implementation of this project are several valid opportunities to obtain operational
savings:

i) The retrofit of various fluorescent lighting fixtures in certain city buildings will reduce energy
consumption for those particular retrofitted fixtures

ii) The retrofit of various fluorescent lighting fixtures in certain city buildings will reduce lamp and ballast
replacement labor & material.

iii) The retrofit of the athletic field lighting with the MUSCO systems will reduce typical storm damage
that occurs when the fields are subjected to high wind speeds & stormy weather conditions.

iv) The retrofit of the athletic field lighting with the MUSCO systems will reduce or eliminate the labor &
vehicle usage currently required to turn the lights on/off each day.

Base Utility Rates are set forth in Exhibit E Section 14.0

b) Annual Operating Characteristics

The annual operating characteristics are based on the detailed audit of [a] certain city buildings (performed by
Mayer Energy Services), and [b] the sports lighting systems at the various athletic complexes (performed by
MUSCO Lighting), customer interviews, customer maintenance invoices, and industry standard percentages
of average failure rates for new lamps and ballasts. These values are mutually agreed to by Customer and
Trane.

2.0 Computation of Savings:

The following describes the stipulated methodology for computing Operational Savings based on the agreed to
lamp and ballast failure rates.

a) Presentation of Data

The following data is presented for use in the savings calculation and has been established and
collaboratively agreed to by the Customer and Trane.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the data is
considered fact and will not be measured, monitored or adjusted.

i) The city provided Trane with the Detailed Audit report performed on the building lighting for several of
the city’s buildings. These buildings were retrofitted with more efficient T8/Electronically Ballasted
lighting systems. The results of that audit, provided by the city, show an annual savings of
$21,451/year.

ii) Also, this audit showed that the maintenance labor & material savings due to upgrading those lights
was calculated to equal $4,377 per year.

iii) Based on invoices provided by the city, storm damage in 2011 resulted in $129,389 just from the one
storm. In as much as storm damage is not uncommon, but is highly unpredictable, the amount to be
used for annual operational savings, at 15%, is taken as $ 19,408.

EXHIBIT - E.3
Miscellaneous Operational Savings

138



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit E.3 Trane Project No.: # J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.
Page 2 of 2

iv) As an example, Google Maps gives a roundtrip distance of 23.4 miles and an approximate drive time
of 0.54 hours to make the roundtrip. Allowing about 10 minutes per stop, this gives about 2 hours per
roundtrip to drive and perform the task. Two roundtrips are required per day, one to turn on the lights
and one trip to turn them off. Using a Labor Rate of $15.00/hour, a vehicle cost of $0.51/mile, and 280
days/year, results in a cost of $23,512/year. To be conservative, the reduced Man-hour and vehicle
mileage costs are agreed to be $15,000/year.

3.0 Presentation of Savings:

The following values are the stipulated miscellaneous Operational Savings the City of Vestavia Hills will realize by
retrofitting the existing lighting systems as presented in the proposal.

Total Annual Stipulated Miscellaneous Operational Savings = $60,239

The above Operational Savings are mutually agreed to by Customer and Trane, will not be measured or
recalculated during the life of the Agreement, and are hereby stipulated for the purposes of this Agreement.

139



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit E.4 Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.
Page 1 of 1

1.0 Agreed Upon Parameters:

The following are mutually agreed upon parameters that describes the basis for the Energy Rate Savings herein.
These parameters are hereby stipulated for the purposes of this Agreement, as fact and will not be measured,
monitored or adjusted.

a) Applicability

The Wald Park, Cahaba Heights, East Elementary, and Sicard Hollow complexes have meters that are on the
Alabama Power LAF electrical rate structure. These meters can benefit by being changed to the LTU, time of
use, rate structure.

Base Utility Rates are set forth in Exhibit E Section 14.0

b) Annual Operating Characteristics

The annual operating characteristics are based on the detailed audit of the sports lighting systems at the
various complexes, customer interviews, customer maintenance invoices, and industry standard percentages
of average failure rates for new lamps and ballasts. These values are mutually agreed to by Customer and
Trane.

2.0 Computation of Savings:

The following describes the stipulated methodology for computing savings based on the agreed to lamp and
ballast failure rates.

a) Presentation of Data

The following data is presented for use in the savings calculation and has been established and
collaboratively agreed to by the Customer and Trane.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the data is
considered fact and will not be measured, monitored or adjusted.

Based on the rate comparison performed by Alabama Power, the savings realized by merely changing the rate
structure based on historical energy consumption is $47,873.

3.0 Presentation of Savings:

The following values are the stipulated Energy Rate Savings the City of Vestavia Hills will realize by retrofitting
the existing lights as presented in the proposal.

Total Annual Stipulated Energy Rate Savings = $47,873

The above Energy Rate Savings is mutually agreed to by Customer and Trane, will not be measured or
recalculated during the life of the Agreement, and are hereby stipulated for the purposes of this Agreement.

EXHIBIT - E.4
Electrical Rate Change Operational Savings

140



© 2007 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit E.5 Trane Project No.: # J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.
Page 1 of 1

1.0 Agreed Upon Parameters:

The following are mutually agreed upon parameters that describes the basis for the Operational Savings herein.
These parameters are hereby stipulated for the purposes of this Agreement, as fact and will not be measured,
monitored or adjusted.

a) Applicability

Many of the parks have obsolete sports lighting systems that are at the end of their useful life and require
replacement. The cost without the effect of inflation required to replace the obsolete sports lighting systems is
about $600,000. None of these costs are currently included in any near term capital plans. The implementation of
this project provides a funding source for the sports lighting improvements and avoids the requirement to budget
$600,000 for the work necessary to keep the parks operational during the term of this Agreement.

Base Utility Rates are set forth in Exhibit E Section 14.0

b) Annual Operating Characteristics

The annual operating characteristics are based on the detailed audit of the sports lighting systems at the
various complexes, customer interviews, customer maintenance invoices, and industry standard percentages
of average failure rates for new lamps and ballasts. These values are mutually agreed to by Customer and
Trane.

2.0 Computation of Savings:

The following describes the stipulated methodology for computing capital costs avoidance.

a) Presentation of Data

The following data is presented for use in the savings calculation and has been established and
collaboratively agreed to by the Customer and Trane.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the data is
considered fact and will not be measured, monitored or adjusted.

The capital needs expressed over the 14 year term creates an annual capital cost avoidance of
$42,857 per year.

3.0 Presentation of Operational Savings:

The following is the stipulated capital costs avoidance the City of Vestavia Hills will realize by retrofitting the
existing lights as presented in the proposal.

Total Annual Stipulated Capital Costs Avoidance = $42,857

The above Capital Costs Avoidance is mutually agreed to by Customer and Trane, will not be measured or
recalculated during the life of the Agreement, and are hereby stipulated for the purposes of this Agreement.

EXHIBIT - E.5
Capital Cost Avoidance Operational Savings

141



© 2009 TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit F (2-2-09) Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.
Page 1 of 1

Pursuant to Section 5.01 of the Agreement, the existence of the following Hazardous Materials has
been disclosed by Customer and/or otherwise identified prior to the execution of the Agreement:

• “PCB-containing ballasts and mercury-containing lamps which shall be replaced by Trane and
disposed of by Customer as owner/generator of the Hazardous Material.

EXHIBIT F
Hazardous Materials

142



© 2009TraneAll rights reserved INITIALED BY: ____Customer  ____Trane
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. Exhibit G (2-2-09) Trane Project No.: J480612

™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.
Page 1 of 4

Commencing upon the Date of Final Completion, Trane will furnish the Measurement and
Verification described in this Exhibit with respect to the Covered Equipment upon the terms and
conditions contained in this Exhibit.  In the event of an inconsistency or conflict between the terms
and conditions of this Exhibit and the terms and conditions of the balance of this Agreement, the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit shall control.

Included if
Checked

Visits Per
Year

Measurement and Verification Description

1 Scheduled Service:   M&V Visit
• Provide services of electrical subcontractor to measure actual watts

used for on one pole at each of the following sites:
• Central Elementary Athletic Field
• East Elementary Athletic Field
• Liberty Park Athletic Facility
• Cahaba Heights Athletic Field
• Wald Park Athletic Field
• Vestavia Hills High School Tennis Courts

• Witness light wattage measurements
• Prepare and submit savings report based on actual wattage measured

Measurement and Verification Price and Annual Adjustment. The The price for Measurement
and Verification is set forth below on an annual basis, subject to the adjustments provided for herein.
Trane will invoice the Measurement and Verification Price once each year and each such invoice
shall be due in advance of performance of the Measurement and Verification Trane reserves the
right to add to any account outstanding for more than 30 days a service charge equal to the lesser of
the maximum allowable legal interest rate or 1.5% of the principal amount due at the end of each
month. Trane may discontinue Measurement and Verification whenever payment is overdue.
Unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing, Customer shall pay, in addition to the stated
Measurement and Verification Price, all taxes not legally required to be paid by Trane or,
alternatively, shall provide Trane with an acceptable, valid certificate of tax exemption.  Customer
shall pay all costs (including attorneys’ fees) incurred by Trane in attempting to collect amounts due.
Effective upon each annual anniversary of the Maintenance and Verification Commencement Date,
the annual Measurement and Verification Price shall be adjusted upward by the Annual Adjustment
Rate; for each year of this Agreement subsequent to the first anniversary of the Measurement and
Verification Commencement Date, the Annual Adjustment Rate shall be applied to the annual
Maintenance Price as previously adjusted.

First Year Annual Measurement and Verification Price $10,000
Any Applicable Tax* and Freight $N/A
First Year Annual Measurement and Verification Price Total $10,000

Annual Adjustment Rate 4%
(*$0.00 tax is contingent upon Customer furnishing evidence to Trane of
valid, applicable exemption from sales/use or other applicable taxes.)

Term. Trane’s obligations to furnish the Measurement and Verification shall commence upon the
Date of Final Completion as defined in Section 2.03 of this Agreement (the “Measurement and
Verification Commencement Date”) and, unless this Agreement is terminated earlier, shall end upon
expiration of the Guarantee Term set forth in Exhibit E.

EXHIBIT G
Measurement and Verification

143



2009TraneAll rights reserved Exhibit G (2-2-09) Trane Project No.: J480612
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. ™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.

Page 2 of 4

Schedule A to Exhibit G
Covered Equipment

Equipment
Type Quantity Manufacturer Model

Number Location

Sports Lighting
Fixtures

See
Scope of

Work
Exhibit B

Musco Lighting See Scope of
Work Exhibit

B

144



2009TraneAll rights reserved Exhibit G (2-2-09) Trane Project No.: J480612
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. ™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.

Page 3 of 4

Exhibit G Additional Terms and Conditions

Performance. Trane shall perform the Maintenance described in the schedules included with this
Exhibit G with respect to the listed Covered Equipment with reasonable promptness in a
workmanlike manner in accordance with industry standards generally applicable in the area.  Except
as otherwise expressly stated, Measurement and Verification will be performed during Trane’s
normal business hours and any after-hours services shall be billed separately according to then
prevailing overtime or emergency labor rates.  Trane’s duty to perform Measurement and Verification
is subject to Events of Force Majeure, and contingent upon the ability to procure materials from the
usual sources of supply.  This Agreement presupposes that all major pieces of equipment are in
proper operating condition as of the date hereof.  Customer shall perform required restoration at its
cost prior to Trane being obligated to perform hereunder. Measurement and Verification furnished is
premised on the Covered Equipment being in a maintainable condition.  If initial or seasonal startup
is included in the Measurement and Verification, or an inspection by Trane prior to commencement
of the Measurement and Verification, indicates repairs are required, Customer shall authorize Trane
to perform such repairs pursuant to a quote for the repairs provided by Trane. During the Term,
Trane may elect to install/attach to Customer equipment or provide portable devices (hardware
and/or software) for execution of control or diagnostic procedures.  Such devices shall remain the
personal proprietary property of Trane and shall in no event become a fixture of customer locations.
Customer shall not acquire any interest, title or equity in any hardware, software, processes, and
other intellectual or proprietary rights to devices used in connection with providing service on
Covered Equipment.  Trane reserves the right to remove such items at its discretion.

Customer Obligations. Throughout the Term, Customer shall:

a. Provide Trane reasonable and safe access to all Covered Equipment;
b. Follow manufacturer recommendations concerning teardown and internal inspection, major

overhaul, restoration,  or refurbishing of the Equipment; unless expressly stated in the Scope
of Services statement, Trane is not performing any manufacturer recommended teardown
and internal inspection, major overhaul, restoration, or refurbishing of the equipment; Trane
shall not be responsible to perform any subsequent repairs to the Equipment necessitated
by Customer’s failure to follow such manufacturer recommendations;

c. Reimburse Trane for services, repairs, and/or replacements performed by Trane beyond the
scope of Measurement and Verification or otherwise excluded hereunder.  Such
reimbursement shall be at the then prevailing overtime/holiday rates for labor and prices for
materials and may at Trane’s option be subject to a separate written agreement prior to its
undertaking such work;

d. Promptly notify Trane of any unusual performance of Covered Equipment;
e. Permit only qualified personnel to repair or adjust Covered Equipment and/or controls

during the Term;
f. Utilize qualified personnel to properly operate the Covered Equipment in accordance with

the applicable operating manuals and recommended procedures; and
g. Unless water treatment is expressly included in the Measurement and Verification, provide

professional cooling tower water treatment in accordance with any reasonable
recommendations provided by Trane.

Exclusions. Unless expressly included in “Scope of Services” or “Equipment Coverage,” the
services to be provided by Trane do not include, and Trane shall not be liable for, any of the
following:

a. Any guarantee of system performance, except as expressly stated in Exhibit E to this
Agreement; Repairs or replacement of parts made necessary as a result of electrical power
failure, low voltage, burned out main or branch fuses, low water pressure, vandalism, misuse
or abuse, improper operation, unauthorized alteration of Equipment, accident, negligence of
Customer or others, damage due to freezing weather, calamity or malicious act;

145



2009TraneAll rights reserved Exhibit G (2-2-09) Trane Project No.: J480612
Confidential and Proprietary Information of Trane U.S. Inc. ™PACT is a trademark of Trane U.S. Inc.

Page 4 of 4

b. Any damage or malfunction resulting from vibration, electrolytic action, freezing,
contamination, corrosion, erosion.,;

c. Furnishing any items of equipment, material, or labor/labour, or performing special tests
recommended or required by insurance companies or federal, state, or local governments;

d. Failure or inadequacy of any structure or foundation supporting or surrounding the
Equipment or any portion thereof;

e. Building access or alterations that might be necessary to repair or replace Customer’s
existing equipment;

f. Any services, claims, or damages arising out of Customer’s failure to comply with its
obligations under this Agreement;

g. Failure of Customer to follow manufacturer recommended guidelines concerning overhaul
and refurbishing of the Equipment;

h. Any claims, damages, losses, or expenses, arising from or related to conditions that existed
in, on, or upon the premises before the effective date of this Agreement (“Pre-Existing
Conditions”), including, without limitation, damages, losses, or expenses involving pre-
existing building envelope issues, mechanical issues, plumbing issues, Operation of the
equipment; and

i. Any claims, damages, losses, or expenses, arising from or related to work done by or
services provided by individuals or entities that are not employed by or hired by Trane.

146



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4422 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH CDG ENGINEERS AND 
ASSOCIATES, INC., FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR ATRIP 
PROJECT NO. 37-03-33 RESURFACING COLUMBIANA, TYLER AND 
OVERTON ROADS DATED MARCH 6, 2013 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement 

with CDG Engineers and Associates, Inc., for engineering services for ATRIP Project 

No. 37-03-33, Resurfacing Columbiana, Tyler and Overton Roads, Dated March 6, 2013 

at a cost not to exceed $185,906 (Rocky Ridge Road - $109,321 and 

Columbiana/Tyler/Overton Roads - $76,585); and 

2. A copy of the agreement is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 

4422 as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4422 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of March, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

147



ATRIP project cost estimates
breakdown of approximate percentage per municipal jurisdictions
updated:  6‐March‐2013

ATRIP No. 37‐03‐34
Rocky Ridge Estimated Cost 20% Match estimated PE fees

5.71 miles 2,677,308.69$   535,461.74$  109,321.00$  
Jeff Co 0.55
Jeff Co(MtnBrk/VH) 0.79
Jeff Co(VH/Hoover) 0.22 27.3% 146,290.77$  29,867.03$    
Vestavia 2.72 47.6% 255,071.09$  52,075.85$    
Hoover 1.43 25.0% 134,099.87$  27,378.11$    

ATRIP No. 37‐03‐33
Columbiana/Tyler/Overton Estimated Cost 20% Match estimated PE fees

1.35 miles 1,057,504.00$   211,500.80$  76,585.00$    
Jeff Co (VH/Hoover) 0.189 14.0% 29,610.11$    10,721.90$    
Vestavia 1.161 86.0% 181,890.69$  65,863.10$    

148



149



 
AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 
 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ____ day of _________________, 2013, by 
and between the City of Vestavia Hills, hereinafter referred to as the Owner, and CDG 
ENGINEERS & ASSOCIATES, INC., hereinafter referred to as the Engineer.  
 
WHEREAS, the Owner desires to have professional engineering services and consultation 
performed relative to designing construction plans to ALDOT specifications for ATRIP Project 
Nos. 37-03-33 Resurfacing Columbiana, Tyler and Overton Roads, hereinafter referred to as the 
Project. 
 
WHEREAS, not having engaged any other engineers for the Project, Owner desires to retain the 
Engineer as its sole and exclusive engineering and consulting firm for the Project; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions hereinafter 
contained, the Owner and Engineer do agree, each with the other, as follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1.  Basic Services.  
 
The Engineer shall provide the Owner the following basic professional engineering services and 
consultation: 
 
The Design Phase 
 
1.1 The Engineer will consult with the Owner to determine the Owner’s requirements for the 
project. 
 
1.2 Complete geotechnical field evaluation and provide a report outlining recommended 
pavement section(s). 
 
1.3 Develop final construction plans to ALDOT specifications, including resurfacing and 
safety improvements as required on the project. 
 
1.3 The Engineer will facilitate the required ALDOT review(s) and approval(s) necessary to 
let the contract to construction in accordance with established ATRIP procedures. 
 
The Proposal for Professional Engineering Services for ATRIP Project No. 37-03-33 
Resurfacing Columbiana, Tyler and Overton Roads, Dated March 6, 2013 – and its detailed 
scope of work – as provided to and approved by the City of Vestavia Hills is attached hereto and 
made a part of this Agreement.  
 
 
 

150



 
ARTICLE 2. Additional Services. 
 
If authorized in writing by Owner and accepted by Engineer through written amendment hereto, 
Engineer shall furnish, or obtain from others, additional services of the types listed below.  These 
services will be paid for by the Owner as indicated in Article 4 of the Agreement. 
 
2.1 Preparation of applications and supporting documents (in addition to those furnished under 
Article 1, if applicable) for private or governmental grants, loans or advances in connection with 
the Project; review and evaluation of the effects on the design requirements for the Project of any 
such statements and documents prepared by others; and assistance in obtaining approvals of 
authorities having jurisdiction over the anticipated environmental impact of the Project. 
 
2.2 Services to make measured drawings of or to investigate existing conditions or facilities, or 
to verify the accuracy of drawings or other information furnished by Owner. 
 
2.3 Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or character of the portions 
of the Services designed or specified by Engineer or its design requirements including, but not 
limited to, changes in size, complexity, Owner’s schedule, character of construction, or method of 
financing; and revising previously accepted studies, reports, Drawings, Specifications, or Contract 
Documents when such revisions are required by changes in Laws and Regulations enacted 
subsequent to the Effective Date of this Agreement or are due to any other causes beyond 
Engineer’s control. 
 
2.4 Providing renderings or models not defined as part of construction plans for Owner’s use. 
 
2.5 Physical testing of materials and equipment to be incorporated in the work and other such 
analysis or testing when necessary or deemed advisable by the Engineer, including but not 
limited to that testing included in the Owner’s Project budget.  
 
2.6 Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited to, detailed consideration 
of operations, maintenance, and overhead expenses; the preparation of feasibility studies, cash flow 
and economic evaluations, rate schedules, and appraisals; assistance in obtaining financing for a 
Project; evaluating processes available for licensing, and assisting Owner in obtaining process 
licensing; detailed quantity surveys of materials, equipment, and labor; and audits or inventories 
required in connection with construction performed by Owner. 
 
2.7 Services during out-of-town travel required of Engineer other than for visits to the Site or 
Owner’s office.  
 
2.8 Providing construction surveys and staking to enable Contractor to perform its work, and 
any type of property surveys or related engineering services needed for the transfer of interests in 
real property; and providing other special field surveys. 
 
2.9 Preparing and furnishing to Owner Record Drawings showing appropriate record 
information based on Project annotated record documents received from Contractor. 
 

151



2.10 Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for Owner in any litigation, 
arbitration or other dispute resolution process related to the Project.  
 
2.11 Prepare property deeds, temporary easements, construction easements, Right-of-Way 
documents, and assist in acquisition of such documents deemed necessary in the scope of each 
project. 
 
2.12 Other services performed or furnished by Engineer not otherwise provided for in this 
Agreement. 
 
 
ARTICLE 3.  Responsibilities of the Owner. 
 
The Owner shall provide for the Engineer the following information and shall do the following: 
 
3.1 The Owner shall provide all criteria and complete information as to the Owner’s 
requirements for the Project and shall furnish all design and construction standards which the 
Owner will require to be included in the engineering plans, specifications, and operational 
narrative. 
 
3.2 The Owner will assist the Engineer by placing at the Engineer’s disposal all available 
information pertinent to the Project. 
 
3.3 The Owner shall arrange for access to and make all provisions for the Engineer to enter 
upon public and private property to perform surveying, testing and other data collection as 
required for Engineer to perform services under this Agreement.  Owner shall appoint and 
designate in writing a person to act as Owner’s site access representative for such purpose, and 
shall include contact information for the individual so designated.  Owner agrees to hold the 
Engineer harmless from any and all claims, actions, damages and costs, including but not limited 
to attorneys fees, arising from Owner’s arrangements and provisions for access to property. 
 
3.4 The Owner shall be responsible for funding Right-of-Way (R.O.W.) acquisitions and/or 
Easements necessary to carry out construction tasks detailed within the project plans and 
specifications.   
 
3.5 The Owner shall designate in writing a person to act as the Owner’s representative with 
respect to the services to be rendered under this Agreement.  Such person shall have complete 
authority to transmit instructions and receive information. 
 
3.6 The Owner shall provide such accounting, independent cost estimating and insurance 
counseling services as may be required for the Project. The Owner shall also provide such legal 
services as the Owner may require or the Engineer may reasonably request with regard to legal 
issues pertaining to the Project that must be resolved in order for the Engineer to carry out its 
obligations under this Agreement.  It is expressly understood and agreed that the Engineer itself 
shall not furnish or render any legal opinions or legal interpretations as to matters of law or 
application of law. 
 

152



3.7 The Owner agrees to pay all costs of physical testing of materials and equipment to be 
incorporated in the work and other such analysis or testing when necessary or deemed advisable 
by the Engineer, including but not limited to that testing provided for and reflected in the  
Owner’s Project budget. 
 
 
 
ARTICLE 4.  Compensation.  
 
4.1 The Owner agrees to pay to the Engineer, in cash, total compensation of Seventy-Six  
Thousand, Five Hundred Eighty Five Dollars ($76,585.00) to be paid periodically as work 
progresses on the Design Phase.   
 
4.2     The Owner may, from time to time, request changes in the scope of the services of the 
Engineer to be performed hereunder.  Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the 
amount of Engineer’s compensation, that are mutually agreed upon by the Owner and the 
Engineer, shall be incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement. 
 
4.3 Owner shall reimburse Engineer for all costs incurred for ALDOT’s direct instruction to 
rebid the project at the rates shown in the Engineer’s most current Standard Fee Schedule. 
 
4.4 Owner shall reimburse Engineer for all costs incurred for the physical testing of materials 
and equipment to be incorporated in the work and other such analysis or testing when necessary 
or deemed advisable by the Engineer, including but not limited to that testing included in the 
Owner’s Project budget.  
 
4.5 Compensation for services performed by Engineer’s employees as witnesses giving 
testimony in any litigation, arbitration or administrative proceeding shall be paid by Owner at a 
rate of 1.5 times the Engineer’s standard hourly rates.  Whenever Engineer’s bill to Owner 
includes charges for Engineer’s consultants for such services, those charges shall be the amounts 
billed by Engineer’s consultant to Engineer times a factor of 1.15. 
 
4.6 Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt.  If Owner fails to make any 
payment due Engineer for services and expenses within 30 days after receipt of Engineer’s invoice 
therefore, the amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.5% per month (or the 
maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day.  In addition, Engineer 
may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend services under this Agreement until 
Engineer has been paid in full all amounts due for services, expenses, and other related charges.  
Payments will be credited first to interest and then to principal.  Owner shall pay all costs and fees, 
including but not limited to attorney’s fees, incurred by Engineer in the collection of any sums 
due for services rendered and related service expenses. 
 
 
ARTICLE 5.  Relationship of the Parties. 
 
5.1 The parties intend that this Agreement create an independent contractor relationship 
between them.  The Engineer is a professional corporation and is not an agent or employee of 

153



Owner for any purpose.  The Engineer cannot and will not represent that he has the authority to 
bind Owner in any contractual manner.   
 
5.2 Neither party is to represent to others that the relationship between them is other than as 
stated above. 
 
5.3 Nothing under this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits in this 
Agreement to anyone other than the Owner and the Engineer, and all duties and responsibilities 
undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Owner 
and the Engineer and not for the benefit of any other party. 
 
5.4 The Owner and the Engineer each is hereby bound and the partners, successors, 
executors, administrators, legal representatives and assigns (to the extent permitted by Paragraph 
5.5 below) are hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, 
executors, administrations, legal representatives and said assigns of such other party, in respect 
of all covenants, agreements, and obligations of this Agreement. 
 
5.5 Neither the Owner nor the Engineer shall assign, sublet or transfer any rights under or 
interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other, except to the extent that any 
assignment, subletting or transfer is mandated or restricted by law . Unless specifically stated to 
the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the 
assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement.  Nothing contained in this 
paragraph shall prevent the Engineer from employing such independent professional associates, 
consultants, subcontractors, and vendors as the Engineer may deem appropriate to assist in the 
performance of services hereunder. 
 
5.6 Engineer may employ such independent professional associates, consultants, 
subcontractors, and vendors as the Engineer may deem appropriate to assist in the performance 
or furnishing of services under this Agreement.  Engineer shall not be required to employ any 
consultant unacceptable to Engineer.  
 
 
ARTICLE 6. Ownership and Use of Project Documents. 
 
6.1 All documents are instruments of service in respect to the Services, and Engineer shall 
retain an ownership and proprietary property interest therein (including the right of reuse at the 
discretion of the Engineer) whether or not the Services are completed. 
 
6.2 Copies of documents that may be relied on by Owner are limited to the printed copies 
(also known as hard copies) that are signed or sealed by the Engineer.  Files in electronic media 
format of text, data, graphics, or of other types that are furnished by Engineer to Owner are only 
for convenience of Owner.  Any conclusion or information obtained or derived from such 
electronic files will be at the user’s sole risk. 
 
6.3 Owner may make and retain copies of documents for information and reference in 
connection with the services by Engineer.  Such documents are not intended or represented to be 
suitable for reuse by Owner or others on extensions of the services or on any other project.  Any 

154



such reuse or modification without written verification or adaptation by Engineer, as appropriate 
for the specific purpose intended, will be at Owner’s sole risk and without liability or legal 
exposure to Engineer or to Engineer’s consultants.  Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless 
Engineer and Engineer’s consultants from all claims, damages, and expenses including 
attorneys’ fees arising out of or resulting therefrom.  
 
6.4 In the event of a discrepancy between the electronic files and the hard copies, the hard 
copies govern. 
 
6.5 Any verification or adaptation of the documents for extensions of the services or for any 
other services will entitle Engineer to further compensation at rates to be agreed upon by Owner 
and Engineer. 
 
 
ARTICLE 7. Liability and Indemnity. 
 
7.1  The Engineer will not be responsible for delays or obstacles attributable to acts of God, 
acts of third parties, weather, intervention of public authorities, work stoppages, changes in the 
applicable laws or regulations after the date of commencement of performance hereunder and 
any other acts or omissions or events which are beyond the control of the Engineer. 
 
7.2 Owner may not utilize Engineer’s construction cost estimate after thirty calendar days 
from the date of delivery to Owner without Engineer’s written consent.  Estimates of cost are 
made on the basis of the Engineer’s experience, qualifications, and professional judgment, but 
since Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment or services furnished 
by others, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, Engineer cannot and does not 
guarantee or warrant that proposals, bids or actual construction costs will not vary from estimates 
of probable costs prepared by Engineer.  Approvals, recommendations, estimates and decisions 
by the Engineer are made on the basis of the Engineer’s experience, qualifications, and 
professional judgment and are not to be construed as warranties or guarantees.  
 
7.3 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Engineer’s total liability to 
the Owner for any loss or damages from claims arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement from any cause including the Engineer’s strict liability, breach of contract, or 
professional negligence, errors and omissions (whether claimed in tort, contract, strict liability, 
nuisance, by statute or otherwise) shall not exceed the lesser of the total contract  price of this 
Agreement or the proceeds paid under Engineer’s liability insurance in effect at the time such 
claims are made.  The Owner hereby releases the Engineer from any liability exceeding such 
amount.  In no event shall either party to this Agreement be liable to the other for special, 
indirect, incidental or consequential damages, whether or not such damages were foreseeable at 
the time of the commencement of the work under this Agreement. 
 
7.4 Any and all liability resulting from conditions not created or caused to be created by the 
Engineer shall be the liability of the Owner.  Any and all liability that may arise from the 
construction, ownership and/or operation of the improvements is solely the responsibility of the 
Owner, and the Owner hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the Engineer harmless from such 

155



liability, claims, actions, loss or damage, including but not limited to attorney’s fees, arising 
therefrom. 
 
7.5 The Owner shall make no claim for professional negligence, either directly or by way of 
a cross complaint against the Engineer unless the Owner has first provided the Engineer with a 
written certification executed by an independent consultant currently practicing in the same 
discipline as the Engineer and licensed in the State of Alabama.  This certification shall: a) 
contain the name and license number of the certifier, b) specify the acts or omissions that the 
certifier contends are not in conformance with the standard of care for an engineer performing 
professional services under similar circumstances; and c) state in detail the basis for the certifiers 
opinion that such acts or omissions do not conform to the standard of care.  This certificate shall 
be provided by the consultant not less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the presentation of 
any claim or the institution of any arbitration or judicial proceeding.  This Certificate of Merit 
clause will take precedence over any existing state law in force at the time of the claim or 
demand for arbitration 
 
 
ARTICLE 8. Termination. 
 
8.1 This Agreement shall be subject to termination by either party hereto, with or without 
cause, upon twenty (20) days advance notice in writing.  Payment due Engineer at such time 
shall be computed upon applicable terms of Article 4,  the amount of work completed or in 
progress as of the termination date and Engineer’s reasonable cost of winding down its services 
after termination.  
 
 
ARTICLE 9. Binding Arbitration.  
 
9.1 Any dispute arising out of or relating to this contract, including the breach, termination or 
validity thereof, shall be finally resolved by arbitration in accordance with the International 
Institute for Conflict Prevention and Resolution Rules for Non-Administered Arbitration by a 
sole arbitrator.  The arbitration shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. §§ 1 et 
seq., and judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered by any court having 
jurisdiction thereof. The place of the arbitration shall be in Andalusia, Alabama. 
 
ARTICLE 10. Miscellaneous. 
 
10.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the Owner and 
Engineer and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, whether written or 
oral.  This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented or modified by written instrument 
executed by both the Owner and the Engineer. 
 
10.2 It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that if any part, term or provision of this 
Agreement is held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any 
applicable law, the validity of the remaining portion or portions of this Agreement shall not be 
affected and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the 
Agreement did not contain the particular part, term, or provision held to be invalid. 

156



 
10.3 It is expressively understood and agreed that the indemnity and insurance obligations of 
this Agreement, as well as the Engineer’s proprietary interest in its engineering plans and 
specifications, shall survive the termination of this Agreement under Article 8 above as well as 
the completion of services under this Agreement.  
 
10.4 This Agreement is to be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama. 
 
 
 

WHEREFORE, the undersigned, by their signatures, certify that they have carefully read 
this Agreement, understand the terms and conditions contained herein, have proper authority to 
execute this Agreement, and do so as their own free act: 
 
Owner:      Engineer:      
       
By:       By:       

 
Title:       Title:       
 
Date:       Date:       
 
       
Owner’s Designated Representative:   Engineer’s Designated Representative: 

        Marc Thompson    
       
Title:       Title:   Project Manager  

 
Phone:       Phone:   (205) 403-2600  
 
Fax:       Fax:   (205) 406-2623  
 
Email:       Email:      mthompson@cdge.com  
 
       

157



158



159



160



 
AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 
 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ____ day of _________________, 2013, by 
and between the City of Vestavia Hills, hereinafter referred to as the Owner, and CDG 
ENGINEERS & ASSOCIATES, INC., hereinafter referred to as the Engineer.  
 
WHEREAS, the Owner desires to have professional engineering services and consultation 
performed relative to designing construction plans to ALDOT specifications for ATRIP Project 
Nos. 37-03-34 Resurfacing Rocky Ridge Road from Shades Crest Road to Lorna Road, 
hereinafter referred to as the Project. 
 
WHEREAS, not having engaged any other engineers for the Project, Owner desires to retain the 
Engineer as its sole and exclusive engineering and consulting firm for the Project; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions hereinafter 
contained, the Owner and Engineer do agree, each with the other, as follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1.  Basic Services.  
 
The Engineer shall provide the Owner the following basic professional engineering services and 
consultation: 
 
The Design Phase 
 
1.1 The Engineer will consult with the Owner to determine the Owner’s requirements for the 
project. 
 
1.2 Complete geotechnical field evaluation and provide a report outlining recommended 
pavement section(s). 
 
1.3 Develop final construction plans to ALDOT specifications, including resurfacing and 
safety improvements as required on the project. 
 
1.3 The Engineer will facilitate the required ALDOT review(s) and approval(s) necessary to 
let the contract to construction in accordance with established ATRIP procedures. 
 
The Proposal for Professional Engineering Services for ATRIP Project No. 37-03-34 
Resurfacing Rocky Ridge Road from Shades Crest Road to Lorna, Dated March 6, 2013 – and its 
detailed scope of work – as provided to and approved by the City of Vestavia Hills is attached 
hereto and made a part of this Agreement.  
 
 
 

161



 
ARTICLE 2. Additional Services. 
 
If authorized in writing by Owner and accepted by Engineer through written amendment hereto, 
Engineer shall furnish, or obtain from others, additional services of the types listed below.  These 
services will be paid for by the Owner as indicated in Article 4 of the Agreement. 
 
2.1 Preparation of applications and supporting documents (in addition to those furnished under 
Article 1, if applicable) for private or governmental grants, loans or advances in connection with 
the Project; review and evaluation of the effects on the design requirements for the Project of any 
such statements and documents prepared by others; and assistance in obtaining approvals of 
authorities having jurisdiction over the anticipated environmental impact of the Project. 
 
2.2 Services to make measured drawings of or to investigate existing conditions or facilities, or 
to verify the accuracy of drawings or other information furnished by Owner. 
 
2.3 Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or character of the portions 
of the Services designed or specified by Engineer or its design requirements including, but not 
limited to, changes in size, complexity, Owner’s schedule, character of construction, or method of 
financing; and revising previously accepted studies, reports, Drawings, Specifications, or Contract 
Documents when such revisions are required by changes in Laws and Regulations enacted 
subsequent to the Effective Date of this Agreement or are due to any other causes beyond 
Engineer’s control. 
 
2.4 Providing renderings or models not defined as part of construction plans for Owner’s use. 
 
2.5 Physical testing of materials and equipment to be incorporated in the work and other such 
analysis or testing when necessary or deemed advisable by the Engineer, including but not 
limited to that testing included in the Owner’s Project budget.  
 
2.6 Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited to, detailed consideration 
of operations, maintenance, and overhead expenses; the preparation of feasibility studies, cash flow 
and economic evaluations, rate schedules, and appraisals; assistance in obtaining financing for a 
Project; evaluating processes available for licensing, and assisting Owner in obtaining process 
licensing; detailed quantity surveys of materials, equipment, and labor; and audits or inventories 
required in connection with construction performed by Owner. 
 
2.7 Services during out-of-town travel required of Engineer other than for visits to the Site or 
Owner’s office.  
 
2.8 Providing construction surveys and staking to enable Contractor to perform its work, and 
any type of property surveys or related engineering services needed for the transfer of interests in 
real property; and providing other special field surveys. 
 
2.9 Preparing and furnishing to Owner Record Drawings showing appropriate record 
information based on Project annotated record documents received from Contractor. 
 

162



2.10 Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for Owner in any litigation, 
arbitration or other dispute resolution process related to the Project.  
 
2.11 Prepare property deeds, temporary easements, construction easements, Right-of-Way 
documents, and assist in acquisition of such documents deemed necessary in the scope of each 
project. 
 
2.12 Other services performed or furnished by Engineer not otherwise provided for in this 
Agreement. 
 
 
ARTICLE 3.  Responsibilities of the Owner. 
 
The Owner shall provide for the Engineer the following information and shall do the following: 
 
3.1 The Owner shall provide all criteria and complete information as to the Owner’s 
requirements for the Project and shall furnish all design and construction standards which the 
Owner will require to be included in the engineering plans, specifications, and operational 
narrative. 
 
3.2 The Owner will assist the Engineer by placing at the Engineer’s disposal all available 
information pertinent to the Project. 
 
3.3 The Owner shall arrange for access to and make all provisions for the Engineer to enter 
upon public and private property to perform surveying, testing and other data collection as 
required for Engineer to perform services under this Agreement.  Owner shall appoint and 
designate in writing a person to act as Owner’s site access representative for such purpose, and 
shall include contact information for the individual so designated.  Owner agrees to hold the 
Engineer harmless from any and all claims, actions, damages and costs, including but not limited 
to attorneys fees, arising from Owner’s arrangements and provisions for access to property. 
 
3.4 The Owner shall be responsible for funding Right-of-Way (R.O.W.) acquisitions and/or 
Easements necessary to carry out construction tasks detailed within the project plans and 
specifications.   
 
3.5 The Owner shall designate in writing a person to act as the Owner’s representative with 
respect to the services to be rendered under this Agreement.  Such person shall have complete 
authority to transmit instructions and receive information. 
 
3.6 The Owner shall provide such accounting, independent cost estimating and insurance 
counseling services as may be required for the Project. The Owner shall also provide such legal 
services as the Owner may require or the Engineer may reasonably request with regard to legal 
issues pertaining to the Project that must be resolved in order for the Engineer to carry out its 
obligations under this Agreement.  It is expressly understood and agreed that the Engineer itself 
shall not furnish or render any legal opinions or legal interpretations as to matters of law or 
application of law. 
 

163



3.7 The Owner agrees to pay all costs of physical testing of materials and equipment to be 
incorporated in the work and other such analysis or testing when necessary or deemed advisable 
by the Engineer, including but not limited to that testing provided for and reflected in the  
Owner’s Project budget. 
 
 
 
ARTICLE 4.  Compensation.  
 
4.1 The Owner agrees to pay to the Engineer, in cash, total compensation of One Hundred 
Nine Thousand, Three Hundred Twenty-One Dollars ($109,321.00) to be paid periodically as 
work progresses on the Design Phase.   
 
4.2     The Owner may, from time to time, request changes in the scope of the services of the 
Engineer to be performed hereunder.  Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the 
amount of Engineer’s compensation, that are mutually agreed upon by the Owner and the 
Engineer, shall be incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement. 
 
4.3 Owner shall reimburse Engineer for all costs incurred for ALDOT’s direct instruction to 
rebid the project at the rates shown in the Engineer’s most current Standard Fee Schedule. 
 
4.4 Owner shall reimburse Engineer for all costs incurred for the physical testing of materials 
and equipment to be incorporated in the work and other such analysis or testing when necessary 
or deemed advisable by the Engineer, including but not limited to that testing included in the 
Owner’s Project budget.  
 
4.5 Compensation for services performed by Engineer’s employees as witnesses giving 
testimony in any litigation, arbitration or administrative proceeding shall be paid by Owner at a 
rate of 1.5 times the Engineer’s standard hourly rates.  Whenever Engineer’s bill to Owner 
includes charges for Engineer’s consultants for such services, those charges shall be the amounts 
billed by Engineer’s consultant to Engineer times a factor of 1.15. 
 
4.6 Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt.  If Owner fails to make any 
payment due Engineer for services and expenses within 30 days after receipt of Engineer’s invoice 
therefore, the amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.5% per month (or the 
maximum rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day.  In addition, Engineer 
may, after giving seven days written notice to Owner, suspend services under this Agreement until 
Engineer has been paid in full all amounts due for services, expenses, and other related charges.  
Payments will be credited first to interest and then to principal.  Owner shall pay all costs and fees, 
including but not limited to attorney’s fees, incurred by Engineer in the collection of any sums 
due for services rendered and related service expenses. 
 
 
ARTICLE 5.  Relationship of the Parties. 
 
5.1 The parties intend that this Agreement create an independent contractor relationship 
between them.  The Engineer is a professional corporation and is not an agent or employee of 

164



Owner for any purpose.  The Engineer cannot and will not represent that he has the authority to 
bind Owner in any contractual manner.   
 
5.2 Neither party is to represent to others that the relationship between them is other than as 
stated above. 
 
5.3 Nothing under this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits in this 
Agreement to anyone other than the Owner and the Engineer, and all duties and responsibilities 
undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Owner 
and the Engineer and not for the benefit of any other party. 
 
5.4 The Owner and the Engineer each is hereby bound and the partners, successors, 
executors, administrators, legal representatives and assigns (to the extent permitted by Paragraph 
5.5 below) are hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, 
executors, administrations, legal representatives and said assigns of such other party, in respect 
of all covenants, agreements, and obligations of this Agreement. 
 
5.5 Neither the Owner nor the Engineer shall assign, sublet or transfer any rights under or 
interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other, except to the extent that any 
assignment, subletting or transfer is mandated or restricted by law . Unless specifically stated to 
the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the 
assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement.  Nothing contained in this 
paragraph shall prevent the Engineer from employing such independent professional associates, 
consultants, subcontractors, and vendors as the Engineer may deem appropriate to assist in the 
performance of services hereunder. 
 
5.6 Engineer may employ such independent professional associates, consultants, 
subcontractors, and vendors as the Engineer may deem appropriate to assist in the performance 
or furnishing of services under this Agreement.  Engineer shall not be required to employ any 
consultant unacceptable to Engineer.  
 
 
ARTICLE 6. Ownership and Use of Project Documents. 
 
6.1 All documents are instruments of service in respect to the Services, and Engineer shall 
retain an ownership and proprietary property interest therein (including the right of reuse at the 
discretion of the Engineer) whether or not the Services are completed. 
 
6.2 Copies of documents that may be relied on by Owner are limited to the printed copies 
(also known as hard copies) that are signed or sealed by the Engineer.  Files in electronic media 
format of text, data, graphics, or of other types that are furnished by Engineer to Owner are only 
for convenience of Owner.  Any conclusion or information obtained or derived from such 
electronic files will be at the user’s sole risk. 
 
6.3 Owner may make and retain copies of documents for information and reference in 
connection with the services by Engineer.  Such documents are not intended or represented to be 
suitable for reuse by Owner or others on extensions of the services or on any other project.  Any 

165



such reuse or modification without written verification or adaptation by Engineer, as appropriate 
for the specific purpose intended, will be at Owner’s sole risk and without liability or legal 
exposure to Engineer or to Engineer’s consultants.  Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless 
Engineer and Engineer’s consultants from all claims, damages, and expenses including 
attorneys’ fees arising out of or resulting therefrom.  
 
6.4 In the event of a discrepancy between the electronic files and the hard copies, the hard 
copies govern. 
 
6.5 Any verification or adaptation of the documents for extensions of the services or for any 
other services will entitle Engineer to further compensation at rates to be agreed upon by Owner 
and Engineer. 
 
 
ARTICLE 7. Liability and Indemnity. 
 
7.1  The Engineer will not be responsible for delays or obstacles attributable to acts of God, 
acts of third parties, weather, intervention of public authorities, work stoppages, changes in the 
applicable laws or regulations after the date of commencement of performance hereunder and 
any other acts or omissions or events which are beyond the control of the Engineer. 
 
7.2 Owner may not utilize Engineer’s construction cost estimate after thirty calendar days 
from the date of delivery to Owner without Engineer’s written consent.  Estimates of cost are 
made on the basis of the Engineer’s experience, qualifications, and professional judgment, but 
since Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment or services furnished 
by others, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, Engineer cannot and does not 
guarantee or warrant that proposals, bids or actual construction costs will not vary from estimates 
of probable costs prepared by Engineer.  Approvals, recommendations, estimates and decisions 
by the Engineer are made on the basis of the Engineer’s experience, qualifications, and 
professional judgment and are not to be construed as warranties or guarantees.  
 
7.3 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Engineer’s total liability to 
the Owner for any loss or damages from claims arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement from any cause including the Engineer’s strict liability, breach of contract, or 
professional negligence, errors and omissions (whether claimed in tort, contract, strict liability, 
nuisance, by statute or otherwise) shall not exceed the lesser of the total contract  price of this 
Agreement or the proceeds paid under Engineer’s liability insurance in effect at the time such 
claims are made.  The Owner hereby releases the Engineer from any liability exceeding such 
amount.  In no event shall either party to this Agreement be liable to the other for special, 
indirect, incidental or consequential damages, whether or not such damages were foreseeable at 
the time of the commencement of the work under this Agreement. 
 
7.4 Any and all liability resulting from conditions not created or caused to be created by the 
Engineer shall be the liability of the Owner.  Any and all liability that may arise from the 
construction, ownership and/or operation of the improvements is solely the responsibility of the 
Owner, and the Owner hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the Engineer harmless from such 

166



liability, claims, actions, loss or damage, including but not limited to attorney’s fees, arising 
therefrom. 
 
7.5 The Owner shall make no claim for professional negligence, either directly or by way of 
a cross complaint against the Engineer unless the Owner has first provided the Engineer with a 
written certification executed by an independent consultant currently practicing in the same 
discipline as the Engineer and licensed in the State of Alabama.  This certification shall: a) 
contain the name and license number of the certifier, b) specify the acts or omissions that the 
certifier contends are not in conformance with the standard of care for an engineer performing 
professional services under similar circumstances; and c) state in detail the basis for the certifiers 
opinion that such acts or omissions do not conform to the standard of care.  This certificate shall 
be provided by the consultant not less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the presentation of 
any claim or the institution of any arbitration or judicial proceeding.  This Certificate of Merit 
clause will take precedence over any existing state law in force at the time of the claim or 
demand for arbitration 
 
 
ARTICLE 8. Termination. 
 
8.1 This Agreement shall be subject to termination by either party hereto, with or without 
cause, upon twenty (20) days advance notice in writing.  Payment due Engineer at such time 
shall be computed upon applicable terms of Article 4,  the amount of work completed or in 
progress as of the termination date and Engineer’s reasonable cost of winding down its services 
after termination.  
 
 
ARTICLE 9. Binding Arbitration.  
 
9.1 Any dispute arising out of or relating to this contract, including the breach, termination or 
validity thereof, shall be finally resolved by arbitration in accordance with the International 
Institute for Conflict Prevention and Resolution Rules for Non-Administered Arbitration by a 
sole arbitrator.  The arbitration shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. §§ 1 et 
seq., and judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered by any court having 
jurisdiction thereof. The place of the arbitration shall be in Andalusia, Alabama. 
 
ARTICLE 10. Miscellaneous. 
 
10.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the Owner and 
Engineer and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, whether written or 
oral.  This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented or modified by written instrument 
executed by both the Owner and the Engineer. 
 
10.2 It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that if any part, term or provision of this 
Agreement is held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any 
applicable law, the validity of the remaining portion or portions of this Agreement shall not be 
affected and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the 
Agreement did not contain the particular part, term, or provision held to be invalid. 

167



 
10.3 It is expressively understood and agreed that the indemnity and insurance obligations of 
this Agreement, as well as the Engineer’s proprietary interest in its engineering plans and 
specifications, shall survive the termination of this Agreement under Article 8 above as well as 
the completion of services under this Agreement.  
 
10.4 This Agreement is to be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama. 
 
 
 

WHEREFORE, the undersigned, by their signatures, certify that they have carefully read 
this Agreement, understand the terms and conditions contained herein, have proper authority to 
execute this Agreement, and do so as their own free act: 
 
Owner:      Engineer:      
       
By:       By:       

 
Title:       Title:       
 
Date:       Date:       
 
       
Owner’s Designated Representative:   Engineer’s Designated Representative: 

        Marc Thompson    
       
Title:       Title:   Project Manager  

 
Phone:       Phone:   (205) 403-2600  
 
Fax:       Fax:   (205) 406-2623  
 
Email:       Email:      mthompson@cdge.com  
 
       

168



169



170



171



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4423 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH HANSEN LANDSCAPE 
ARCHITECTS TO PROVIDE DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE AT MCCALLUM PARK 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute an agreement with 

Hansen Landscape Architects for design and development of a pedestrian bridge in 

McCallum Park at a cost not to exceed $39,700; and 

2. A copy of the contract is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4423 

as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4423 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of March, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4424 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH HANSEN LANDSCAPE 
ARCHITECTS TO PROVIDE DESIGN SERVICES FOR A PROPOSED 
TRAIL AT MCCALLUM PARK 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute an agreement with 

Hansen Landscape Architects for design and development of a proposed trail in 

McCallum Park at a cost not to exceed $19,900; and 

2. A copy of the contract is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4424 

as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4424 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of March, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4406-A 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NUMBER 4406-A - 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO HIRE SIX NEW 
POLICE OFFICERS AND TO PROMOTE SIX EXISTING 
OFFICERS TO THE RANK OF SERGEANT TO FILL SIX DESK 
SERGEANT POSITIONS 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 28, 2013, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Resolution Number 4393 to authorize the Mayor and City 

Manager to enter into an agreement for dispatch services from Shelby County and Shelby 

County 9-1-1; and 

 WHEREAS, due to the relocation of public communications, the Police Chief 

and City Manager have recognized duties that will need to be performed at the Municipal 

Center in the absence of said dispatchers which will require a total of six (6) desk 

sergeants; and 

 WHEREAS, on February 5, 2013, the City Council adopted and approved 

Resolution 4406 to allow the City Manager to do the following:  that six (6) existing 

officers be promoted to the rank of sergeant to fill six (6) desk sergeant positions and that 

six (6) new officers be hired to replace the promoted officers on the beat as detailed in 

“Exhibit A” which is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4406 as 

though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the effective date for the hiring of the officers as stipulated in 

Resolution was effective May 1, 2013 and the Police Chief has recommended the hiring 

of the new officers effective April 1, 2013 for training purposes; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

authorize the City Manager to retain said officers effective April 1, 2013. 

236



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Resolution Number 4406 is hereby amended to authorize the City Manager to 

hire six (6) new police officers and equip said officers with required uniforms 

and equipment effective April 1, 2013; and 

2. This Resolution Number shall become effective immediately upon adoption 

and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of March, 

2013. 

 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 

237



238



Resolution Number 4426 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4426 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING ALABAMA POWER COMPANY A 
UTILITY EASEMENT FOR CONNECTION OF ELECTRICAL 
SERVICE  

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign an agreement with Alabama Power 

Company to grant an easement, right and privilege as described in said 

agreement (copy attached); and 

2. Resolution Number 4426 shall become effective immediately upon adoption 

and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of March, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

239



240



241



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4427 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FUNDING FOR ADDITIONAL GATES 
AND SUPPLIES FOR THE LIBRARY IN THE FOREST RFID SYSTEM 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 

HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase additional gates and supplies needed 

for the Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest RFID system as detailed in the memorandum 

from the Library Director dated March 6, 2013; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4427 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of April, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4428 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
PURCHASE MOBILE DATA TERMINALS (M.D.T.’S) FOR THE POLICE 
DEPARTMENT 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 

HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to accept the State Bid for the purchase of 16 

Fujitsu computers with e-citation to be used in the Police Department for the in-car 

computers; and 

2. Funding for the computers shall be expensed to the General Fund; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4428 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of April, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
     Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
     Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

261



262



263



VESTAVIA HILLS POLICE DEPARTMENT    
 
 
To: Chief St. John    MEMO 
  
From: Deputy Chief Holcomb 
 
Date:  21 March 2013 
 
Re: Mobile Data Terminals (M.D.T.’s)   
 
I am requesting a resolution for first read on the next City Council Agenda authorizing 
the purchase of 16 new computers with e-citation before the switch to Shelby County. 
There is a 30-45 day delivery estimate from time of purchase. 
 
The costs of this project with all components including installation, printers, mounts and 
a 3-year no fault replacement warranty are as follows.  
 
16 Fujitsu computers with e-citation - $58,633.00 (Purchase) 
16 Fujitsu computers with e-citation - $20,016.55 per year (estimated) on 36 month lease. 
(Total payments-$60,049.65) 
 
Mr. Turner recommends purchasing the computers from capital funds. If approved, the 
computers will be purchased from Pinnacle Networx from State contracts T-532 and  
T-020. 
 
 

264


	2013_0325CC_A
	2013_0311CC_M
	2013_0315CC_M special meeting
	Resolution 4421
	Resolution 4404
	Resolution 4422
	Resolution 4423
	Resolution 4424
	Resolution 4406-A
	Resolution 4426
	Resolution 4427
	Resolution 4428



